
BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING

January 29, 2025

SSM Algoma Community Room / Teams Meeting

www.algomapublichealth.com

Page 1 of 124 



11. . Call to OrderCall to Order

22. . Adoption of AgendaAdoption of Agenda

33. . Adoption of MinutesAdoption of Minutes

44. . Delegation/PresentationsDelegation/Presentations

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive
Officer Report

b. Finance and Audit

i. MOH / CEO Report - January 2025 29

i. APH Unaudited Financial Statements ending
November 30, 2024

32

66. . Reports to BoardReports to Board

a. Briefing Note - Algoma Ontario Health Team
(AOHT) Partnership Agreement Renewal

39

77. . New BusinessNew Business

a. Letter to Algoma Public Health from the Township
of Dubreiulville with resolution supporting APH Board
resolution 2024-98 regarding Perspectives from
Northern Ontario for the Public Health Funding
Review. The letter is dated November 22, 2024

62

b. Letter to the Mayor of Sudbury from Public Health
Sudbury & Districts regarding advocacy for the

75

88. . Correspondence for InformationCorrespondence for Information

a. Declaration of Conflict of Interest

a. January 29, 2025, Board of Health Meeting Agenda 4

a. November 27, 2024, Board of Health Meeting
Minutes

7

a. Infectious Diseases - Syphilis and the SPRITE
Study

11

55. . Business ArisingBusiness Arising

c. Governance

b. Algoma Ontario Health Team - Collaborative
Decision Making Agreement

41

Meeting Book - January 29, 2025, Board of Health MeetingMeeting Book - January 29, 2025, Board of Health Meeting

Table of ContentsTable of Contents

Page 2 of 124 



Selection of Indigenous Municipal and Provincial
Appointees for Board of Health for Public Health
Sudbury & Districts, dated December 5, 2024.

c. Letter to the Minister of Health from Public Health
Sudbury & Districts regarding advocacy for the
Selection of Indigenous Municipal and Provincial
Appointees for Board of Health for Public Health
Sudbury & Districts, dated December 5, 2024.

78

d. Report to the Middlesex-London Board of Health
regarding advocacy for the Monitoring Food
Affordability and Implications for Public Policy and
Action, dated December 12, 2024.

82

e. Letter to the Medical Officers of Health and CEOs
regarding Strengthening Public Health from the office
of the CMOH dated December 23, 2024.

93

f. Letter to the Minister of Finance from the
Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa)
regarding the 2024 Pre-Budget Submission: Public
Health Programs and Services, dated January 20,
2025.

95

1414. . AnnouncementsAnnouncements

g. alPHa Information Break - January 2025 104

99. . Correspondence for actionCorrespondence for action

1010. . AddendumAddendum

1111. . In-CameraIn-Camera

1212. . Open MeetingOpen Meeting

1313. . Resolutions Resulting From In-CameraResolutions Resulting From In-Camera

a. Next Meeting Dates

1515. . AdjournmentAdjournment

Page 3 of 124 



BOARD MEMBERS APH MEMBERS
PRESENT: Deborah Graystone

Sally Hagman

Donald McConnell
Luc Morrissette
Sonny Spina Leo Vecchio - Manager of Communications
Sonia Tassone
Suzanne Trivers
Jody Wildman
Natalie Zagordo

1.0 Meeting Called to Order Dr. J. Tuinema

a. 
b.
c. 

2.0 Election of Officers

a. Dr. J. Tuinema

b. Chair

c. Chair

d.  Chair

e. Chair

Moved:

Board of Health Meeting 
AGENDA

Wednesday, January 29, 2025 - 5:00 pm
SSM Algoma Community Room │ Videoconference 

Julila Hemphill Kristy Harper - Director of Health Promotion & Prevention / 
Chief Nursing Officer

Dr. John Tuinema - Acting Medical Officer of Health & CEO
Rick Webb - Director of Corporate Services

Appointment of Board of Health First Vice-Chair and Chair of the Finance and Audit Committee for the year 
2025.

Land Acknowledgment
Roll Call
Declaration of conflict of interest

Appointment of Board of Health Chair for the year 2025.

ii.  Governance Committee call for members:

Appointment of Board of Health Second Vice-Chair and Chair of the Governance Committee for the year 
2025. 

Call for Committee Members for the Finance & Audit Committee and Governance Committee for the year 
2025.

i.   Finance and Audit Committee call for members : 

Slate of officers and committee members.

RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the following is the Board of Health slate of officers and committee members for the year 
2025. 

Board of Health Chair:

First Vice-Chair & Chair of the 
Finance and Audit Committee:

Second Vice-Chair & Chair of 
the Governance Committee:

Finance and Audit Committee 
members:

Governance 
Committee members:

Leslie Dunseath - Manager of Accounting Services

Tania Caputo - Board Secretary

STAFF GUESTS:  Sandra Dereski - Acting Manager of Infectious Diseases, Cassey Cassan - Health Promotion Specialist, Christina 
Luukkonen - Manager of Support Services ,  Amy McGregor - Supervisor of Support Services

Page 4 of 124 



3.0 Signing Authority Chair
Moved:

4.0 Adoption of Agenda Chair
Moved:

5.0 Delegations / Presentations

S. Dereski / 
C. Cassan

6.0 Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting Chair

Moved:

7.0 Business Arising from Minutes

8.0 Reports to the Board

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Reports Dr. J. Tuinema

i. 

Moved:

b. Finance and Audit 

i. L. Dunseath

Moved:

9.0 New Business/General Business Dr. J. Tuinema

a. 
Moved:

11.0 Correspondence for Information Chair

a.

b.

i) the Chair of the Board of Health
ii) one other Board member, designated by Resolution
iii) the Medical Officer of Health/Chief Executive Officer
iv) the Director of Corporate Services

RESOLUTION 
THAT By-Law 95-2 identifies that signing authorities for all accounts shall be restricted to:

THAT the Board of Health minutes dated November 27, 2024 be approved as presented.

MOH Report - January 2025

SO BE IT RESOLVED that signing authority is provided to ______________ as the one other Board member, 
designated by resolution until the next election of officers. 

RESOLUTION 

THAT the Board of Health agenda dated January 29, 2025, be approved as presented.

Infectious Diseases - Syphilis and the SPRITE Study

RESOLUTION 

Letter to Algoma Public Health from the Township of Dubreiulville with resolution supporting APH Board 
resolution 2024-98 regarding  Perspectives from Northern Ontario for the Public Health Funding Review.  
The letter is dated November 22, 2024

THAT the Board of Health approves the Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending November 30, 2024, 
as presented.

RESOLUTION 

THAT the report of the Medical Officer of Health and CEO for January 2025 be accepted as presented.

Financial Statements

RESOLUTION 

RESOLUTION 

THAT the Board of Health approves the renewal partnership with the AOHT as a collaborative partner.

Briefing Note - Algoma Ontario Health Team (AOHT) Partnership Agreement Renewal

Letter to the Mayor of Sudbury from  Public Health Sudbury & Districts regarding advocacy for the Selection 
of Indigenous Municipal and Provincial Appointees for Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & 
Districts,  dated December 5, 2024.

Page 5 of 124 



c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

12.0 Chair

13.0 Chair

Moved:

14.0 Chair

Resolutions resulting from in-camera meeting.

15.0 Announcements / Next Committee Meetings: Chair

Finance & Audit Committee
Wednesday, February 12, 2025 @ 5:00 pm
Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Public Health Champion Awards Reception
Wednesday, February 26, 2025 @ 4:00 pm

Board of Health Meeting
Wednesday, February 26, 2025 @ 5:00 pm

Governance Committee
Wednesday, March 19, 2025 @ 5:00 pm
Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

16.0 Evaluation Chair

17.0 Adjournment Chair

Moved:

THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns.

Letter to the Medical Officers of Health and CEOs regarding Strengthening Public Health from the office of 
the CMOH dated December 23, 2024.

In-Camera
For discussion of labour relations and employee negotiations, matters about identifiable individuals, adoption of in camera 
minutes, security of the property of the board, litigation or potential litigation.

RESOLUTION 

THAT the Board of Health go in-camera.

Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

RESOLUTION 

In-person │APH Front Lobby -  294 Willow Ave 

Letter to the Minister of Finance from the Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) regarding the 
2024 Pre-Budget Submission: Public Health Programs and Services, dated January 20, 2025.

alPHa Information Break - January 2025

Letter to the Minister of Health from Public Health Sudbury & Districts regarding advocacy for the Selection 
of Indigenous Municipal and Provincial Appointees for Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & 
Districts,  dated December 5, 2024.

Report to the Middlesex-London Board of Health regarding advocacy for the Monitoring Food Affordability 
and Implications for Public Policy and Action, dated December 12, 2024.

Open Meeting

Addendum

Page 6 of 124 



Syphilis and the SPRITE Study
Sandra Dereski, Acting Manager of Infectious Diseases
Casey Cassan, Health Promotion Specialist
January 29, 2025

Page 11 of 124 



Overview

Introduction to syphilis in Algoma

Role of APH + Infectious Diseases Program

The SPRITE Study

Next Steps

Page 12 of 124 



Strategic Directions

Page 13 of 124 



Ontario Public Health Standards

Ministry of Health, Ontario. Ontario Public Health Standards: Requirements for Programs, Services and Accountability. 2021.
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf Page 14 of 124 

https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf


What is Syphilis?

Treatable bacterial STI 
spread through sexual 

contact & blood

Primary symptom is a 
chancre (painless sore)

Disease of Public Health 
Significance (Reportable)

Public Health Ontario, Syphilis. 2025
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Diseases-and-Conditions/Infectious-Diseases/Sexually-Transmitted-Infections/Syphilis 
World Health Organization, Syphilis Fact Sheet. May 21, 2024.
https://www.who.int/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/syphilis Page 15 of 124 

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Diseases-and-Conditions/Infectious-Diseases/Sexually-Transmitted-Infections/Syphilis
https://www.who.int/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/syphilis


Complications of Syphilis

Government of Canada. Syphilis Guide: Risk factors and clinical manifestations. 2023. https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/services/infectious-diseases/sexual-health-sexually-transmitted-infections/canadian-
guidelines/syphilis/risk-factors-clinical-manifestation.html 
The Society of Obstetricians and Genaecologists of Canada. Syphilis. N.d. https://www.sexandu.ca/stis/syphilis/
Canadian Paediatric Society. Diagnosis and Management of Congenital Syphilis – Avoiding Missed Opportunities. 2024. https://cps.ca/en/documents/position/congenital-syphilis 
World Health Organization, Syphilis Fact Sheet. May 21, 2024.
https://www.who.int/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/syphilis 

Life-threatening complications of the 
brain, heart, and/or other organs

Congenital syphilis 
and/or fetal death

Increased risk of other 
STIs

Page 16 of 124 

https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/services/infectious-diseases/sexual-health-sexually-transmitted-infections/canadian-guidelines/syphilis/risk-factors-clinical-manifestation.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/services/infectious-diseases/sexual-health-sexually-transmitted-infections/canadian-guidelines/syphilis/risk-factors-clinical-manifestation.html
https://www.sexandu.ca/stis/syphilis/
https://cps.ca/en/documents/position/congenital-syphilis
https://www.who.int/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/syphilis


Risk Factors of Syphilis

Government of Canada. Syphilis Guide: Risk factors and clinical manifestations. 2023. https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/services/infectious-diseases/sexual-health-sexually-transmitted-infections/canadian-
guidelines/syphilis/risk-factors-clinical-manifestation.html  

Behavioural Risk Factors Epidemiological Risk Factors

• Barrierless sexual activity

• Multiple sex partners

• Substance use

• Population groups and/or 

communities experiencing high 

prevalence of syphilis

• Homelessness and/or street 

involvement

Page 17 of 124 

https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/services/infectious-diseases/sexual-health-sexually-transmitted-infections/canadian-guidelines/syphilis/risk-factors-clinical-manifestation.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/services/infectious-diseases/sexual-health-sexually-transmitted-infections/canadian-guidelines/syphilis/risk-factors-clinical-manifestation.html


Syphilis in Algoma

Syphilis data extracted from PHO ID query on January 3, 2025; Testing data extracted from PHOL data request March 5, 2024

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50
55
60
65

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024*

Infectious syphilis age-standardized rates per 100,000 population and testing count

Number of unique individuals tested for syphilis Algoma rate ON rate Northeastern ON rate

R
at

e 
pe

r 1
00

,0
00

C
ount

*Note that the rates for the year 2024 are still considered interim numbers. 

Page 18 of 124 



 Case & Contact Management (CCM)
 Health Care Provider (HCP) alerts & education – help with diagnosis, treatment, etc.
 Free condom distribution
 Disease surveillance
 Collaborate with partners to ensure access to clinical services
Increase local capacity for testing and treatment
Public Health Nurse Practitioner services available for clients without access 

 Comprehensive health promotion planning
-> Opportunity to provide accessible testing to priority populations & reduce time 
between positive test & treatment!

The Role of Public Health

Page 19 of 124 



• Syphilis Point-of-Care Rapid Testing & Immediate Treatment Evaluation

• Study is led by Southeast Health Unit (formerly KFL&A PH), with the goals of:

Now…The SPRITE Research Study!

Monitoring metrics such as 
point-of-care rapid test (POCT) 

& immediate treatment 
performance in real-world 

settings

Understanding factors affecting 
delivery and usability of tests in 
a clinic and population health 

perspective

Developing a Community of 
Practice (CoP) among 

participating PHUs and another 
between PHUs and community-
based organizations (CBOs) in 

their district

Page 20 of 124 



SPRITE @ APH

Host SPRITE events (testing & 
treatment)

Participate in CoP between 
SPRITE PHUs

APH-CBO knowledge exchange 
network

Page 21 of 124 



SPRITE Locations

Map courtesy of Google Maps. https://www.google.ca/maps/place/Sault+Ste.+Marie,+ON/@46.5284314,-84.314624,15.25z/data=!4m6!3m5!1s0x4d36311508818c7b:0xc55b0eb513db21cd!8m2!3d46.5136494!4d-
84.3357526!16zL20vMDFoaHli!5m1!1e1?entry=ttu&g_ep=EgoyMDI0MTIxMS4wIKXMDSoASAFQAw%3D%3D 

Blind River
• APH Office 

Elliot Lake
• APH Office
• The Beehive (CMHA) 

Sault Ste. Marie
• APH (drop-in visits) 
• HARP (316 Wellington St.)

Wawa
• Food Bank site 

Current test sites Prospective test sites

Page 22 of 124 

https://www.google.ca/maps/place/Sault+Ste.+Marie,+ON/@46.5284314,-84.314624,15.25z/data=!4m6!3m5!1s0x4d36311508818c7b:0xc55b0eb513db21cd!8m2!3d46.5136494!4d-84.3357526!16zL20vMDFoaHli!5m1!1e1?entry=ttu&g_ep=EgoyMDI0MTIxMS4wIKXMDSoASAFQAw%3D%3D
https://www.google.ca/maps/place/Sault+Ste.+Marie,+ON/@46.5284314,-84.314624,15.25z/data=!4m6!3m5!1s0x4d36311508818c7b:0xc55b0eb513db21cd!8m2!3d46.5136494!4d-84.3357526!16zL20vMDFoaHli!5m1!1e1?entry=ttu&g_ep=EgoyMDI0MTIxMS4wIKXMDSoASAFQAw%3D%3D


Who Have We Reached?

Underhoused 
individuals 

People who use 
substances

Current & past 
sex workers

Clients with no 
previous testing

2SLGBTQ+ 
community

Ages 19 – 66 Newcomers to 
Canada

Page 23 of 124 



Results So Far (up to January 10, 2025)

53 matched 
pairs 
completed 
to date.

7 clients had 
positive POCT

9 clients had 
positive blood test

Complete 47 more 
matched pairs in 
Q1 of 2025!

Percent positivity in Algoma (2023) 4%

Percent positivity in SPRITE clients 15%

Page 24 of 124 



What Have We Learned?

Strengths
POCT allow for easy testing & reduce time 

between test and treatment

Collaboration allows public health to go 
beyond what we can do at APH alone

Outreach & incentivized testing were very 
effective for priority population attendance

SPRITE allowed for immediate syphilis 
treatment

Limitations
Clinic attendance requires word-of-mouth 

advertising

Study was done in addition to staff’s 
existing workload

POCT show false positives and negatives 
in some situations

Page 25 of 124 



What’s Next For SPRITE?

Complete 48 more POCT-serology matched pairs by March 2025

Identify & partner with more CBOs district-wide 

Continue engaging with other PHUs to ensure highest quality research

Start knowledge mobilization between APH & CBOs

Use SPRITE findings to advocate for healthy public policy

Page 26 of 124 



In Summary...
APH program 

work

SPRITE 
Comprehensive 
sexual health 

promotion 
planning

Page 27 of 124 



Page 28 of 124 



 
 
  

 Nov 

 

Prepared by:   
Dr. John Tuinema and the  
Leadership Team 
 
Presented to:  
Algoma Public Health Board of Health  

 

Report of the  

Medical Officer of Health / CEO 

January 29, 2025 
 

Page 29 of 124 



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
January 29, 2025 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Program Highlights Pages 3-10 Program Highlights Pages  5 - 11 APH At-a-Glance Page   2 APH At-a-Glance Page   2 - 3 TABLE OF CONTENTS 

  

APH At-a-Glance Page 3 

Page 30 of 124 



Report of the Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
January 29, 2025 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

 
 
The new year brings changes to the landscape of local public health agencies in Ontario. On 
January 1st, the number of public health units (PHUs) changed from 34 to 29 as mergers were 
finalized. This means that the number of Northern PHUs changes from 7 to 6 with the merger of 
Porcupine and Timiskaming PHU. The new merged health unit will be known as Northeastern 
Public Health. They have much work to do to amalgamate their health units and we look 
forward to working with them in their new organization. 
 
Mergers are just one aspect of Ontario’s “Strengthening Public Health” initiative. Another aspect 
is the review of the Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS). This was originally going to be 
implemented on January 1st, 2025, but delays have changed the implementation date to 2026. 
The final version of the new OPHS should be finalized by August. You can read the full Ministry 
of Health memo in the board package. 
 
At the provincial level there has been a change in the Associate Chief Medical Officer of Health 
liaison for Northern PHUs. We are happy to welcome Dr. Kate Bingham to her new role and 
thank Dr. Fiona Kouyoumdjian and Dr. Wajid Ahmed, who jointly held this role, for their support 
over their tenure in that portfolio. 
 
With the new year comes new changes to the board. APH thanks Matthew Shoemaker and 
Loretta O’Neill for their time serving on the board. We’d also like to welcome Sonny Spina and 
Natalie Zagordo, our newest board members. We will also have a new board chair this year. 
Sally Hagman has been our chair since 2021. It was no easy task being the chair of the Board of 
Health during the largest, most severe pandemic in over a century, so we are grateful for Sally’s 
leadership during her tenure. We are looking forward to working with our new chair as we move 
beyond the pandemic and continue the important work of improving health for all in Algoma. 
 
 
 
 

APH AT-A-GLANCE 

Page 31 of 124 



Algoma Public Health
(Unaudited) Financial Statements

Index Page
 Statement of Operations 1

 Statement of Revenues - Public Health 2

 Statement of Expenses - Public Health 3

 Notes to the Financial Statements

 Statement of Financial Position 

4-5

6

November 30, 2024

Page 32 of 124 



Algoma Public Health
Statement of Operations 
November 2024
(Unaudited)

Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/

YTD YTD Act. to Bgt. Budget Act. to Bgt. YTD Budget

2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024

Public Health Programs (Calendar)
Revenue
Municipal Levy - Public Health 4,440,568$         4,440,569$       (1)$                  4,440,569$     0% 100%
Provincial Grants - Cost Shared Funding 9,185,280 9,185,193 87                   10,020,210 0% 100%
Provincial Grants - Public Health 100% Prov. Funded 2,137,487 2,096,233 41,254            2,286,800 2% 102%
Provincial Grants - Mitigation Funding 0 0 -                  0 - -
Fees, other grants and recovery of expenditures 514,020 445,883 68,137            494,600 15% 115%
Total Public Health Revenue 16,277,355$       16,167,878$     109,477$        17,242,179$   1% 101%

Expenditures
Public Health Cost Shared 13,743,602$       13,701,965$     (41,637)$        14,913,154$   0% 100%
Public Health 100% Prov. Funded Programs 2,258,160 2,113,076 (145,084)        2,329,026 7% 107%
Total Public Health Programs Expenditures 16,001,762$       15,815,042$     (186,720)$      17,242,180$   1% 101%

Total Rev. over Exp. Public Health 275,593$            352,837$          (77,244)$        (0)$                  

Healthy Babies Healthy Children (Fiscal)
Provincial Grants and Recoveries 760,506$            760,500            6                     1,140,750       0% 100%
Expenditures 733,977              760,339            26,362            1,140,750       -3% 97%
Excess of Rev. over Exp. 26,529                161                   26,368            -                  

Public Health Programs (Fiscal)
Provincial Grants and Recoveries -$                    420,733 (420,733)        631,100          -100% 0%
Expenditures 426,082              422,326            (3,756)            631,100          1% 101%
Excess of Rev. over Fiscal Funded (426,082)             (1,593)               (424,489)        -                  

Fiscal Programs
Revenue
Provincial Grants - Community Health 158,104$            158,102$          2$                   262,153$        0% 100%
Municipal, Federal, and Other Funding 114,447 114,447 -                  114,447 0% 100%
Other Bill for Service Programs 0 0 -                  -                  #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Total Community Health Revenue 272,551$            272,549$          2$                   376,600$        0% 100%

Expenditures
Brighter Futures for Children 79,074 76,298 (2,776)            114,447 4% 104%
Nurse Practitioner 109,820 107,989 (1,831)            162,153 2% 102%
Stay on Your Feet 60,999 66,540 5,541              100,000 -8% 92%
Total Fiscal Community Health Programs 249,893$            250,826$          934$               376,600$        0% 100%

Total Rev. over Exp. Fiscal Community Health 22,658$              21,723$            936$               (0)$                  

Explanations will be provided for variances of 15% and $15,000 occurring in the first 6 months
and variances of 10% and $10,000 occurring in the final 6 months
 

Page 1 of 6

Page 33 of 124 



Algoma Public Health
Revenue Statement
For Eleven Months Ending November 30, 2024 Comparison Prior Year:
(Unaudited) Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/

YTD YTD Bgt. to Act. Budget Act. to Bgt. Annual Budget YTD Actual YTD BGT
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2023 2023

Levies Sault Ste Marie 3,088,475 3,088,475 0 3,088,475 0% 100% 2,913,655 2,913,655 0
Levies District 1,352,093 1,352,094 (1) 1,352,094 0% 100% 1,275,562 1,275,562 0
Total Levies 4,440,568 4,440,569 (1) 4,440,569 0% 100% 4,189,217 4,189,217 0

MOH Public Health Funding 9,185,280 9,185,193 88 10,020,210 0% 92% 8,120,947 8,122,767 (1,820)
Total Public Health Cost Shared Funding 9,185,280 9,185,193 88 10,020,210 0% 92% 8,120,947 8,122,767 (1,820)

MOH Funding - MOH / AMOH Top Up 161,348 145,108 16,240 158,300 11% 102% 167,310 173,525 (6,215)
MOH Funding Northern Ontario Fruits & Veg. 107,617 107,617 0 117,400 0% 92% 107,622 107,617 5
MOH Funding Unorganized 486,200 486,200 0 530,400 0% 92% 486,200 486,200 0
MOH Senior Dental 1,267,489 1,267,475 14 1,382,700 0% 92% 1,235,017 1,237,729 (2,712)
MOH Funding Indigenous Communities 89,833 89,833 (0) 98,000 0% 92% 89,828 89,833 (5)
OTF COVID-19 Extraordinary Costs 25,000 0 25,000 0 #DIV/0! 100% (6,954) 0 (6,954)
Total Public Health 100% Prov. Funded 2,137,487 2,096,233 41,254 2,286,800 2% 93% 2,079,023 2,094,904 (15,881)

Total Public Health Mitigation Funding 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0% 951,322 951,317 5

Recoveries from Programs 22,869 27,500 (4,631) 29,600 -17% 77% 10,899 29,167 (18,268)
Program Fees 44,059 40,883 3,176 45,000 8% 98% 38,046 54,633 (16,587)
Land Control Fees 222,370 218,000 4,370 225,000 2% 99% 189,425 215,000 (25,575)
Program Fees Immunization 65,195 41,250 23,945 45,000 58% 145% 63,291 82,500 (19,209)
HPV Vaccine Program 11,118 15,000 (3,882) 20,000 -26% 56% 9,996 0 9,996
Influenza Program 445 0 445 16,000 #DIV/0! 3% 730 0 730
Meningococcal C Program 3,842 7,000 (3,158) 9,000 -45% 43% 1,479 0 1,479
Interest Revenue 134,476 96,250 38,226 105,000 40% 128% 159,963 30,052 129,911
Other Revenues 9,646 0 9,646 0 #DIV/0! 100% 5,200 13,750 (8,550)
Total Fees and Recoveries 514,020 445,883 68,137 494,600 15% 104% 479,029 425,102 53,927

Total Public Health Revenue Annual 16,277,355 16,167,878 109,477 17,242,179 1% 94% 15,819,538 15,783,307 36,231

Public Health Fiscal April 2024 - March 2025
Infection Prevention and Control Hub 0 420,733 (420,733) 631,100 -100% 0%

Total Provincial Grants Fiscal 0 420,733 (420,733) 631,100 #DIV/0! 0% 0 0 0

Variance  2023

Page 2 of 6

Page 34 of 124 



Algoma Public Health
Expense Statement- Public Health
For Eleven Months Ending November 30, 2024
(Unaudited)

Comparison Prior Year:
Actual Budget Variance Annual Variance % YTD Actual/
YTD YTD Act. to Bgt. Budget Act. to Bgt.  Budget YTD Actual YTD BGT
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2023 2023

.
Salaries & Wages 9,287,833 9,383,821 95,988 10,236,247 -1% 91% 9,762,215$        9,930,308$       168,093$          
Benefits 2,428,766 2,470,605 41,839 2,665,034 -2% 91% 2,486,651 2,329,598 (157,053)
Travel 149,798 159,982 10,184 174,526 -6% 86% 166,128 145,567 (20,561)
Program 1,257,790 904,098 (353,692) 1,012,197 39% 124% 1,480,516 1,134,066 (346,450)
Office 51,501 55,367 3,866 60,400 -7% 85% 53,794 75,533 21,739
Computer Services 907,259 848,832 (58,427) 926,000 7% 98% 865,373 821,234 (44,139)
Telecommunications 236,922 223,669 (13,253) 244,000 6% 97% 268,217 242,915 (25,302)
Program Promotion 17,066 17,875 809 19,500 -5% 88% 32,405 41,250 8,845
Professional Development 53,574 46,847 (6,727) 51,105 14% 105% 43,167 73,722 30,555
Facilities Expenses 824,586 895,581 70,995 977,000 -8% 84% 861,624 846,997 (14,627)
Fees & Insurance  367,364 389,063 21,699 418,750 -6% 88% 392,955 368,208 (24,747)
Debt Management 419,302 419,303 1 457,421 0% 92% 419,302 419,302 0

16,001,761$     15,815,043$   ( 186,718 )$        17,242,180$   1% 93% 16,832,347$    16,428,700$   ( 403,647 )$     

Variance  2023

Page 3 of 6

Page 35 of 124 



Notes to Financial Statements – November 2024 
 
Reporting Period 
 
The November 2024 financial reports include eleven months of financial results for Public Health 
programming. All other non-funded public health programs are reporting eight months of results from 
the operating year ending March 31, 2025.  
 
Statement of Operations (see page 1) 
 
Summary – Public Health and Non-Public Health Programs 
 
In June 2024, APH received the 2024 Amending Agreement from the Province identifying approved 
funding allocations for public health programs. Annual allocations for mandatory cost-shared programs 
and 100% funded public health programs are consistent with that previously communicated by the 
Province and in line with the Board approved budget, and thus, no updates have been made to the 
annual budget for public health programs. 
 
In July 2024, APH received confirmation that the annual allocation for the Healthy Babies, Healthy 
Children program funded through the Ministry of Children, Community & Social Services has received a 
$73K base funding increase, which will be ongoing. This represents a 6.8% increase and is the first 
received since 2015. The funding increase is provided to help address increasing operational costs, and 
there is no expectation of service level expansion. The budget for this program has been updated to 
reflect new funding levels.  
 
As of November 30, 2024, Public Health calendar programs are reporting a $77K negative variance – 
which is driven by a $187K negative variance in expenditures and a $109K positive variance in revenue. 
 
Public Health Revenue (see page 2)  
 
Our Public Health calendar revenues are within 1% variance to budget for 2024.  
 
Per the 2024 grant and budget schedule of the funding and accountability agreement, provincial base 
funding allocated to APH has been restored to the level provided under the 2020 cost-share formula, as 
well as been allocated base funding growth of 1% over 2023 allocations.  
 
In early January 2024, the Ministry requested public health units to forecast anticipated spend on COVID 
immunization programming for the months of January through March 2024 only. Based on the forecast 
provided, APH was approved for $25,000 in one-time program enhancement funding to help address 
base funding pressures for the first three months of the calendar year. Based on communications to 
date, there will be no further availability of COVID-19 extraordinary funds or mitigation funding in 2024. 
One time funding requests to address financial pressures above and beyond what can be supported by 
the cost shared budget were also not made available via the 2024 Annual Service Plan (which was due to 
the Ministry on April 2, 2024), nor were they made available in year. 
 
In March 2024, the Ministry confirmed that IPAC Hub funding will continue in the 2024-25 fiscal year 
and in the years following, with formal planning and funding meetings with individual hubs to be 
forthcoming throughout the fiscal year. This funding has been provided to hubs across the province in 

Page 4 of 6

Page 36 of 124 



order to enhance IPAC practices in identified congregate care settings. Formal funding approvals for this 
initiative were received in early December 2024, which includes $316K in committed base funding and 
$316K in one-time funding for the 2024/25 fiscal year for a total of $631K for the current fiscal year.  

Public Health Expenses (see page 3) 

Program Expenses 
There is a $354K negative variance associated with program expenses. The majority of this identified 
pressure is driven by demand for our Ontario Senior Dental program (externally sourced professional 
services for maintenance, preventative and denture services). We note that APH has requested an 
increase to base funding totaling $641K for the 100% funded Ontario Senior Dental program alongside 
the 2024 Annual Service Plan to fund these identified pressures. We await a response to this request; 
however, we continue to service our communities based on demand, considering conversations with the 
Ministry where APH has been instructed to continue programming as planned, with funding 
opportunities to continually be made available to address ongoing pressures.  

Financial Position - Balance Sheet (see page 7) 

APH’s liquidity position continues to be stable and the bank has been reconciled as of November 30, 
2024.  Cash includes $2.1M in reserve funds.  

Long-term debt of $4.1 million is held by TD Bank @ 1.80% for a 60-month term (amortization period of 
120 months) and matures on September 1, 2026.  $239k of the loan relates to the financing of the Elliot 
Lake office renovations, which occurred in 2015 with the balance, related to the financing of the 294 
Willow Avenue facility located in Sault Ste. Marie.  There are no material accounts receivable collection 
concerns.  

Page 5 of 6

Page 37 of 124 



(Unaudited)
November December

2024 2023

Assets

Current
Cash & Investments $ 5,311,669 $ 4,663,966
Accounts Receivable 1,010,468 2,089,635
Receivable from Municipalities 35,888 6,482 
Prepaid Expenses 175,435 128,517 

Subtotal Current Assets 6,533,460        6,888,600           

Financial Liabilities:
   Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities 1,169,298 1,402,404
   Payable to Gov't of Ont/Municipalities 3,215,958 3,426,716
   Deferred Revenue 277,871 280,411
   Employee  Future Benefit Obligations 2,835,275 2,835,275
   Term Loan 3,308,095 3,308,095

Subtotal Current Liabilities 10,806,498 11,252,901         

Net Debt (4,273,038) (4,364,301)

Non-Financial Assets:
   Building 23,072,474 23,072,474
   Furniture & Fixtures 2,145,864 2,145,864
   Leasehold Improvements 1,583,164 1,583,164
   IT 3,372,128 3,372,128
   Automobile 40,113 40,113
   Accumulated Depreciation -13,300,309 -13,300,309

Subtotal Non-Financial Assets 16,913,434 16,913,434

Accumulated Surplus 12,640,396 12,549,133

Algoma Public Health
Statement of Financial Position

Date:  As of November 2024

Page 6 of 6

Page 38 of 124 



Briefing Note 
 

 Health for all. Together.   

w w w . a l g o m a p u b l i c h e a l t h . c o m  

 
 

☐For Information ☐For Discussion ☒For a Decision 
 
 

ISSUE: 

Algoma Public Health (APH) and the Algoma Ontario Health Team’s (AOHT) partnership agreement is due 
for renewal. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

That APH renew our partnership with the AOHT as a collaborative partner. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Board of Health has previously agreed to partnership agreements with AOHT as a core partner. APH 
leadership regularly attends the meetings of the AOHT Leadership Council and provides input as relevant. 
AOHT is renewing and moving forward with a new agreement for partnerships that requires core partners 
to share in the legal liability of the AOHT. After considering the core functions and role of public health, 
reviewing the new agreement, and following discussion with AOHT leadership, APH has decided that we 
would be best suited to transition from being a “core” partner to a “collaborative” partner. This will still 
allow for APH to be an involved partner and continue to provide input and feedback, while not being 
required to take on liability for the AOHT. 

ASSESSMENT OF RISKS AND MITIGATION: 
 
As a core member, we are one of 22 voting members. As a collaborative member, APH would no 
longer be a voting member. Decisions at the AOHT typically involve downstream healthcare services 
outside of the usual scope of public health. APH would still be able to participate in AOHT leadership 
council meetings and provide input. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

None 

To:  The Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit 
From:  Dr John Tuinema, MOH/CEO 
Date: 1/29/2025 
Re: Partnership Agreement Renewal - Algoma Ontario Health Team 

Page 39 of 124 



Briefing Note  Page 2 of 2 
 

 Health for all. Together.   

OPHS STANDARD: 

Principles - Partnership, Collaboration, and Engagement 

 

STRATEGIC DIRECTION: 

2 d. Meaningfully engage clients, partners, and communities based on shared goals and accountabilities. 

CONTACT: 

Dr John Tuinema – Medical Officer of Health/CEO, Algoma Public Health 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Page 40 of 124 



 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ALGOMA ONTARIO HEALTH TEAM 
COLLABORATIVE DECISION MAKING AGREEMENT 

 
 
This Collaborative Decision Making Agreement is made as of April 1, 2024.  (to be determined) 

BETWEEN AND AMONG: 

Algoma Public Health 

(hereinafter “Member Organization”) 

-and- 

Algoma Ontario Health Team  
(hereinafter “Algoma OHT”) 

 

 Background 
 

1. Algoma Ontario Health Team was designated on July 23, 2020 by the Ministry of Health 
under the Connecting Care Act, 2019. 

2. We are not a corporation, partnership, joint venture or other legal entity. We cannot 
contract except through our members. That means, for all employment agreements, 
technology agreements, funding agreements, leases, vendor/service contracts, and 
insurance packages etc. the fund holder, or a group of members to contract on behalf of 
all of us.   

3. This Agreement governs how the Member Organizations will work together both before 
and after designation as an Ontario Health Team. 

 
As the Algoma OHT functions as an Ontario Health Team under the Connecting Care Act, 2019 
and, as such, the Algoma OHT will be the recipient of funding from the Ministry of Health and/or 
Ontario Health. The Member Organizations will contribute resources (e.g., funds, people, capital, 
and facilities) to the shared priorities and accountabilities of the Algoma OHT as may be agreed, 
such contributions to be made recognizing different abilities and depth in resources and funding.  

Page 41 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 2 - 
 

 Definitions 
 
In this Agreement: 

(a) “Agreement” means this collaboration agreement, and includes all schedules, as 
amended from time to time. 

(b) “Confidential Information” means information of a Member Organization that by 
its nature is confidential and proprietary but does not include information that: 

(i) was known to or received by the receiving Member Organization before 
its receipt from the disclosing Member Organization (unless acquired on a 
confidential basis), and such knowledge or receipt is documented); 

(ii) was public knowledge at the time received by the receiving Member 
Organization or later became public knowledge through no fault of the 
receiving Member Organization; or 

(iii) was independently developed by a Member Organization without 
reference to the Confidential Information previously disclosed by a 
Member Organization. 

(c) “Project” means a collaboration on specific strategies, initiatives, programs, and 
services as described in this Agreement. 

(d) “Project Agreement” means any agreement executed by the participating 
Member Organizations and, where applicable, Participants, that sets out the 
details about a specific Project. 

(e) “Member Organizations” means the signatories to this Agreement. 

(f) “Algoma OHT” means the Algoma - Ontario Health Team, comprised of the 
Member Organizations. 

Non-Derogation. Nothing in this Agreement shall derogate from the Member Organization's 
ongoing autonomy of its board of directors, or its right to safeguard the quality of health services 
provided by it, or to exercise its respective rights and meet its respective responsibilities under 
applicable laws and any government funding agreements. 
  

Page 42 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 3 - 
 

 Shared Vision, Guiding Principles, and Commitments 
 
Member Organizations, as signatories to this agreement, agree to collaborate with the Algoma 
OHT and other Member Organizations on a shared vision, mission, and guiding principles. 

Vision 

An integrated health system focused on the unique needs of Algoma residents; where people 
receive seamless, excellent care where and when they need it. 

Mission 

The Algoma OHT will collaborate in a model of care that is person-centred, efficient, and 
simplified for both individuals and providers. 

Guiding Principles 

People and 
inclusion 

• Engagements, planning and actions that are inclusive of diverse 
perspectives and needs of all people 

• Endeavour to attain perspectives of all relevant geographies and 
vulnerable populations 

• Design of population-based programing, aiming to improve health 
outcomes; acknowledging socio-demographic factors may put 
populations at greater risk 

• Provision of culturally sensitive and safe care 
• Commitment to engagement and reconciliation with the Indigenous 

population (e.g. development of work plan for enhanced cultural 
competency) 

• Commitment to both official languages (e.g. training opportunities and 
utilizations of resources and translation) 

Access, 
responsiveness, 

and 
empowerment 

• Focused efforts to improve health care equity, access and coordination 
• Person-centered and community-empowered decision-making and 

prioritization of needs and services 
• Commitment to responsiveness to individuals, families, partners and 

communities 

Efficiency and 
efficacy 

• Endeavour to remove waste and barriers within the system 
• Efforts to achieve collaborative solutions to identified gaps in services 
• Commitment to efficient, effective utilization and maximization of fiscal 

and human resources 
• Efforts to prevent redundancies and development of linkages to (and 

from) existing, relevant community tables/work groups/committees 

Partnership and 
behaviour 

• Demonstrations of mutual respect by all 
• Development of enhanced and trusting partnerships 
• Effective and transparent communication 

Page 43 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 4 - 
 

Knowledge and 
quality 

• Inclusion and analysis of relevant data and social determinants of 
health in planning, decision-making and continuous quality 
improvement efforts 

• Remain well-versed in Ontario Health’s Quality expectations 
Valuing of 

human 
resources 

• Commitment to improving work-life of AOHT’s collective workforce 
• Provision of shared educational opportunities for identified knowledge 

gaps 
 

Commitments  

Member Organizations will participate as contributing partners to the Algoma OHT objectives, 
mission, and vision. Member Organizations will be classified as one of three types of partners: 
core, collaborative or community.  
 
Partnership types will be first determined by the primary sector served as identified by the 
member organization. If there is a difference in how the member organization views its level of 
participation in Algoma OHT, the Leadership Council will discuss a reasonable solution.  
 
Member Organizations will participate in the Algoma OHT as one of the following partnerships: 
 

 Core Partner Collaborative Partner Community 
Partner 

Sectors included 

Primary Care, Mental 
Health & Addictions, Acute 
Care, Home & Community 
Care Support Services, 
Home Care Providers 
Health Promotion, Social 
Services, Community 
Support Services, and Long 
Term Care 

Congregate Care, 
Palliative Care, 
Rehabilitative Services, 
Specialized Services, 
Pharmacies, NFP with 
marginalized or specialty 
populations, and 
Maamwesying OHT. 

Ontario Health 
North, relevant 
government 
ministries, 
Educational 
Institutions, 
Community PFACs, 
Advocacy Groups 

Strategic 
alignment 

Boards and leads agree to 
the vision and mission of 
the Algoma OHT. Strong 
alignment between 
organizational priorities 
and Algoma OHT strategy. 

Boards and leads agree to 
the vision and mission of 
the Algoma OHT. 
Organizational strategic 
direction is informed by 
the Algoma OHT 
direction. 

Understand the 
vision and mission of 
the Algoma OHT. 

Decision-making 
roles and 

responsibilities 

Directly involved in AOHT 
decision making. Provides 
strategic direction and 
prioritizes committee 
work. 

Makes recommendations 
and provides input and 
expertise. Participates in 
committees reporting to 
the Leadership Council. 

Is kept informed of 
Algoma OHT 
strategic directions 
and upcoming 
priorities. 

Page 44 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 5 - 
 

Accountabilities 
and resource 
allocations 

Assume leadership roles 
within AOHT committees 
and working groups.  
Commits resources to the 
AOHT (financial, human, 
communications, or in-
kind). 
Signs Fund Holder and 
Indemnity Agreement.* 

Participates in Algoma 
OHT committees and 
working groups based on 
expertise and alignment 
to organizational strategic 
direction. 

May participate or 
partner in Algoma 
OHT exploration, 
consultations and on 
working groups 
based on expertise. 

Commitments of 
membership 

Attending 80% Leadership 
Council meetings (including 
sending decision-making 
delegate). 
Leading AOHT committees 
and working groups. 

Attending 80% 
Leadership Council 
meetings (including 
sending decision-making 
delegate). 
Supporting AOHT 
committees and working 
groups. 

 

All Member organizations will review the Algoma OHT Terms of Reference outlined in Appendix 
1 for Algoma OHT Leadership Council Terms of Reference. 

1*Medicine Professional Corporations are not required to sign the Fund Holder Indemnity 
Agreement to be considered a Core Partner. 

Member Onboarding 

As a member organization of the Algoma OHT, in all levels of partnership, the member must 
agree to engaging with the Algoma OHT 
 
To become a member of the Algoma OHT will require the following three items: 

1. Resolution from the organization’s board of directors to join and adhere to the mission 
and vision of the Algoma OHT. If it is not reasonable to obtain a board resolution due to 
national boards, written commitment from senior leadership is sufficient.  

2. Declare the primary sector the organization is representing within the Algoma OHT.  

3. Senior leader to sign the Collaborative Decision Making Arrangement (CDMA). 
 

 Governance 
 
The Algoma OHT will be governed by member organizations who have signed as partners and 
agree to the vision and mission of the Algoma OHT. Leadership Council will be the decision 
making body of the Algoma OHT, composed of representatives from Core Member Organizations.  
An Executive Committee will chair the Leadership Council with collaboratives reporting into 
Leadership Council focusing on project work, ensuring a variety of voices and effective OHT 
performance. 

Page 45 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 6 - 
 

Leadership Council 

Member organizations will establish the Leadership Council as the collaborative decision making 
body of the Algoma OHT. Leadership Council will be composed of representatives from all core 
partners. The mandate, and processes of the Leadership Council are set out in the Algoma OHT 
Leadership Council Terms of Reference. 

Executive Committee 

Member organizations will establish the Executive Committee (Tri-Chairs) or the Algoma OHT. 
The tri-chair shall be elected by Leadership Council and will be composed of: 

1. Member of Leadership Council 
2. Primary Care Provider 
3. Patient/Client, Family or Caregiver 

 
Collaboratives 

To support the mission of the Algoma OHT, collaboratives will be established with membership 
from all partner types, but led by core partner representatives. Collaboratives will ensure that 
the critical work of the Algoma OHT is conducted in a representative and coordinated manner.  

Patient/Client, Family, and Caregiver Involvement 

Members of the Algoma OHT recognize the critical importance of patient and caregiver 
involvement in system transformation. Each member of the Algoma OHT will ratify within their 
organization the Patient, Family and Caregiver Declaration of Values for the Algoma OHT. 

Patient/Client, Family, and Caregiver advisors will be engaged in different ways: 

1. A Tri-Chair member will be a Patient/Client, Family, and Caregiver.  
2. Advisors will be included directly in projects and committee work to reflect co-design 

principles. 
3. Specific Patient, Family and Caregiver councils will be established based on Algoma OHT 

focused priorities and will support system-level work with a direct lens on primary care.  

To become a patient/client, family or caregiver advisor, the individual must respond to an 
Expression of Interest (EOI) initiated by the Algoma OHT. After receiving an EOI response, the 
individual will engage in a short interview process. If selected, the individual will be oriented and 
onboarded, which includes signing confidentiality agreements and attesting to the alignment 
with the Algoma OHT’s vision, mission and guiding principles.  

Consensus Based Decision-Making 

Members organizations of the Algoma OHT agree to adhere to a consensus based decision-
making model which values a fair and collaborative approach and reduces barriers to decision 

Page 46 of 124 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1FstewARsYTOzGcMACSyKBJFKOCvTH6aI/view?usp=sharing


- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 7 - 
 

making. Consensus based decision-making starts with the identification of an opportunity, 
followed by open discussion, deliberation and a recommendation based on the discussion. The 
meeting chair will then ask partners to decide on the recommendation using one of the following 
four responses: 

1. I support the recommendation;  

2. I have concerns, but can live with the recommendation;  

3. I have concerns and can live with the recommendation, but my organization will not 
implement or adopt the proposed solution within our policies, procedures, protocols, or 
services; or 

4. I cannot support the recommendation and modification to the proposal is necessary. 

If any Member Organization cannot support the decision (Number 4) or if 25% of the partners 
will not be able to implement the recommendation (Number 3), then the opportunity will be 
modified given the feedback provided by the partners. A reasonable number of modifications can 
be made before the proposal is determined to be abandoned.  

To ensure success of the consensus based decision-making model, the following principles must 
be followed: 

1. No votes - every Member Organization identifies their position using the model 

2. Meeting quorum of 50% + 1 of all core partners (or participant on a collaborative) before 
a recommendation can be decided upon 

3. All Member Organizations are expected to review recommendations with a person-
focused and system level perspective 

 

 Privacy 
 
For the purposes of the Algoma OHT: 

(a) The Member Organizations will share personal health information with one 
another for the purposes of providing health services, and coordinating its 
provision, in accordance with applicable laws. 

(b) Member Organizations will enter into a data sharing agreement in respect of 
sharing personal health information for all other purposes. 

Confidentiality  

Member Organizations shall not disclose any Confidential Information of another Member 
Organization to a third party, except:  with written consent of the relevant Member 
Organization;  to the extent that disclosure is necessary to meet applicable laws or governmental 

Page 47 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 8 - 
 

or public authority directives or other requirements; or  as permitted under the terms of this 
Agreement. 

Loss or Compromise of Confidentiality 

If a Member Organization discovers any loss or compromise of the Confidential Information of 
another Member Organization, it will notify the Member Organization promptly and cooperate 
with it to mitigate the loss or compromise. Upon request, each Member Organization shall return 
or destroy (with certification to the relevant Member Organization) all Confidential Information 
of the relevant Member Organization that it is not required to retain by applicable laws or other 
requirement. However, each Member Organization may, at its option, retain one copy of such 
Confidential Information in its files for archival purposes subject always to the obligations of 
confidentiality under this Agreement. Each Member Organization may use the Confidential 
Information of another Member Organization to exercise its rights and protect its interests under 
this Agreement and as required by applicable laws. For greater certainty, this provision applies 
to the Confidential Information of a Member Organization. Any loss or compromise of personal 
health information shall be addressed in accordance with applicable laws and any data sharing 
agreement entered into between and/or among the Member Organizations. 

Public Notices and Media Releases 

All notices to third parties and all other publicity concerning this Agreement or the Algoma OHT 
shall be planned, co-ordinated, and approved by the Leadership Council, and no Member 
Organization shall act unilaterally in this regard without the prior approval of the Member 
Organizations through the Leadership Council, except where required to do so by applicable laws 
or governmental or public authority requirements. The spokespersons for the Algoma OHT shall 
be such member or members of the Leadership Council as determined by the Leadership Council 
from time to time. 
 

 Dispute Resolution 
 
The Member Organizations shall use their best efforts to avoid disputes by clearly articulating 
expectations, establishing clear lines of communication, and respecting each Member 
Organization's interests. However, if a dispute arises, the Member Organizations shall follow the 
below-mentioned procedures, acting in good faith: 

(a) The Member Organizations shall engage in on-going communication and disclosure and 
shall provide information to each other and to the Leadership Council and its 
subcommittees and working groups to achieve the benefits of this Agreement. 

(b) Each Member Organization will try to eliminate, minimize, or mitigate any conflict 
between the Algoma OHT and its other contractual and service obligations and 
relationships outside of the Algoma OHT. 

Page 48 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 9 - 
 

(c) If a Member Organization becomes aware of any fact or circumstance that may harm that 
or another Member Organization's ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement 
or a Collaboration or Project Agreement, it will promptly notify the Leadership Council 
and the other Member Organizations of the nature of the fact or circumstance and its 
anticipated impact so that the Member Organizations through the Leadership Council 
may consider how to remedy, mitigate, or otherwise address the fact or circumstance. 

(d) The Member Organizations shall use their best efforts to resolve any disputes in a 
collaborative manner through informal discussion and resolution. To facilitate and 
encourage this informal process, the Member Organizations involved in the dispute shall 
use their best efforts to jointly develop a written statement describing the relevant facts 
and events and listing options for resolution. If these efforts do not lead to a resolution, 
any involved Member Organization shall refer it to the Leadership Council. 

(e) The Leadership Council shall work to resolve the dispute in an amicable and constructive 
manner. If the Leadership Council members have made reasonable efforts, and the 
dispute remains unresolved, the Leadership Council shall refer it to the Executive 
Committee (Tri-Chairs). 

(f) The Executive Committee (Tri-Chairs) shall work to resolve the dispute in an amicable and 
constructive manner. If the Tri-Chairs have made reasonable efforts, and the dispute 
remains unresolved, the Executive Committee (Tri-Chairs) shall appoint a third-party 
mediator. Each party to the mediation shall pay its own costs of mediation. The costs of 
the mediator shall be split equally between the parties in dispute; that is, as an example, 
if one Member Organization (“First Party”) is in dispute with all of the other Member 
Organizations (“Second Party”), then the costs of the mediator shall be split 50 % to the 
First Party and 50 % to the Second Party. 

(g) If a dispute cannot be resolved, as determined by any Member Organization after 
following these procedures, a Member Organization may withdraw from the applicable 
Project, Project Agreement, or this Agreement. 

 

 Term, Termination, Withdrawal, and Expulsion 
 
Term 

This Agreement shall start on the date of this Agreement and shall continue indefinitely, unless 
terminated. 

Termination of Agreement 

The Member Organizations may only terminate this Agreement by mutual written agreement. 

Page 49 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 10 - 
 

Withdrawal 

A Member Organization may withdraw from this Agreement by providing at least 90 days’ notice 
to the other Member Organizations. 

Expulsion 

A Member Organization may be expelled from the Algoma OHT, and thereby cease to be a party 
to this Agreement. Reasons for expulsion may include if the Member Organization is not meeting 
its commitments under this Agreement or a Project Agreement, no longer agrees to the vision of 
the Algoma OHT, or is disruptive to the consensual governing process at Leadership Council 
meetings. An expulsion may take place after following these procedures: 

(a) All of the Leadership Council members, other than the member representing the Member 
Organization at issue, must unanimously agree that expulsion is advisable. 

(b) Following such agreement, the Leadership Council members shall, in writing, notify the 
Member Organization at issue that it intends to recommend their expulsion to the other 
Member Organizations. 

(c) If reasonable in the circumstances, as determined by the Leadership Council members, 
the Member Organization may be provided with an opportunity to rectify the issue(s) 
within a time period reasonably directed by such Leadership Council members. 

(d) If it is not reasonable to allow for an opportunity for rectification or if rectification does 
not occur within the time period provided to the reasonable satisfaction of the other 
Leadership Council members, such Leadership Council members shall make a 
recommendation for expulsion to all of the other Member Organizations. 

(e) All of the Member Organizations, other than the Member Organization at issue, shall 
consider the recommendation and must, in writing through their authorized signatories, 
unanimously agree to the expulsion. Upon such written agreement, this Agreement shall 
be deemed amended to remove the expelled Member Organization as a party. 

(f) Submission to the dispute resolution procedures under this Agreement shall be a pre-
condition to expulsion. 

Consequences of Termination, Withdrawal or Expulsion 

(a) A Member Organization who withdraws or is expelled from this Agreement shall cease to 
be a party to this Agreement and shall cease to be a member of the Algoma OHT. 

(b) Termination of, or withdrawal or expulsion from, this Agreement shall not automatically 
constitute termination of, or withdrawal or expulsion from, any Project or Project 
Agreement. 

(c) Withdrawal from or termination of a Project or a Project Agreement shall not 
automatically constitute withdrawal from or termination of this Agreement or any other 
Project or Project Agreement, as the case may be. 

Page 50 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 11 - 
 

(d) A Member Organization who withdraws or is expelled from this Agreement or withdraws 
from a Project or Project Agreement, as the case may be, and shall remain accountable 
for its commitments and obligations, actions and omissions before the effective date of 
the withdrawal or expulsion and shall work with the Leadership Council to develop 
strategies to reasonably fill any resource or service gaps left by the withdrawing or 
expelled Member Organization. 

 

 General 
 
Independent Contractors 

The relationship between the Member Organizations under this Agreement is that of 
independent contractors. This Agreement is not intended to create a partnership, agency, or 
employment relationship between or among the Member Organizations. No Member 
Organization shall have the power or authority to bind another Member Organization or to 
assume or create any obligation or responsibility, expressed or implied, on another Member 
Organizations’ behalf or in its name, nor shall it hold itself out to any third party as a partner, 
agent, or employee of another Member Organization. Each Member Organization shall be 
responsible and liable for its own employees, agents, and subcontractors, unless otherwise 
agreed to in a Project Agreement. 

Notices  

Where in this Agreement a Member Organization must give or make any notice or other 
communication, it shall be in writing and is effective if delivered personally or sent by electronic 
means addressed to the intended Member Organization at the address set below its respective 
signature. Notice or communication shall be deemed received one Business Day after delivery or 
sending. The address of a Member Organization may be changed by notice as provided in this 
Section. “Business Day” means any working day, Monday to Friday, excluding statutory holidays 
observed in Ontario. 

Entire Agreement 

With respect to its subject matter, this Agreement contains the entire understanding of the 
Member Organizations and supersedes all previous negotiations, representations, 
understandings, and agreements, written or oral, between and among the Member 
Organizations respecting the subject matter of this Agreement. 

Amendment 

This Agreement may be amended only by mutual written agreement. If a change in law or a 
directive from the Minister of Health or other governmental or public authority necessitates a 
change in the manner of performing this Agreement, the Member Organizations shall work 
cooperatively to amend this Agreement to accommodate the change. A Project Agreement may 

Page 51 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 12 - 
 

be amended in accordance with the provisions of the Project Agreement without necessitating 
an Agreement amendment. 

Assignment 

No Member Organization may assign its rights or obligations under this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of the other Member Organizations. This Agreement inures to the benefit 
of and binds the Member Organizations and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Member Organization may assign this Agreement without 
consent in the event of an integration order of the Minister of Health. 

No Waiver 

No waiver of any provision of this Agreement is binding unless it is in writing and signed by the 
Member Organization entitled to grant the waiver. 

Severability 

Each provision of this Agreement is distinct and severable. Any declaration by a court of 
competent jurisdiction of the invalidity or unenforceability of any provision shall not affect the 
validity or enforceability of any other provision. 

Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 
to be original and all of which taken together constitutes one agreement.  Delivery of an executed 
counterpart of this Agreement electronically in legible form shall be equally effective as delivery 
of a manually executed counterpart of this Agreement. 

Governing Law 

This Project Agreement is governed by, and interpreted and enforced in accordance with, the 
laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada applicable in the Province of Ontario. 

Survival  

The following survive a Member Organization's withdrawal or expulsion from or termination of 
this Agreement:  

● Any information provided or data contributed to the work of the Algoma OHT prior to 
withdrawal or expulsion from or termination. 

● Identification as an Algoma OHT Member Organization previous to the date of withdrawal 
or expulsion from or termination. 

● Any financial or in-kind contribution will remain with the Algoma OHT. 

  

Page 52 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 13 - 
 

 Signatures 
 

The Member Organizations have executed this Agreement. 
 
IN WITNESS OF WHICH the Parties have signed and delivered this Agreement. 
 

Algoma Ontario Health Team 
 
Per:  _______________________________   
 
Name: Victoria Aceti Chlebus  
      
Title: Director, Integrated Care  
 
Pursuant to ‘Commitments’ we hereby sign this CDMA acknowledging and committing to the 
role of:  

 
☐Core Partner 

 
Or -  

 
 X Collaborative Partner  
 

 
Algoma Public Health 

 
Per:      _____________________________        Per:      _____________________________  
 
 
Name:    Name:    
      
 
Title:     Title:    

              I have authority to bind the company.                    I have authority to bind the company

Page 53 of 124 



 

 

 

 

 Appendix 1: Algoma OHT Leadership Council Terms of Reference 
 

Algoma Ontario Health Team (AOHT) Leadership Council 
Terms of Reference 

Background 
The Algoma Ontario Health Team (AOHT) was approved on the 23rd day of July, 2020 by the 
Minister of Health under the Connecting Care Act, 2019. This approval came with the intention 
to work together to achieve their shared vision of providing a continuum of integrated health, 
social and health promotion services to the persons to whom they provide care and services for 
the people of Algoma.  
 
1.1 Mandate: The Algoma Ontario Health Team (AOHT) has a vision for an integrated health 

system focused on the unique needs of Algoma residents; where people receive seamless, 
excellent care where and when they need it. The Leadership Council’s role is to provide a 
forum for its Members to plan, design, implement and oversee the AOHT. 

1.2 Vision: An integrated health system focused on the unique needs of Algoma residents; 
where people receive seamless, excellent care where and when they need it. 

1.3 Mission: The Algoma OHT will collaborate in a model of care that is person-centered, 
efficient and simplified for both individuals and providers. 

1.4 Guiding Principles 
 

People and 
inclusion 

• Engagements, planning and actions that are inclusive of diverse 
perspectives and needs of all people 

• Endeavour to attain perspectives of all relevant geographies and 
vulnerable populations 

• Design of population-based programing, aiming to improve health 
outcomes; acknowledging socio-demographic factors may put 
populations at greater risk 

• Provision of culturally sensitive and safe care 
• Commitment to engagement and reconciliation with the 

Indigenous population (e.g. development of work plan for 
enhanced cultural competency) 

• Commitment to both official languages (e.g. training opportunities 
and utilizations of resources and translation) 

Page 54 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 2 - 
 

Access, 
responsiveness, 

and empowerment 

• Focused efforts to improve health care equity, access and 
coordination 

• Person-centered and community-empowered decision-making and 
prioritization of needs and services 

• Commitment to responsiveness to individuals, families, partners 
and communities 

Efficiency and 
efficacy 

• Endeavour to remove waste and barriers within the system 
• Efforts to achieve collaborative solutions to identified gaps in 

services 
• Commitment to efficient, effective utilization and maximization of 

fiscal and human resources 
• Efforts to prevent redundancies and development of linkages to 

(and from) existing, relevant community tables/work 
groups/committees 

Partnership and 
behaviour 

• Demonstrations of mutual respect by all 
• Development of enhanced and trusting partnerships 
• Effective and transparent communication 

Knowledge and 
quality 

• Inclusion and analysis of relevant data and social determinants of 
health in planning, decision-making and continuous quality 
improvement efforts 

• Remain well-versed in Ontario Health’s Quality expectations 

Valuing of human 
resources 

• Commitment to improving work-life of AOHT’s collective 
workforce 

• Provision of shared educational opportunities for identified 
knowledge gaps 

 
Planning and Project Implementation 
● Establish an overall strategic plan for the AOHT and develop an annual work plan consistent 

with the strategic plan; 
● Identify and measure the priority populations for the AOHT and the impact of decisions on 

them; 
● Develop the name and central brand for the AOHT; 
● Identify, implement, and oversee Projects and Project Agreements; and 
● Ensure there is a commitment to share information, set joint performance targets, align 

service delivery and quality improvement for identified projects. 
 
Quality and Risk 
● Review, collaborate on, and monitor safety and quality standards and performance and 

quality improvement for the AOHT; 
● Identify risk issues and consider risk allocation, mitigation, and corrective actions for AOHT 

activities; 
● Develop a complaints and significant event process for issues that impact more than one 

Member; and 

Page 55 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 3 - 
 

● Develop a risk management process for issues that could negatively impact the AOHT. 
 

Resources and Accountability 
● Develop guidelines for the allocation and sharing of costs and resources, including funding 

earmarked for the AOHT as well as human resources, capital, and facilities and costs related 
to supporting the work of the AOHT; 

● Review and collaborate on financial performance, resource allocation and use, best 
practice, and innovation; 

● Develop clinical and financial accountability standards; 
● Determine Membership fees to be paid by Members, if any; and 
● Facilitate and oversee the development of a digital health strategy. 
 
Engagement and Reporting 
● Develop and implement a joint communications strategy, including communication to 

stakeholders and the community; 
● Engage people, families and communities to ensure meaningful partnership and co-design 

across all OHT initiatives; 
● Engage with and seek input from Members and Networks; 
● Ensure engagement at a board to board level among Members; and 
● Report from time to time to Members on the work of the Leadership Council and any 

subcommittees and working groups. 
 
Governance and Compliance 
● Evaluate and identify areas of improvement in the integrated leadership and governance 

structure of the AOHT on an ongoing basis, including the establishment of a standardized 
process to identify and admit additional Members to the AOHT; 

● As part of efforts to set up a long-term governance structure for the OHT, engage the 
boards of each respective Member Organization to: 

o understand what it means to have a duty to an integrated local health system that 
serves the residents of Algoma 

o prioritize steps towards collaborative governance in the first year of operation 
o consider possible long-term options for collaborative governance; 

● Discuss compliance with, and amendments to, these Terms of Reference, the Framework, 
or a Project Agreement; 

● Facilitate dispute resolution; and 
● Ensure compliance with all reporting requirements. 
 
Integration 
● Act as a forum for the defined geographic area to support any potential voluntary or 

involuntary integration initiatives ordered by the Ministry of Health and 
● Develop recommendations vis-à-vis proposed integrations. 
 
 

Page 56 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 4 - 
 

Other 
● Perform the roles assigned to the Leadership Council under the Framework. 
 
Membership 
The Leadership Council shall be a representative group across Algoma, that includes both 
organizational and independent-level representation.  
 
Member Organizations will participate as contributing partners to the Algoma OHT mission, 
vision, and guiding principles. Contributing partners will be classified as one of three types of 
partners: core, collaborative or community.  
 
Partnership types will be first determined by the primary sector served as identified by the 
member organization. If there is a difference in how the member organization views its level of 
participation in Algoma OHT, the Leadership Council will discuss a reasonable solution.  
 

 Core partner Collaborative partner Community partner 

Sectors included 

Primary Care, Mental 
Health & Addictions, 
Acute Care, Home & 
Community Care 
Support Services, 
Home Care Providers 
Health Promotion, 
Social Services, 
Community Support 
Services, and Long 
Term Care 

Congregate Care, 
Palliative Care, 
Rehabilitative 
Services, Specialized 
Services, Pharmacies, 
NFP with marginalized 
or specialty 
populations, and 
Maamwesying OHT. 

Ontario Health 
North, relevant 
government 
ministries, 
Educational 
Institutions, 
Community PFACs, 
Advocacy Groups 

Strategic alignment 

Boards and leads 
agree to the vision 
and mission of the 
Algoma OHT, strong 
alignment between 
organizational 
priorities and Algoma 
OHT strategy. 

Boards and leads 
agree to the vision 
and mission of the 
Algoma OHT. 
Organizational 
strategic direction is 
informed by 
the Algoma OHT 
direction. 

Understand the 
vision and mission 
of the Algoma OHT. 

Decision-making 
roles and 

responsibilities 

Directly involved in 
AOHT decision 
making. Provides 
strategic direction 
and prioritizes 
committee work. 

Makes 
recommendations and 
provides input and 
expertise. Participates 
in committees 
reporting to the 
Leadership Council. 

Is kept informed of 
Algoma OHT 
strategic directions 
and upcoming 
priorities. 

Page 57 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 5 - 
 

Accountabilities and 
resource allocations 

Assume leadership 
roles within AOHT 
committees and 
working groups.  
Commits resources 
to the AOHT 
(financial, human, 
communications, or 
in-kind).  
Signs the Fund 
Holder and 
Indemnity 
Agreement.*  

Participates in Algoma 
OHT committees and 
working groups based 
on expertise and 
alignment to 
organizational 
strategic direction. 

May participate or 
partner in Algoma 
OHT exploration, 
consultations and 
on working groups 
based on expertise. 

Commitments of 
membership 

Attending 80% 
Leadership Council 
meetings (including 
sending decision-
making delegate). 
Leading AOHT 
committees and 
working groups. 

Attending 80% 
Leadership Council 
meetings (including 
sending decision-
making delegate). 
Supporting AOHT 
committees and 
working groups. 

 

1*Medicine Professional Corporations are not required to sign the Fund Holder Indemnity 
Agreement to be considered a Core Partner. 

2.1 Tri-Chairs 
The Leadership Council shall have a Tri-Chair model, which is elected for a two-year term by the 
majority vote of the Leadership Council. It should strike a balance representing administrative, 
clinical and patient leadership for the AOHT. The Tri-Chairs may alternate the meeting chair 
responsibilities, at their discretion and fully participate in deliberations as well as decision-
making. 

In addition to chairing responsibilities; the Tri-Chairs are responsible for: 
● Acting on behalf of the Leadership Council (as the Executive Committee) in-between 

regularly scheduled meetings, including bringing those decisions (as information items) to 
the Leadership Council 

● Preparing meeting agendas, including a governance calendar for future items 
● Ensuring appropriate engagement of members and the regular evaluation of the 

governance model for the AOHT 
● Providing day-to-day guidance, management and mentorship to the Administrative Director 

of the AOHT (Director, Integrated Care) 

2.2 Meetings 
Meetings shall be held at a minimum quarterly, and where possible be scheduled in advance 
according to a governance calendar. Ad hoc meetings may be called by the Tri-Chairs or at the 

Page 58 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 6 - 
 

request of a minimum of 3 Members. Agendas will be sent in advance and indicate whether 
items are for information, discussion or approval. In an effort to foster transparency, guests are 
welcome to participate in all meetings, except for in-camera portions, but may not vote. 

2.3 Quorum 
Quorum will be a majority of Members, who may be present in-person or virtually. If a Member 
is not able to attend, the Member may send an alternate (who may count for quorum and 
vote). If quorum is not present, the Members present may meet for discussion purposes only 
and no decisions shall be made. 
 
2.5 Minutes 
Meeting minutes will document deliberations and recommendations. All minutes will be 
available as part of the AOHT repository that may be accessed by the public, except for any 
confidential or in-camera discussions. Discussion during meetings shall be open, frank, and free-
flowing, and while contents of minutes will be shared, they will not include attribution of 
individual contributions. 

CONSENSUS BASED DECISION MAKING 
Unless otherwise specified approval of the Leadership Council, decisions will be made by 
consensus. Consensus means that each member is prepared to support the decision or, if 
applicable, recommend it to their board of directors, organization, or respective members, as 
the case may be, even if they do not agree with the decision/recommendation. In the event of a 
tie a majority vote by the tri-chairs will constitute the tie breaker. Moreover, all projects and 
initiatives moving forward require approval via vote of the lead (sponsor) organization. As such, 
Leadership Council cannot compel an organization to lead or act as the sponsoring organization 
of an initiative without its approval. 
 
Member Organizations agree to adhere to a consensus based decision-making model, which 
values a fair and collaborative approach and reduces barriers to decision making. Consensus 
based decision-making starts with the identification of an opportunity, followed by open 
discussion, deliberation and a recommendation based on the discussion. The meeting chair will 
then ask partners to decide on the recommendation using one of the following four responses: 

1. I support the recommendation;  
2. I have concerns, but can live with the recommendation;  
3. I have concerns and can live with the recommendation, but my organization will not 

implement or adopt the proposed solution within our policies, procedures, protocols, or 
services; or 

4. I cannot support the recommendation and modification to the proposal is necessary. 

If any Member Organization cannot support the decision (Number 4) or if 25% of the partners 
will not be able to implement the recommendation (Number 3), then the opportunity will be 
modified given the feedback provided by the partners. A reasonable number of modifications can 
be made before the proposal is determined to be abandoned.  

Page 59 of 124 



- Section 1: Collaborative Decision Making Agreement - 

 

- 7 - 
 

To ensure success of the consensus based decision-making model, the following principles must 
be followed: 

1. No votes - every Member Organization identifies their position using the model 
2. Meeting quorum of 50% + 1 of all core partners (or participant on a collaborative)before 

a recommendation can be decided upon 
3. All Member Organizations are expected to review recommendations with a person-

focused and system level perspective 

3.1 Annual Planning and Budgeting 
The Leadership Council is responsible for creating an annual plan which will guide the activities 
of the OHT and delegate resources by the AOHT Transformation Office to support the 
deliverables. The budget will align with the annual plan to ensure there are appropriate 
resources to support the activities. An annual plan and aligned Implementation Fund budget 
will be approved by the Leadership Council prior to the beginning of the fiscal year.  

3.2 Fund Manager 
The Leadership Council shall, by majority vote, select a Member Organization to be a “Fund 
Manager” (for a term to be agreed) to, as directed by the Leadership Council receive, manage, 
distribute and keep accurate accounts of, pooled resources, including funding earmarked for 
the AOHT. The Administrative Director of the AOHT will be responsible for managing the funds, 
in accordance with the Fund Manager’s policies and procedures, as well as ensuring that any 
funds are in accordance with the strategic priorities set out by the Leadership Council. The Fund 
Manager will submit financial reports and retain financial records for at least seven years. 

3.3 Subcommittees and Working Groups 
The Leadership Council has an Executive Committee that is comprised of the Tri-Chairs. 

The Leadership Council may establish one or more subcommittees or working groups / action 
teams to assist it in fulfilling its role. The Leadership Council shall determine the mandate and 
composition of any such subcommittee or working group.  

CONFIDENTIALITY 
The Leadership Council members shall recognize that from time-to-time its members may have 
access to confidential information. All members are to respect the confidentiality of information 
received by, and discussions of, the Leadership Council that are identified as confidential or as 
part of in-camera discussions. 

Policies 
The Leadership Council may adopt policies, protocols and procedures to support the work of 
the Leadership Council and its subcommittees and working groups. 

Review and Amendment 
These Terms of Reference will be reviewed annually by the Leadership Council and may be 
amended with written agreement of the Leadership Council.

Page 60 of 124 



 

 

 

 

Page 61 of 124 



 
 

23 rue des Pins  C.P. / P.O. Box 367, Dubreuilville, Ontario, Canada   P0S 1B0 
 (705) 884-2340    (705) 884-2626   township@dubreuilville.ca   www.dubreuilville.ca  utm 16u68176 5358011 

 

November 22, 2024 
 
 

Algoma Public Health Board of Health 

294 Willow Ave 

SSM, On P6B 0A9  
 

 
RE: Public Health Funding Review  

At its regular meeting of November 13, 2024, our Municipal Council passed the following resolution: 
 
 

24-237  Moved by:     Councillor K. Lévesque  
                        Seconded by: Councillor J. Hemphill 

Whereas that the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Dubreuilville hereby wish to receive and 
approve the attached resolution dated September 25, 2024, from the Algoma Public Health Board of Health with 
regards to a request for support concerning the Public Health Funding Review and development of an equitable 
funding approach that delivers equitable per capita funding that takes into account public health agencies in the 
northern Ontario and their unique perspectives and circumstance, as presented. 

 

        Carried 

 

Sincerely, 
 
 

 

Lynne Blanchette  
Office Coordinator 
 

Enclosures Resolution No. 24-237 

 

Page 62 of 124 

mailto:township@dubreuilville.ca
http://www.dubreuilville.ca/


Page 63 of 124 



APH Board of Health Resolution 

MOTION: 2024-98 Northern MOH Letter on Funding Review 
DATE: September 25, 2024 
MOTION MOVED BY: D. Graystone
SECONDED BY: M. Shoemaker

Whereas the Office of the Chief Medical Officer of Health and the Ministry of Health is undertaking a 
review of the funding approach for local public health agencies; and  

Whereas residents of Northern Ontario in general have poorer health outcomes compared to their 
southern counterparts, including a more than 50% higher average avoidable mortality rate in 
Northern Ontario1, and a 64% higher avoidable mortality rate in Algoma specifically2; and 

Whereas the Perspectives from Northern Ontario on the Public Health Funding Review letter outlines 
many of the equity considerations related to the funding approach for local public health agencies in 
northern Ontario; 

Therefore Be It Resolved that the Board of Health for Algoma Public Health endorses the 
aforementioned letter; and  

Further That the letter be shared with: 

• local municipalities
• district Members of the Provincial Parliament
• alPHa
• Northern Health Units
• Dr. Kieran Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health & Assistant Deputy Minister
• Liz Walker, Executive Lead, Office of the Chief Medical Officer of Health
• Colleen Kiel, Director, Public Health Strategic Policy, Planning and Communications Branch
• Brent Feeney, Director, Accountability and Liaison Branch
• Fiona Kouyoumdjian, Associate Chief Medical Officer of Health
• Wajid Ahmed, Associate Chief Medical Officer of Health

Motion:     Carried ☐      Defeated ☐

1 Public Health Ontario, "Potentially Avoidable Mortality Health Equity Snapshot," [Online]. Available: 
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Health-Equity/Avoidable-Mortality-Health-Inequities. [Accessed 
29 July 2024].  
2 Algoma Public Health. Algoma's Community Health Profile [Internet]. Sault Ste. Marie, Ontario: Algoma Public Health; 
2024. Available from: www.algomapublichealth.com/CHP 

BOARD OF HEALTH 

Page 64 of 124 



1  

 August 16, 2024 

To: Kieran Moore 
Chief Medical Officer of Health & Assistant Deputy Minister 

From: Medical Officers of Health 
for the 7 Northern Ontario Local Public Health Agencies 

Subject: Perspectives from Northern Ontario for the Public Health Funding Review 

 
We are writing to you as the seven local public health agencies in Northern Ontario to share 
some perspectives unique to the North regarding the current Public Health Funding review. 

Before we outline our perspectives, we do wish to note our support of the government 
undertaking a funding review. It has been our perspective, and that of the local public health 
field, that a funding approach that enables stable and predictable funding is needed so that 
we can adequately plan and deliver our services. 

We understand that the provincial government is quite concerned by the difference in per 
capita funding between local public health agencies. We agree, this is something needing to 
be addressed, but that the goal should not be equal (per capita) funding across local public 
health agencies, but rather equitable funding which accounts for the circumstances of each 
health unit. 

The following are some equity considerations that can strengthen and improve the validity 
of the funding approach for public health in Northern Ontario. 

For clarity, our comments are intended to relate only to the base funding grants; we do not 
intend to make comment on the Unorganized Territories Fund, which we believe requires its 
own review (we welcome the opportunity for further discussion of this at a future date). 

 

Considerations for Funding Public Health in Ontario 

1. Geography 
Northern Ontario has much larger service areas than in the rest of the province. 
Northern Ontario spans 90% of Ontario’s land mass, but has only a minority of the 
province’s population. [1] That has major implications in terms of service delivery: 

Page 65 of 124 



2  

• Our staff must travel long distances to deliver service. That has implications in 
both transportation costs as well as opportunity costs of staff time. Inflationary 
pressures have exacerbated these costs. 

• Given some of our communities are very remote and inaccessible by roads, travel 
in many cases is not just by car, but by charter flight or boat. This further 
increases our travel costs.1 

• Since the populations we serve in Northern Ontario are distributed over a large 
area, we do not benefit from the population density that facilitates economies of 
scale. That means we must plan and organize a service many times over. In 
Northern Ontario, we have 142 municipalities plus many other communities in 
unorganized territories, as well as First Nations communities, If delivering a 
vaccination program, for example, a northern local public health agency must 
plan, organize, travel, set-up, and deliver clinics in many locations, taking into 
account the lack of public transportation in and between most northern 
communities. These clinics will ultimately serve fewer people and cannot take 
advantage of the economies of scale possible in a southern Ontario city where 
only 2 or 3 fixed locations might be need. 

• Our rural geography impacts the nature of services we must deliver as well. For 
example, since much more of our populations are living in rural and remote areas 
as compared to the rest of the province, we are much more involved with 
inspecting small drinking water systems and private drinking water testing. Unlike 
a municipality in southern Ontario that may have a few large municipal water 
treatment plants that aren’t inspected by local public health, northern 
communities have a plethora of small drinking water systems that do need 
regular inspections. This adds significant costs to our budgets to travel to and 
conduct inspections as well as to transport well water samples to the lab. As 
well, even where a community may be on municipally treated water, these are 
smaller plants befitting the size of the municipalities without large public works 
departments operating them. Larger municipalities enjoy economies of scale 

 

1 While it may be argued that the Unorganized Territories Grant accounts for serving this population, and this 
does not impact the broader funding approach, we highlight (1) that some fly-in/boat-in communities are 
organized municipalities (e.g. Moosonee), and (2) in 2008, when local public health associations were asked 
to account for their true costs of delivering services to unorganized territories, it was concluded that costs 
were 99% higher than what the Unorganized Territory Grant provided [15], and so the cost-shared budget 
heavily supported delivery of services to these communities. Since 2008, the Unorganized Territory Fund has 
increased 41.3% [15] while cumulative CPI in Ontario has increased 47.1% [16], implying that the role of cost- 
shared funding has increased since then, especially after accounting for population growth. 

Page 66 of 124 



3  

from running large plants that foster expertise and sophistication, and 
comparably lower maintenance costs. Most northern Ontario municipalities 
don’t enjoy these economies of scale, resulting in more common problems and 
interruptions to operations, and so more involvement by public health to assess 
risk, monitor water quality, and issue boil water advisories, and drinking water 
advisories. 

• Technology, which may sometimes allow bridging distance through virtual 
delivery of services, is often not possible in Ontario’s North or is very expensive to 
support. In 2023, the Canadian Government-sponsored Northern Ontario 
Broadband Report [2] found that only 26% of Northern Ontario communities met 
the standard of 50% of the population of the community having 10/50 Mbps 
internet speed. In many communities, and particularly spaces between them, 
mobile phone service is also spotty. The residents we serve in Northern Ontario 
therefore frequently do not have the ability to be served virtually. 

2. Breadth, Diversity, and Complexity of Populations and Partners 
The vast land area of the North also brings with it greater diversity in a few different 
dimensions: 

• The North has 32% (142/444) of Ontario municipalities, but only 20.5% (7/34) of 
Ontario’s health units. 

• The North has 107 of the 134 First Nations Communities in Ontario (80%), and 
78% of the on reserve population in Ontario (recognizing that the Census is an 
undercount of Indigenous population, so these numbers may underrepresent the 
true number). [3] Alongside these populations are Band Councils and Indigenous 
organizations with whom we engage to ensure we can provide services in a way 
that is welcome and meaningful, while navigating complex jurisdictional 
ambiguity. 

• People in the North have much lower socio-economic standing. Between 2009 
and 2018 Northern Ontario had an annual average of GDP growth [1] of 0.1% 
compared to 1.7% for Ontario as a whole [4]. Other social determinants of health 
track similarly in Northern Ontario, and so health outcomes are worse. For 
example, in 2021 if looking at Mortality from Avoidable Causes [5], the Northern 
health units had an average avoidable mortality of 323 deaths per 100,000 versus 
204 for the rest of Ontario. In fact, the seven Northern health units rank in the top 
8 health units for avoidable mortality, and occupy all of the top six positions. 
Worse social determinants of health put a greater burden on Northern local 

Page 67 of 124 



4  

public health agencies in terms of the number of clients needing our intervention, 
and the efforts we need to invest per person to mitigate inequities. 

• For Indigenous populations in particular, in Ontario the median income for First 
Nations people living on reserve is $32,400, $44,000 for those living off reserve, 
and $50,400 for non-Indigenous people. [6] Similarly, “Low income” status is 
more prevalent among Indigenous people who live on reserve (33.7%) and off 
reserve (16.9%) compared to non-Indigenous people (9.9%). [7] With 78% of the 
on reserve Indigenous population of Ontario, this is a significant pressure on 
Northern local public health budgets. 

• Northern Ontario has disproportionately more Francophones and French 
Designated Areas (Figure 1), legally obligating more resources be devoted to 
translation and to ensuring provision of French-language services. Public Health 
must also engage with Francophone communities and organizations who are 
numerous across the large Northern geography. 

 

 
Figure 1. Designated French Language Areas in Ontario. [8] 

Page 68 of 124 



5  

The implication of this breadth and diversity of our populations and our partners is 
that it multiplies our workload: we have more municipal, Indigenous, and other 
partners with whom to engage; and we must meet people where they are with 
respect to language, Indigenous status, and social determinants of health, and 
invest in mitigating these. These are challenges not experienced as acutely in other 
parts of the province. 

In addition, when attempting to work upstream, the complex patchwork of partners, 
many of whom are not well-funded, pose challenges to building coherent coalitions 
to advance advocacy or policy change for improvement of upstream health 
determinants. 

3. Health Care Gaps 
Northern Ontario is unfortunately lacking in health and dental care capacity. 
According to Ontario’s Health Care Experience Survey for December 2019 (most 
recent results available) [9], 6.7% of Ontarians lacked a primary care provider, but 
that increased to 11.7% of residents of the North West LHIN and 11.8% of the North 
East LHIN. The Northern Sub-region reached as high as 29.0% of residents lacking a 
primary care provider. 

In part, this is a function of primary care providers delivering acute care in much of 
Northern Ontario. In the North, family physicians routinely cover emergency 
departments, handle most obstetrics, are the primary surgical assists, and support 
long-term care, often working at multiple sites in a week. 

It often falls to local public health to fill the gaps in primary care. For example, 
looking at the Fall 2023/24 COVID-19 vaccination program, pharmacies did not have 
the capacity to provide vaccinations in the North to the extent they did in the rest of 
the province (44.7% of vaccinations delivered by pharmacies in the North compared 
to 73.9% of vaccinations province-wide). Northern Public health units filled that gap, 
delivering 43.2% of COVID-19 vaccinations as compared to 15.7% Ontario-wide. 
Indeed, the six public health units with the lowest pharmacy delivery were all in 
Northern Ontario, and all 7 Northern Ontario PHUs were in the bottom 10 PHUs for 
pharmacy share of COVID-19 vaccinations. Despite the lack of pharmacy 
participation, Northern local public health agencies achieved above average 
vaccination coverage (17.9% to provincial average of 15.8%) through our efforts. 

Page 69 of 124 



6  

Table 1 Fall 2023/24 COVID-19 Vaccination Delivery [10] [11] 
 

Public Health Unit Proportion of 
Vaccines Delivered 
by Pharmacy 

Proportion of 
Vaccines 
Delivered by 
Primary Care 

Proportion of 
Vaccines 
Delivered by 
Public Health 

Coverage 
Achieved 

Ontario 73.9% 4.4% 15.7% 15.8% 
Northern PHUs 44.7% 5.4% 43.2% 17.9% 
Porcupine 21.2% 2.2% 66.0% 13.3% 
Northwestern 16.2% 3.4% 71.8% 17.0% 
Timiskaming 24.0% 12.3% 57.9% 17.2% 
Algoma 65.4% 10.0% 18.6% 19.6% 
Thunder Bay District 39.7% 8.5% 44.2% 19.9% 
North Bay Parry Sound 48.8% 2.0% 43.8% 19.2% 
Sudbury & Districts 54.8% 2.6% 36.9% 17.1% 

Similar gaps in in primary health care capacity impact other program areas such as 
child health programming, sexual health programming, infectious disease 
programming, and rabies post-exposure prophylaxis. 

Gaps in primary care can also increase rapidly with the closure of a single clinic or 
provider group. For example, in 2024, Sault Ste Marie experienced a dramatic 
announcement that 10,000 patients (8% of the entire health unit’s population) would 
be de-rostered from their primary healthcare provider due to one provider group 
having difficulty recruiting primary care providers to replace retirements. [12] 

There is also a lack of specialists in the North. Ontario’s Health Care Experience 
Survey [9] shows that 65.2% of Ontarians must wait longer than 30 days for 
specialist care. However, that increases to 72.3% of residents in the North West 
LHIN and 73.8% of those in the North East LHIN. These specialist care gaps create 
particular challenges for public health follow-up. For example, in the follow-up and 
care of tuberculosis clients or syphilis infections, both of which have increased in 
incidence since the pandemic, most Northern communities do not have infectious 
disease specialists to oversee care, and primary care providers lack experience with 
these diseases. It falls on public health, who has some expertise from following all 
cases of these infections, to guide the health care system in care of such clients. 
This is not the norm in the rest of Ontario where greater clinical expertise exists. 

Page 70 of 124 



7  

4. Municipal Capacity 
Just as local public health agencies struggle with the lack of economies of scale 
when delivering services to rural and remote populations, it should be observed that 
municipalities experience these same challenges with their services. Adding in the 
relatively lower economic opportunities in the North, Northern municipalities 
therefore have property tax bases that are very stretched. This makes it 
comparatively difficult for them to contribute to cost-shared funding of local public 
health. This should be considered in the obligation placed on municipalities in a new 
funding approach. 

We believe all of the above make it more costly to deliver local public health in Northern 
Ontario, and that needs to be taken into account in the new funding approach. 

We also wish to make a couple of comments on measures and metrics which may seem 
sensible to apply in the funding approach, but which have weaknesses when used for 
Northern geographies. 

 

Caution on Applying Measures in Northern Ontario 

1. Census Undercounting of Indigenous Populations 
It is known that many Indigenous people do not complete the Canadian Census, and 
so the Census’s counts for Indigenous population are significant undercounts 
throughout Northern Ontario. [12] 

For example, the Health Counts Kenora project (Our Health Counts - WNHAC) used 
a respondent driven sampling approach and demonstrated that 76.9% of Indigenous 
people in the City of Kenora did not complete the 2016 census [7]. Using a 
conservative approach, “the Canadian Census undercounts Indigenous adults and 
children living in Kenora by at least 2.6 to 4.0 times.” The 2016 Canadian Census 
reports that 3,155 Indigenous people lived in the City of Kenora; the 2021 Census 
reported 3,595. Both Thunder Bay and Timmins have also conducted similar counts 
and found significant undercounts. 

As a population known to experience disproportionate health inequities, it is 
important that any new funding approach factor in the undercount of Indigenous 
peoples in the Census, and that this undercount is of a population that deserves 
disproportionate public health resources invested to address their health inequities. 

Page 71 of 124 



8  

In particular, as a new funding approach attempts to account better for population 
growth over time, it needs to be addressed that Northern Ontario is seeing significant 
growth in populations not well captured by the Census, such as Indigenous, 
anabaptist, and newcomer populations. 

2. Inapplicability of ON-Marg in low population areas 
The Ontario Marginalization Index is based on analysis at the Census dissemination 
area. Unfortunately, for much of Northern Ontario, there isn’t sufficient population to 
have data for dissemination areas. For example, in Northwestern health unit, of 229 
constituent dissemination areas, 101 (44%) have no data. Therefore, these areas are 
ignored in ON-Marg calculations. These areas that are excluded from ON-Marg 
calculations have many First Nation communities with low socioeconomic status 
and high deprivation, and so their exclusion has the impact of skewing ON-Marg 
metrics for Northern Ontario to appear less marginalized than is the reality. 

Where dissemination areas do have data, that data is not always reliable. For 
example, on First Nations communities, the Low Income Measure input to ON-Marg 
has a flag of caution on interpretation, which means that the material deprivation 
dimension of ON-Marg should similarly be used in caution when looking at First 
Nations communities. The Northern public health units share land with 107 of the 
134 First Nation communities in Ontario. 

We appreciate that designing a funding approach for a diverse and complex group of local 
public health agencies is no easy task. 

At its core, our fundamental message is that if a funding approach is to truly advance health 
outcomes and health equity across the province, health equity must be foundational in its 
design, and not be simply a variable included amongst many others. Metrics like per capita 
funding are attractive for their simplicity and ease of understanding. But that clarity in fact 
masks the complexities of serving Ontarians who are not uniform statistical units, but who 
live within diverse social contexts defined by countless inequities. We seek a funding 
approach that delivers not equal per capital funding, but equitable per capital funding. 

We thank you for the consideration of the issues raised in this letter as you undertake the 
challenge of developing an equitable funding approach. 

We would be very pleased to meet in the near future to discuss our perspectives further, 
and how we can support your team as the funding review proceeds. 

And we look forward to there being an opportunity to review a funding proposal in the 
coming months before a final version is submitted for government approval. 

Page 72 of 124 



9  

Sincerely, 

 

 
Lianne Catton (Aug 21, 2024 09:39 EDT) 

 
 Glenn Corneil  
Glenn Corneil (Aug 19, 2024 08:59 EDT) 

 

Lianne Catton 
Medical Officer of Health & CEO, Porcupine 
Health Unit 

Glenn Corneil 
Acting Medical Officer of Health & CEO, 
Timiskaming Health Unit 

 
Janet DeMille 
Medical Officer of Health & CEO, Thunder 
Bay District Health Unit 

 
M. Mustafa Hirji 
Acting Medical Officer of Health & CEO, 
Public Health Sudbury & Districts 

  
 

 
Kit Ngan Young Hoon 
Medical Officer of Health, Northwestern 
Health Unit 

John Tuinema (Aug 16, 2024 19:11 EDT) 

John Tuinema 
Acting Medical Officer of Health & CEO, 
Algoma Public Health 

Carol Zimbalatti (Aug 17, 2024 16:33 EDT) 

Carol Zimbalatti 
Medical Officer of Health & EO, North Bay 
Parry Sound District Health Unit 

 

 
 
 

 
CC: 

Liz Walker, Executive Lead, Office of the Chief Medical Officer of Health 
Colleen Kiel, Director , Public Health Strategic Policy, Planning and Communications Branch 
Brent Feeney, Director , Accountability and Liaison Branch 
Fiona Kouyoumdjian, Associate Chief Medical Officer of Health 
Wajid Ahmed, Associate Chief Medical Officer of Health 

Page 73 of 124 



10  

References 
[1] Innovation, Science and Economic Development Canada, "Evaluation of the Northern Ontario 

Development Program (canada.ca).," January 2022. [Online]. Available: 
https://fednor.canada.ca/en/evaluation-northern-ontario-development-program. [Accessed 28 
July 2024]. 

[2] Blue Sky Economic Growth Corporation, "Northern Ontario Broadband Report 2023 - 
Connected North," May 2023. [Online]. Available: https://connectednorth.ca/northern-ontario- 
broadband-report-2023/. [Accessed 26 July 2024]. 

[3] Ministry of Indigenous Relations and Reconciliation, "Indigenous peoples in Ontario | In the 
Spirit of Reconciliation: Ministry of Indigenous Relations and Reconciliation’s first 10 years | 
ontario.ca," 29 March 2018. [Online]. Available: https://www.ontario.ca/document/spirit- 
reconciliation-ministry-indigenous-relations-and-reconciliation-first-10-years. [Accessed 2 May 
2022]. 

[4] Ministry of Finance, "2019 Ontario Economic Outlook and Fiscal Review | Economic Data 
Tables," 6 November 2019. [Online]. Available: 
https://budget.ontario.ca/2019/fallstatement/ecotables.html#t2. [Accessed 26 July 2024]. 

[5] Public Health Ontario, "Potentially Avoidable Mortality Health Equity Snapshot," [Online]. 
Available: https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Health-Equity/Avoidable- 
Mortality-Health-Inequities. [Accessed 29 July 2024]. 

[6] Statistics Canada, 2021 Census.. 

[7] M. H. D. L. Kit Young Hoon, Considerations for the funding formula for local health units, 
Northwestern Health Unit Briefing Note, July 5, 2024. 

[8] Government Services in French. Ministry of Francophone Affairs, "Map highlighting the French 
Designated Areas in Ontario," 31 May 2024. [Online]. Available: 
https://files.ontario.ca/ofa_designated_areas_map_en.pdf. [Accessed 25 July 2024]. 

[9] Ontario Health, "Health Care Experience Survey—Full Report," 31 December 2019. [Online]. 
Available: Ministry of Health Visual Analytics Hub. [Accessed 7 August 2024]. 

[10] Ministry of Health, COVID-19 Vaccination Program: Weekly Report, 2024. 

[11] Ministry of Health, COVID-19 Vaccination Program: Weekly Report, 2024. 

[12] "Community Update Regarding Primary Care. Group Health Centre.," 25 January 2024. [Online]. 
Available: https://ghc.on.ca/featured/community-update-regarding-primary-care-2/. [Accessed 
9 August 2024]. 

[13] "Indigenous people in Toronto badly undercounted by census, but experts hopeful for change | 
CBC News," 30 September 2022. 

[14] Funding Review Working Group, "Public Health Funding Model for Mandatory Program: The Final 
Report of the Funding Review Working Group, Ministry of Health, 2013. 

[15]  Statistics Canada, “Price Trends: 2014to Today,” [Online]. Available: https://www150.statcan.gc/pub/ 
          71-607-x/2018016/cpilg-ipcgl-eng.htm.[Accessed 14 August 2024]. 
 

 

Page 74 of 124 

http://www.ontario.ca/document/spirit-
http://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Health-Equity/Avoidable-


  

 
December 5, 2024 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
 
Mayor Paul Lefebvre 
Mayor of Greater Sudbury 
PO BOX 5000, Station 'A', 
200 Brady St. 
Sudbury, ON  P3A 5P3 
 
Dear Mayor Lefebvre: 
 
Re:  Calling for the Selection of Indigenous Municipal and Provincial 

Appointees for Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts 
 
On behalf of the Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts, I am 
writing to inform you of a recently adopted Board motion that calls for the 
appointment of Indigenous person(s) to the Board of Health when vacancies 
arise. Specifically, at its meeting on June 20, 2024, the Board of Health carried 
the following motion # 41-24, 
 

WHEREAS the Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts is 
committed to ensuring all people in its service area, including 
Indigenous peoples and communities, have equal opportunities for 
health; and, 

 
WHEREAS on June 15, 2023, the Board of Health passed Motion #37-23 
Indigenous Engagement Governance Reconciliation Framework which 
supports the advancement of the Indigenous Engagement Strategy at 
the governance level; and, 

 
WHEREAS Public Health Sudbury & Districts Indigenous Engagement 
Strategy’s Strategic Direction 1 led to a commitment to promote the 
selection of Indigenous municipal and provincial appointees to the 
Board of Health; 

 

Page 75 of 124 

https://www.phsd.ca/about/board-health/motions-approved-sudbury-district-board-health/indigenous-engagement-governance-reconciliation-framework-motion-37-23/
https://www.phsd.ca/about/board-health/motions-approved-sudbury-district-board-health/indigenous-engagement-governance-reconciliation-framework-motion-37-23/


Mayor Paul Lefebvre 
December 5, 2024 
Page 2 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Health call upon the municipalities in 
the service area to advocate for the appointment of qualified Indigenous persons, 
who are grounded in community, have lived experience, are from this territory and 
reside in Public Health Sudbury & Districts; and 
 
THAT the Board of Health call upon the municipalities in the service area to appoint 
qualified Indigenous persons, who are grounded in community, have lived 
experience, are from this territory and reside in Public Health Sudbury & Districts, 
where more than one representative appointment exists; and 
 
THAT the Board of Health call upon the Province of Ontario to appoint qualified 
Indigenous persons, who are grounded in community, have lived experience, are 
from this territory and reside in Public Health Sudbury & Districts. 

 
In Public Health Sudbury & District’s service area, the total population of Indigenous people 
is 27,600, which is 14% of the population of the district. Of these individuals, 5,700 reside in 
the 13 First Nations communities in the district. The remaining are considered urban 
Indigenous people.1 Indigenous people disproportionately experience “poorer reported 
physical and mental health status, and a higher prevalence of chronic conditions (e.g., 
asthma and diabetes) as well as disabilities compared to non-Indigenous people” (Hahmann 
& Kumar, 2022; Hahmann et al., 2019). In addition, the life expectancy of First Nations 
people, Métis and Inuit has been shown to be consistently and significantly lower than that 
of the non-Indigenous population (Tjepkema et al., 2019),” 2 as a direct result of the 
Canadian government’s colonial policies, which have had a reverberating impact on today’s 
systems.  
 
The Board of Health, which governs Public Health Sudbury & Districts, plays a crucial role in 
addressing the health disparities faced by the Indigenous population. Its primary focus on 
planning and policy development, fiscal arrangements and labour relations, and 
accountability and reporting to the Ministry, positions it with a responsibility in this issue. 
The Board of Health’s endorsement of The Indigenous Engagement Governance 
ReconciliAction Framework in June 2023 was a significant step in our commitment to 
reconciliation. The framework’s first strategic direction is to inform our work through 
Indigenous community voices and information. The Board understands that it is imperative 
to the health of Indigenous peoples that an appropriate representative participate when 
decisions about Indigenous peoples are made. Having Indigenous representation on the 
Board of Health, will ensure alignment with this commitment. We also hope that it will 

 
1 Statistics Canada (2022) 2021Census 
2 Yangzom, K., Masoud, H., & Hahmann, T. (2023). Primary health care access among First Nations 
people living off reserve, Métis and Inuit, 2017 to 2020. Ottawa, Canada: Statistics Canada. Primary 
health care access among First Nations people living off reserve, Métis and Inuit, 2017 to 2020 
(statcan.gc.ca) 

Page 76 of 124 

https://www.phsd.ca/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Indigenous_Engagement_ReconciliAction_Framework_2023.pdf
https://www.phsd.ca/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Indigenous_Engagement_ReconciliAction_Framework_2023.pdf
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/n1/en/pub/41-20-0002/412000022023005-eng.pdf?st=cahhYO9r
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/n1/en/pub/41-20-0002/412000022023005-eng.pdf?st=cahhYO9r
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/n1/en/pub/41-20-0002/412000022023005-eng.pdf?st=cahhYO9r


Mayor Paul Lefebvre 
December 5, 2024 
Page 3 
 
contribute to answering the Truth and Reconciliation: Call to Action 23, which calls upon all 
levels of government to “Increase the number of [Indigenous] professionals working in the 
health-care field.” 3  
 
As the only municipal council that can appoint more than one member to the Board of 
Health, the City of Greater Sudbury considering an Indigenous municipal appointee to the 
Board of Health when a vacancy arises is of particular salience. Public Health would be 
happy to provide a list of candidates for consideration when a vacancy arises. 
 
Thank you for your ongoing partnership, including as we work towards reconciliation with 
Indigenous peoples.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
René Lapierre 
Chair, Board of Health 
 
cc: Dr. M. M. Hirji, Acting Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
 Dr. Kieran Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health, Ministry of Health 

Dr. Fiona Kouyoumdjian, Associate Chief Medical Officer of Health, Office of the Chief 
Medical Officer of Health, Ministry of Health 

 Nicole Visschedyk, Director of Indigenous Strategy and Engagement,Public Health 
Ontario 

Ontario Boards of Health 
 

 
3 National Center for Truth and Reconciliation. (2015). Truth and Reconciliation Commission of Canada: 
Calls to Action. https://ehprnh2mwo3.exactdn.com/wp-
content/uploads/2021/01/Calls_to_Action_English2.pdf  
 

Page 77 of 124 

https://ehprnh2mwo3.exactdn.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Calls_to_Action_English2.pdf
https://ehprnh2mwo3.exactdn.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Calls_to_Action_English2.pdf
https://ehprnh2mwo3.exactdn.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Calls_to_Action_English2.pdf


  

 
December 5, 2024 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
 
Honourable Minister Sylvia Jones 
Minister of Health 
Ministry of Health 
5th Floor, 777 Bay Street 
Toronto, ON M5G 2C8 
 
Dear Minister Jones: 
 
Re:  Calling for the Selection of Indigenous Municipal and Provincial 

Appointees for Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts 
 
On behalf of the Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts, I am 
writing to inform you of a recently adopted Board motion that calls for the 
appointment of Indigenous person(s) to the Board of Health when vacancies 
arise. Specifically, at its meeting on June 20, 2024, the Board of Health carried 
the following motion # 41-24,  
 

WHEREAS the Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts is 
committed to ensuring all people in its service area, including 
Indigenous peoples and communities, have equal opportunities for 
health; and, 
 
WHEREAS on June 15, 2023, the Board of Health passed Motion #37-23 
Indigenous Engagement Governance Reconciliation Framework which 
supports the advancement of the Indigenous Engagement Strategy at 
the governance level; and, 

 
WHEREAS Public Health Sudbury & Districts Indigenous Engagement 
Strategy’s Strategic Direction 1 led to a commitment to promote the 
selection of Indigenous municipal and provincial appointees to the 
Board of Health; 

  

Page 78 of 124 

https://www.phsd.ca/about/board-health/motions-approved-sudbury-district-board-health/indigenous-engagement-governance-reconciliation-framework-motion-37-23/
https://www.phsd.ca/about/board-health/motions-approved-sudbury-district-board-health/indigenous-engagement-governance-reconciliation-framework-motion-37-23/


Minister Jones 
December 5, 2024 
Page 2 

 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Health call upon the municipalities in 
the service area to advocate for the appointment of qualified Indigenous persons, 
who are grounded in community, have lived experience, are from this territory and 
reside in Public Health Sudbury & Districts; and 

 
THAT the Board of Health call upon the municipalities in the service area to appoint 
qualified Indigenous persons, who are grounded in community, have lived 
experience, are from this territory and reside in Public Health Sudbury & Districts, 
where more than one representative appointment exists; and 

 
THAT the Board of Health call upon the Province of Ontario to appoint qualified 
Indigenous persons, who are grounded in community, have lived experience, are 
from this territory and reside in Public Health Sudbury & Districts. 

 
In Public Health Sudbury & District’s service area, the total population of Indigenous people 
is 27,600, which is 14% of the population of the district. Of these individuals, 5,700 reside in 
the 13 First Nations in the district. The remaining are considered urban Indigenous people.1 
Indigenous people disproportionately experience “poorer reported physical and mental 
health status, and a higher prevalence of chronic conditions (e.g., asthma and diabetes) as 
well as disabilities compared to non-Indigenous people” (Hahmann & Kumar, 2022; 
Hahmann et al., 2019). In addition, the life expectancy of First Nations people, Métis and 
Inuit has been shown to be consistently and significantly lower than that of the non-
Indigenous population (Tjepkema et al., 2019),” 2 as a direct result of the Canadian 
government’s colonial policies, which have had a reverberating impact on today’s systems.  
 
The Board of Health, which governs Public Health Sudbury & Districts, plays a crucial role in 
addressing the health disparities faced by the Indigenous population. Its primary focus on 
planning and policy development, fiscal arrangements and labour relations, and 
accountability and reporting to the Ministry, positions it with a responsibility in this issue. 
The Board of Health’s endorsement of The Indigenous Engagement Governance 
ReconciliAction Framework, in June 2023 was a significant step in our commitment to 
reconciliation. The framework’s first strategic direction is to inform our work through 
Indigenous community voices and information. The Board understands that it is imperative 
to the health of Indigenous peoples that appropriate representatives are present when 
decisions about Indigenous peoples are made. Having Indigenous representation on the 
Board of Health, will ensure alignment with this commitment. We also hope that it will 

 
1 Statistics Canada (2022) 2021Census 
2 Yangzom, K., Masoud, H., & Hahmann, T. (2023). Primary health care access among First Nations 
people living off reserve, Métis and Inuit, 2017 to 2020. Ottawa, Canada: Statistics Canada. Primary 
health care access among First Nations people living off reserve, Métis and Inuit, 2017 to 2020 
(statcan.gc.ca) 

Page 79 of 124 

https://www.phsd.ca/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Indigenous_Engagement_ReconciliAction_Framework_2023.pdf
https://www.phsd.ca/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Indigenous_Engagement_ReconciliAction_Framework_2023.pdf
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/n1/en/pub/41-20-0002/412000022023005-eng.pdf?st=cahhYO9r
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/n1/en/pub/41-20-0002/412000022023005-eng.pdf?st=cahhYO9r
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/n1/en/pub/41-20-0002/412000022023005-eng.pdf?st=cahhYO9r


Minister Jones 
December 5, 2024 
Page 3 

 

contribute to answering the Truth and Reconciliation: Call to Action 23, which calls upon all 
levels of government to “Increase the number of [Indigenous] professionals working in the 
health-care field.” 3  
 
There is currently one vacancy for a provincial appointee to our Board of Health according 
to the Public Appointments Secretariat4. We request that your Ministry appoint an 
Indigenous Provincial appointee to this Board of Health position. Doing so would help 
advance reconciliation immensely, while also improving the health of a key population 
group. To facilitate such an appointment, we request that the Public Appointments 
Secretariat begin to advertise that position, noting a requirement for applicants to be of 
Indigenous background. Public Health will be pleased to work with local Indigenous 
candidates to encourage them to submit applications through the Public Appointment 
Secretariat.  
 
Should your government wish to explore this further, we would be pleased to meet with the 
Chief Medical Officer of Health’s team or others within your Ministry, as well as the Public 
Appointments Secretariat to begin to move this forward. 
 
Thank you to your government for its commitment to improving the health of Indigenous 
people, and your partnership as we work towards reconciliation.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
René Lapierre 
Chair, Board of Health 
 
cc: Dr. M. M. Hirji, Acting Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
 Dr. Kieran Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health, Ministry of Health 

Dr. Fiona Kouyoumdjian, Associate Chief Medical Officer of Health, Office of the 
Chief Medical Officer of Health, Ministry of Health 

 Public Appointment Secretariat 

 
3 National Center for Truth and Reconciliation. (2015). Truth and Reconciliation Commission of Canada: 
Calls to Action. https://ehprnh2mwo3.exactdn.com/wp-
content/uploads/2021/01/Calls_to_Action_English2.pdf  
 
4 Public Appointments Secretariat: Health Unit Board—Sudbury and District. 
https://www.pas.gov.on.ca/Home/Agency/316 

Page 80 of 124 

https://ehprnh2mwo3.exactdn.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Calls_to_Action_English2.pdf
https://ehprnh2mwo3.exactdn.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Calls_to_Action_English2.pdf
https://ehprnh2mwo3.exactdn.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Calls_to_Action_English2.pdf


Minister Jones 
December 5, 2024 
Page 4 

 

 Nicole Visschedyk, Director of Indigenous Strategy and Engagement,Public Health 
Ontario 

 France Gélinas, Member of Provincial Parliament, Nickel Belt 
 Jamie West, Member of Provincial Parliament, Sudbury 
 Michael Mantha, Member of Provincial Parliament, Algoma – Manitoulin 
 Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
 Ontario Boards of Health 
 

Page 81 of 124 



MIDDLESEX-LONDON BOARD OF HEALTH 

REPORT NO. 82-24 

TO: Chair and Members of the Board of Health 

FROM: Dr. Alexander Summers, Medical Officer of Health 
Emily Williams, Chief Executive Officer 

DATE: 2024 December 12 

MONITORING FOOD AFFORDABILITY AND 
IMPLICATIONS FOR PUBLIC POLICY AND ACTION (2024) 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Board of Health: 
1) Receive Report No. 82-24 re: “Monitoring Food Affordability and Implications for Public

Policy and Action 2024” for information; and
2) Direct staff to forward Report No. 82-24 re: “Monitoring Food Affordability and

Implications for Public Policy and Action 2024” to Ontario boards of health, the City of
London, Middlesex County, and appropriate community agencies.

Background 
Food insecurity, defined as inadequate or insecure access to food due to financial constraints, is 
a key social determinant of health1. Food insecurity is a strong predictor of poor health and is 
associated with an increased risk of a wide range of physical and mental health challenges, 
including chronic conditions, non-communicable diseases, infections, depression, anxiety, and 
stress2-9 (Appendix A). Poor diet quality costs Ontario an estimated $5.6 billion annually in direct 
healthcare and indirect costs (e.g., lost productively due to disability and premature mortality)10. 

As a result of systemic and structural inequities, racism, and colonization, food insecurity 
disproportionately affects certain populations1,11,12. Higher rates of food insecurity are found 
among Indigenous People, Black people, recent immigrants, female lone parent led households, 
low-income households, and other marginalized populations1. Although households whose main 

Report Highlights 
• In 2023, 1 in 4 households in Middlesex-London were food insecure. This is a statistically

significant increase from 2022.
• Local food affordability monitoring is a requirement of the Ontario Public Health Standards.
• The 2024 Ontario Nutritious Food Basket results demonstrate decreased food affordability

and inadequate incomes to afford basic needs for many Middlesex-London residents.
• Food insecurity has a pervasive impact on health; and there is a need for income-based

solutions.

Page 82 of 124 

https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/82-24_-_appendix_a_-_references.pdf
https://files.ontario.ca/moh-ontario-public-health-standards-en-2021.pdf


2024 December 12                                         - 2 -  Report No. 82-24 

   
 

income is from social assistance have the highest rate of food insecurity, 58.6% of food 
insecure households in Ontario rely on wages, salaries, or self-employment as their main 
income1. 
 
Routine monitoring of food affordability helps generate evidence-based recommendations for 
collective public health action to address food insecurity which is often tied to income 
inadequacy. The Ontario Public Health Standards require monitoring local food affordability as 
mandated in the Population Health Assessment and Surveillance Protocol, 2018. The Ontario 
Nutritious Food Basket (ONFB) is a survey tool that measures the cost of eating as represented 
by current national nutrition recommendations and average food purchasing patterns. The 
Ontario Dietitians in Public Health (ODPH), in collaboration with Public Health Ontario (PHO) 
develops, tests, and updates tools for monitoring food affordability for Ontario public health 
units. The costing tool uses a hybrid model of in-store and online data collection.   
 
Local Food Insecurity 
In 2023, 1 in 4 households in Middlesex-London were food insecure (25.1%, CI 21.8-28.4%)13 
(Appendix B). The rate was higher than in Ontario and the Peer Group comparator (i.e., mainly 
urban centres with moderate population density); however, this was not a statistically significant 
difference. The 2023 rate represents a statistically significant increase from 2022; and the 
highest rate reported in Middlesex-London since the Canadian Income Survey started 
measuring food insecurity in 2019. In 2022, 1 in 6 households in Middlesex-London were food 
insecure (17.5%, CI 14.1-20.9%)13. Local food insecurity rates are not yet available for 2024. 
 
Nearly 44,000 more Middlesex-London residents lived in food insecure households in 2023 as 
compared to 202213,14. An estimated 151,477 residents lived in food insecure households in 
Middlesex-London in 2023, as compared to 107,835 residents in 202213,14.  
 
Local Food Affordability 
Local food and average rental costs from May 2024 are compared to a variety of household and 
income scenarios, including households receiving social assistance, minimum wage earners, 
and median incomes (Appendix C, Appendix D). The scenarios include food and rent only and 
are not inclusive of other needs (i.e., utilities, Internet, phone, transportation, household 
operations and supplies, personal care items, clothing etc.). The household scenarios highlight 
that incomes and social assistance rates are not keeping pace with the increased cost of living. 
 
A key indicator for food insecurity is the average monthly cost of a nutritious diet as a proportion 
of household income. Households with low incomes spend up to 47% of their after-tax income 
on food, whereas households with adequate incomes (family of 4) only spend approximately 
12% of their after-tax income.  
 
Comparing the monthly funds remaining after rent and food costs in 2024 to 2023 for various 
household scenarios illustrates that specific scenarios are falling further behind each year and 
provides evidence for the impact of income-based policy changes on food affordability.  
  

Page 83 of 124 

https://files.ontario.ca/moh-ontario-public-health-standards-en-2021.pdf
https://files.ontario.ca/moh-population-health-assessment-surveillance-protocol-2018-en.pdf
https://www.odph.ca/
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/82-24_-_appendix_b_-_middlesex-london_statistics.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/82-24_-_appendix_c_-_middlesex-london_income_and_cost_of_living_scenarios_for_2024.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/82-24_-_appendix_d_-_food_insecurity_infographic.pdf


2024 December 12                                         - 3 -  Report No. 82-24 

   
 

Scenario Monthly Funds 
Remaining  

After  
Rent and Food Costs 

Income-Based Policy 

2023 2024 
Single Person 
ODSP 

-$186 -$172 As of July 2023, ODSP rate increases are 
indexed to Ontario’s Consumer Price Index. 

Single Person 
OW 

-$420 -$522 OW rate increases are not indexed to inflation.      

Family of 4 
Minimum Wage 

$1,351 $1,579 As of 2015, under the Employment Standards 
Act, minimum wage rates are set and adjusted 
annually based on changes to Ontario’s 
Consumer Price Index in the previous year. 

Family of 4 
Refugee 
Claimants 
Minimum Wage  

N/A $310 Refugee claimants are not eligible for the 
Canada Child Benefit. A refugee claimant is a 
person who left their country and is asking for 
protection in another country because it is 
unsafe to return to their home country.   

ODSP = Ontario Disability Support Program   
OW = Ontario Works 
 
Monitoring food affordability data and methodology details, including cost adjustments required 
to compare the 2023 and 2024 scenarios, are included in Appendix C.   
 
Public Health Action  
Annually, the Health Unit monitors and reports on local food affordability, the impact of health 
inequities due to food insecurity, effective strategies to reduce these inequities, and shares this 
information with the municipalities, the public, and community partners.  
 
Living wages help to protect individuals against food insecurity. A living wage is the hourly wage 
a full-time worker needs to earn to afford basic expenses and participate in community life. In 
Middlesex-London, the 2024 living wage was $19.50 per hour15, an increase from $18.85 in 
2023 and as compared to the Ontario minimum wage of $17.20. Local food costs, as estimated 
utilizing the ONFB, are shared with the Ontario Living Wage Network and used to calculate our 
regional living wage. The Health Unit re-certified as a living wage employer in 2024. 
 
Over the past year, the Board of Health: 
• Sent a letter to the federal government in support of S-233 and C-223 “An Act to develop a 

national framework for a guaranteed livable basic income” (Report No. 49-24). The Board’s 
letter was endorsed by Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge District Health Unit and 
Peterborough Public Health.  

• Sent a letter to the provincial government to advocate for increased social assistance rates 
in regards to the affordability of food (Report No. 25-23 Minutes).  

 
The Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) endorsed ODPH-sponsored 
resolutions that included advocacy to the Province of Ontario to: 
• Support income-related policies to reduce food insecurity, especially for households with 

children (A24-05) 
• Utilize food affordability monitoring results from public health units in determining the 

adequacy of social assistance rates to reflect the current costs of living and to index Ontario 
Works rates to inflation (A23-05) 

Page 84 of 124 

https://www.ontario.ca/document/your-guide-employment-standards-act-0
https://www.ontario.ca/document/your-guide-employment-standards-act-0
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/82-24_-_appendix_c_-_middlesex-london_income_and_cost_of_living_scenarios_for_2024.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/letter_of_support_from_the_middlesex-london_board_of_health_-_bills_s-233_and_c-223.pdf
https://www.parl.ca/legisinfo/en/bill/44-1/s-233
https://www.parl.ca/legisinfo/en/bill/44-1/c-223
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/49-24_-_support_for_an_act_to_develop_a_national_framework_for_a_guaranteed_livable_basic_income.pdf
https://www.hkpr.on.ca/media/pf1grlf5/boh-basic-income-bill-s233-c223-briefing-note_2024-final.pdf
https://www.peterboroughpublichealth.ca/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/240904-BOH-Agenda-comms.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/2023-04-20-boh-minutes
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/05207F74-08DC-484F-9C98-FD296C7C6771/alPHa_Letter_A24-5_Child_Food_Security_180724.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/4C5810B5-60FF-4134-9160-042E4E5D506E/A23-05_Food_Affordability.pdf


2024 December 12                                         - 4 -  Report No. 82-24 

   
 

• Legislate targets for reduction of food insecurity as part of Ontario’s plan for poverty 
reduction (A23-05) 

 
Next Steps 
Health Unit staff are exploring the development of a municipal primer on food insecurity as an 
important public health and local issue and actions municipalities can take to address it.  
 
The ODPH Food Insecurity Workgroup and PHO are collaborating on a provincial food 
affordability report planned for release February 2025. The report will include various household 
and income scenarios utilizing data submitted by Ontario public health units, health outcomes of 
food insecurity, and discussion of income-based solutions. 
 
Continued work is needed to address food insecurity and its significant health and well-being 
implications. MLHU can continue to highlight the need for upstream income-based solutions and 
changes and programs that address both food affordability and access. 
  
This report was written by the Municipal and Community Health Promotion Team of the Family 
and Community Health Division. 
 
   

     
 
Alexander Summers, MD, MPH, CCFP, FRCPC          Emily Williams, BScN, RN, MBA, CHE          
Medical Officer of Health          Chief Executive Officer 
 

 

This report refers to the following principle(s) set out in Policy G-490, Appendix A: 
• The Population Health Assessment and Surveillance Protocol, 2018; and 

the Chronic Disease Prevention and Well-Being and Healthy Growth and 
Development standards, as outlined in the Ontario Public Health 
Standards: Requirements for Programs, Services and Accountability. 

• The following goal or direction from the Middlesex-London Health Unit’s Strategic Plan: 
o Our public health programs are effective, grounded in evidence and equity 

 
This topic has been reviewed to be in alignment with goals under the Middlesex-London 
Health Unit’s Anti-Black Racism Plan and Taking Action for Reconciliation, specifically 
recommendations: 
 
Anti-Black Racism Plan Recommendation #37: Lead and/or actively participate in healthy 
public policy initiatives focused on mitigating and addressing, at an upstream level, the 
negative and inequitable impacts of the social determinants of health which are priority for 
local ACB communities and ensure the policy approaches take an anti-Black racism lens.   
 
Taking Action for Reconciliation Supportive Environments: Establish and implement policies to 
sustain a supportive environment, as required, related to the identified recommendations.  
 

Page 85 of 124 

https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/4C5810B5-60FF-4134-9160-042E4E5D506E/A23-05_Food_Affordability.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/strategic-plan
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/19-21_appendix_a_anti-black_racism_plan_final.pdf
https://www.healthunit.com/uploads/taking-action-for-reconciliation-an-organizational-plan-for-mlhu.pdf


References 

1 Li T, Fafard St-Germain AA, Tarasuk V. (2023). Household food insecurity in Canada, 2022. Toronto: 
Research to identify policy options to reduce food insecurity (PROOF). Retrieved from 
https://proof.utoronto.ca/. 

2 Jessiman-Perreault G, McIntyre L. (2017). The household food insecurity gradient and potential 
reductions in adverse population mental health outcomes in Canadian adults. SSM - Population Health, 
3:464-472.  

3 Vozoris, NT, Tarasuk VS. Household food insufficiency is associated with poorer health. (2003). The 
Journal of Nutrition, 133(1):120-126. 

4 Tarasuk V, Mitchell A, McLaren L, et al. (2013). Chronic physical and mental health conditions among 
adults may increase vulnerability to household food insecurity. The Journal of Nutrition, 143(11):1785-
1793. 

5 Men F, Gundersen C, Urquia ML, et al. (2020). Association between household food insecurity and 
mortality in Canada: a population-based retrospective cohort study. Canadian Medical Association 
Journal, 192(3):E53-E60. 

6 McIntyre, L, Williams, JV, Lavorato, DH, et al. (2013). Depression and suicide ideation in late 
adolescence and early adulthood are an outcome of child hunger. Journal of Affective Disorders, 
150(1):123-129. 

7 Kirkpatrick, SI, McIntyre, L, & Potestio, ML. (2010). Child hunger and long-term adverse consequences 
for health. Archives of Pediatrics and Adolescent Medicine, 164(8):754-762. 

8 Melchior, M, Chastang, J F, Falissard, B, et al. (2012). Food insecurity and children’s mental health: A 
prospective birth cohort study. PLoS ONE, 2012;7(12):e52615. 

9 Ontario Dietitians in Public Health. (2020). Position statement and recommendations on responses to 
food insecurity. Retrieved from https://www.odph.ca/odph-position-statement-on-responses-to-food-
insecurity-1. 

10 CCO and Ontario Agency for Health Protection and Promotion (Public Health Ontario). The burden of 
chronic diseases in Ontario: key estimates to support efforts in prevention. Toronto: Queen’s Printer for 
Ontario; 2019. Retrieved from 
https://www.ccohealth.ca/sites/CCOHealth/files/assets/BurdenCDReport.pdf.  

11 Dietitians of Canada. (March 2024). Dietitians of Canada position statement on household food 
insecurity in Canada. Retrieved from https://www.dietitians.ca/DietitiansOfCanada/media/Images/DC-
Household-Food-Insecurity-Position-Statement_2024_ENG.pdf.  

12 BC Centre for Disease Control. (2023). Food costing in BC 2022: Assessing the affordability of healthy 
eating. Vancouver, BC.: BC Centre for Disease Control, Population and Public Health Program. 
Retrieved from http://www.bccdc.ca/Documents/Food_Costing_in_BC_2022_Report_FINAL.pdf.  

13 Ontario Agency for Health Protection and Promotion (Public Health Ontario). Snapshots data file for 
household food insecurity (2019 to 2023 (annual, 2-year combined, 3-year combined). Retrieved from 
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Health-Equity/Household-Food-Insecurity. 

Report No. 82-24: Appendix A

Page 86 of 124 

https://proof.utoronto.ca/
https://www.odph.ca/odph-position-statement-on-responses-to-food-insecurity-1
https://www.odph.ca/odph-position-statement-on-responses-to-food-insecurity-1
https://www.ccohealth.ca/sites/CCOHealth/files/assets/BurdenCDReport.pdf
https://www.dietitians.ca/DietitiansOfCanada/media/Images/DC-Household-Food-Insecurity-Position-Statement_2024_ENG.pdf
https://www.dietitians.ca/DietitiansOfCanada/media/Images/DC-Household-Food-Insecurity-Position-Statement_2024_ENG.pdf
http://www.bccdc.ca/Documents/Food_Costing_in_BC_2022_Report_FINAL.pdf
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Health-Equity/Household-Food-Insecurity


 
14 Statistics Canada. (2024). Table: 17-10-0148-01. Population estimates, July 1, by census metropolitan 
area and census agglomeration, 2021 boundaries. Retrieved from 
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/tv.action?pid=1710014801.  
 
15 Coleman, A. (November 2024). Onario Living Wage Network: Calculating Ontario's living wages. 
Retrieved from 
https://assets.nationbuilder.com/ontariolivingwage/pages/110/attachments/original/1731935587/Calculati
ng_Ontario's_Living_Wages_-_2024.pdf?1731935587.  
 

Report No. 82-24: Appendix A

Page 87 of 124 

https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/tv.action?pid=1710014801
https://assets.nationbuilder.com/ontariolivingwage/pages/110/attachments/original/1731935587/Calculating_Ontario's_Living_Wages_-_2024.pdf?1731935587.
https://assets.nationbuilder.com/ontariolivingwage/pages/110/attachments/original/1731935587/Calculating_Ontario's_Living_Wages_-_2024.pdf?1731935587.


Reference: Ontario Agency for Health Protection and Promotion (Public Health Ontario). Snapshots data 

file for household food insecurity (2019 to 2023 (annual, 2-year combined, 3-year combined). Retrieved 

from https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Health-Equity/Household-Food-

Insecurity. 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

P
er
ce
n
t

Year

Household Food Insecurity, by Year 2019 to 2023, Middlesex-
London Health Unit.

Indicator Year Geography 

Per

cent 

(%) 

95% 

Confidence 

Interval 

(Lower) 

95% 

Confidence 

Interval 

(Upper) 

Margin 

of 

Error 

Food insecure 

(household level) 2019 

Middlesex-London 

Health Unit 17.2 12.5 21.8 4.6 

Food insecure 

(household level) 2020 

Middlesex-London 

Health Unit 14.7 10.1 19.3 4.6 

Food insecure 

(household level) 2021 

Middlesex-London 

Health Unit 18.5 13.2 23.7 5.3 

Food insecure 

(household level) 2022 

Middlesex-London 

Health Unit 17.5 14.1 20.9 3.4 

Food insecure 

(household level) 2023 

Middlesex-London 

Health Unit 25.1 21.8 28.4 3.3 

Report. 82-24: Appendix B

Page 88 of 124 

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Health-Equity/Household-Food-Insecurity
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Health-Equity/Household-Food-Insecurity


Middlesex-London Income and Cost of Living Scenarios for 2024 

Income Source 
Monthly 
Income1 

Monthly Rent2 / 
% Income  

Monthly Food3 / 
% Income  

What’s 
Left?4

2024 

What’s 
Left?4,5 

2023 
Single Person  
Ontario Works $881 $988 112% $415 47% -$522 -$420 

Single Person 
Ontario Disability 
Support Program 

$1,465 $1,222 83% $415 28% -$172 -$186 

Single Pregnant Person 
Ontario Disability 
Support Program 

$1,505 $1,222 81% $440 29% -$157 -$170 

Single Person 
Old Age 
Security/Guaranteed 
Income Security 

$2,069 $1,222 59% $296 14% $551 $553 

Single Parent with 2 
Children 
Ontario Works 

$2,670 $1,523 57% $890 33% $257 $309 

Family of 4 
Ontario Works $2,908 $1,734 60% $1,194 41% -$20 -$15 

Family of 4 
Minimum Wage 
Earner (full-time) 

$4,507 $1,734 38% $1,194 26% $1,579 $1,351 

Family of 4  
Median Income 
(after tax) 

$9,685 $1,734 18% $1,194 12% $6,757 $6,475 

Family of 4 Refugee 
Claimants 
Minimum Wage 
Earner (full-time) 

$3,238 $1,734 54% $1,194 37% $310 N/A 

The household scenarios spreadsheet is prepared annually by Ontario Dietitians in Public Health (ODPH) 
to support Ontario public health units to monitor local and provincial food affordability. 

What’s Left?4 

People still need additional funds for childcare, utilities, Internet, phone, tenant insurance, transportation, 
household operations and supplies, personal care items, clothing, school supplies, gifts, recreation and 
leisure, out of pocket medical and dental costs, education, savings, and other costs. 

Income 1 

WoodGreen Community Services calculated the incomes for each scenario. 

Income estimates for each scenario include all family and tax benefit entitlements available to Ontario 
residents (e.g., Climate Action Incentive Payment, Ontario Trillium Benefit, Canada Child Benefit, 
GST/HST credit, Canada Worker Benefit). Individual incomes may be lower if individuals do not file 
their income tax and/or do not apply for all available credits and benefits.  

Report No. 82-24: Appendix C

Page 89 of 124 

https://www.odph.ca/
https://www.woodgreen.org/


 
The main income for each scenario was estimated for May/June 2024. The exception is median income 
obtained from Statistics Canada, as the most recent data are from 2022. Combined Ontario median 
income for couples with children was utilized, with deductions made for income tax, Employment 
Insurance, and Canada Pension Plan.  
 
Rent 2 

 

Average apartment rental costs are estimates based on the Canadian Mortgage and Housing Corporation 
(CMHC) Ontario Rental Market Report. CMHC provides a consistent data source with a known 
methodology. CMHC does not publish a statistic if its reliability is too low or if publication would violate 
confidentiality rules. However, CMHC’s data likely underestimate local rental costs, and as a result the 
amount of funds remaining for each scenario would likely be lower and the percentage attributable to rent 
would be higher.  
 
The Rental Market Survey is conducted in urban areas with populations of 10,000 or more. The survey 
includes both new and existing units in privately initiated structures with at least 3 rental units. The cost 
for a new tenant would likely be higher, as current tenants are protected from large annual increases by 
Ontario’s residential rent increase guideline.  
 
Utility costs (e.g., heat, electricity, hot water) may or may not be included in the rental amounts.  
 
CMHC cost estimates were for October 2023. Cost estimates were adjusted for inflation using the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) for shelter in Ontario for the estimated increase from October 2023 to May 
2024. 
 
Accommodation size for most scenarios was selected based on suitability as defined by the National 
Occupancy Standard (NOS). The standard includes various criteria, including a maximum of 2 people per 
bedroom. Most scenarios utilize 1, 2, or 3-bedroom apartments, depending on the household size and 
composition. Exceptions were made for 2 scenarios where the suitable accommodation size may not be 
realistic due to what is available or affordable. The scenario with a single person receiving Ontario Works 
is costed with a bachelor apartment. The scenario with a single parent with 2 children receiving Ontario 
Works was costed with a 2-bedroom apartment.  
 
Food3  
 

Food costs are calculated using the Ontario Nutritious Food Basket (ONFB), which is based on the 
National Nutritious Food Basket (NNFB). The ONFB survey tool is revised annually by ODPH, in 
collaboration with Public Health Ontario (PHO). The ONFB measures the cost of basic eating that 
represents current nutrition recommendations and average food purchasing patterns. 
 
The NNFB is based on Canada’s Food Guide, national food intake data, and Dietary Reference Intakes 
(DRIs). The NNFB and Canada’s Food Guide are not inclusive for all religious and cultural groups. The 
ONFB does not reflect sourcing of traditional Indigenous foods. These are significant limitations of this 
data collection and may limit the generalizability and relevance of the food costs to different population 
groups. 
 
London Food Bank volunteers and a Western University Dietetic Practicum Student completed the food 
costing, with training and support provided by a Health Unit Registered Dietitian. Costing was conducted 
May 19 to June 1, 2024, at 10 full-service grocery stores in Middlesex County and the City of London, 
both online and in person, including premium and discount stores. Average costs were calculated for 61 

Report No. 82-24: Appendix C

Page 90 of 124 

https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/professionals/housing-markets-data-and-research/housing-data/data-tables/rental-market/rental-market-report-data-tables
https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/professionals/housing-markets-data-and-research/housing-data/data-tables/rental-market/rental-market-report-data-tables
https://www.ontario.ca/page/residential-rent-increases
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/cv.action?pid=1810000401
https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/professionals/industry-innovation-and-leadership/industry-expertise/affordable-housing/provincial-territorial-agreements/investment-in-affordable-housing/national-occupancy-standard
https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/professionals/industry-innovation-and-leadership/industry-expertise/affordable-housing/provincial-territorial-agreements/investment-in-affordable-housing/national-occupancy-standard
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/food-nutrition/food-nutrition-surveillance/national-nutritious-food-basket.html


food items. If preferred food items were unavailable, similar items (i.e., proxy items) were used with 
minor differences between nutrition and/or price. 
  
An adjustment factor was applied to the food costs depending on the household size in the scenario to 
account for the additional costs per person to feed a small group and the lower costs per person to feed a 
larger group. 
 
Comparing 2024 to Previous Year’s Scenarios5 
 

Adjustments to the food and rent costs for the 2023 and 2022 scenarios are required before comparison to 
the 2024 scenarios. Comparing 2024 food costs to years prior to 2022 is not appropriate due to 
methodology changes (e.g., introduction of online costing; revisions to the NNFB to be consistent with 
2019 Canada’s Food Guide, updated national food intake data, and updated DRIs).  
 
Local food costing was not completed in 2020 or 2021 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Food Adjustments 
In 2024, Health Canada adjusted the NNFB spreadsheet due to revisions to Dietary Reference Intakes for 
Energy for groups where the Estimated Energy Requirement (EER) increased by more than 100 kcal/day 
(i.e., Males 14-18 years old, Females 14-18 years old, Pregnant <19 years old y, Pregnant 19-30 years 
old, Pregnant 31-50 years old, Breastfeeding <19 years old, and Breastfeeding 19-30 years old).  
 
The 2024 Monitoring Food Affordability in Ontario Master Spreadsheet was updated to reflect the 
increased EER for these groups. Weekly cost of ONFB in 2024 for these groups increased significantly 
compared to 2023 and 2022 due to the increased EER.  
 
Rent Adjustments 
In 2024, a CPI adjustment to rent costs was made to more accurately reflect actual local rental costs. This 
adjustment was not made in previous years. CMHC cost estimates were for October 2023. Cost estimates 
were adjusted for inflation using the CPI for shelter in Ontario for the increase from October 2023 to May 
2024. 
 
Data Sources  
 
Canadian Mortgage and Housing Corporation (January 2024). Rental Market Report: London, 2023, 
Table 1.1.2 Private Apartment Average Rents ($), by Zone and Bedroom Type - London CMA. Retrieved 
from https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/professionals/housing-markets-data-and-research/housing-data/data-
tables/rental-market/rental-market-report-data-tables. 
 
Government of Canada (2024). Child and family benefits calculator. Retrieved from 
https://www.canada.ca/en/revenue-agency/services/child-family-benefits/child-family-benefits-
calculator.html. 
 
Middlesex-London Health Unit (2024). Ontario Nutritious Food Basket data for Middlesex-London 
Health Unit – Includes family size adjustment factors. 
 
Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services (2024). Social Assistance, Pension, and Tax Credit 
Rates: April – June 2024. 
 

Report No. 82-24: Appendix C

Page 91 of 124 

https://nap.nationalacademies.org/catalog/26818/dietary-reference-intakes-for-energy
https://nap.nationalacademies.org/catalog/26818/dietary-reference-intakes-for-energy
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/cv.action?pid=1810000401
https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/professionals/housing-markets-data-and-research/housing-data/data-tables/rental-market/rental-market-report-data-tables
https://www.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/professionals/housing-markets-data-and-research/housing-data/data-tables/rental-market/rental-market-report-data-tables
https://www.canada.ca/en/revenue-agency/services/child-family-benefits/child-family-benefits-calculator.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/revenue-agency/services/child-family-benefits/child-family-benefits-calculator.html


Statistics Canada. (2024). Table: 11-10-0190-01. Market income, government transfers, total income, 
income tax and after-tax income by economic family type. Retrieved from 
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/cv.action?pid=1110019001. 
 
Statistics Canada. (2024). Table: 18-10-0004-01. Consumer Price Index, monthly, not seasonally 
adjusted. Retrieved from https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/cv.action?pid=1110019001. 
 
 
 

Report No. 82-24: Appendix C

Page 92 of 124 

https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/cv.action?pid=1110019001
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/cv.action?pid=1810000401


1 

Ministry of Health 

Office of Chief Medical 
Officer of Health, Public 
Health 

Box 12 
Toronto, ON M7A 1N3 

Fax.: 416 325-8412 

Ministère de la Santé 

Bureau du médecin 
hygiéniste en chef, 
santé publique 

Boîte à lettres 12 
Toronto, ON M7A 1N3 

Téléc. :416 325-8412

December 23, 2024 

To: Medical Officers of Health and Chief Executive Officers 
 
Re: Strengthening Public Health Updates  
 
Dear Colleagues,  
 

Further to the memo from Dr. Kieran Moore dated December 11, 2024, I am writing to 
share an update on the planned release and implementation of the revised Ontario 
Public Health Standards (OPHS) as well as public health funding.  
 
The sector provided valuable input throughout the OPHS consultation, and the ministry 
is working to address and incorporate your feedback as well as exploring additional 
opportunities to further clarify responsibilities to reduce the workload burden at the local 
level.  
 
The ministry recognizes boards of health require time to plan for the implementation of 
the revised OPHS. Therefore, the revised OPHS and incorporated documents will 
be released to the sector by August 2025, with an effective date of January 2, 
2026. 
 
Throughout 2025 the ministry will explore implementation supports via sector 
engagement, such as the OPHS Review Table. 
 
The current OPHS and incorporated protocols and guidelines remain in effect, please 
find the current standards here. 
 

Page 93 of 124 

https://www.ontario.ca/page/ontario-public-health-standards-requirements-programs-services-and-accountability


2 

As part of the Strengthening Public Health initiative, the ministry is providing growth 
base funding of 1% for three calendar years (2024, 2025, and 2026) to address the 
urgent need for stabilization while change processes are underway and undertaking a 
review of the provincial funding methodology for public health.  
 
The ministry thanks everyone who participated in public health funding review 
engagement sessions over the summer, and we look forward to sharing more 
information on next steps, including timelines, as it is available.  
 
Thank you for your continued collaboration in strengthening public health in Ontario. If 
you have any questions, please contact ophs.protocols.moh@ontario.ca. 
 

Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Elizabeth Walker    
Executive Lead, Office of the Chief Medical Officer of Health, Public Health   

c:  Dr. Kieran Moore, MD, CCFP(EM), FCFP, MPH, DTM&H, FRCPC, FCAHS, Chief 
Medical Officer of Health and Assistant Deputy Minister, Public Health 

Page 94 of 124 

mailto:ophs.protocols.moh@ontario.ca


 
PO Box 73510, RPO Wychwood 

Toronto, ON M6C 4A7  
E-mail: info@alphaweb.org 

 

www.alphaweb.org Providing Leadership in Public Health Management 

alPHa’s members are 
the public health 
units in Ontario. 
 

alPHa Sections: 

Boards of Health 
Section 

Council of Ontario 
Medical Officers of 
Health (COMOH) 
 

Affiliate 
Organizations: 

Association of Ontario 
Public Health Business 
Administrators 

Association of  
Public Health 
Epidemiologists  
in Ontario  

Association of 
Supervisors of Public 
Health Inspectors of 
Ontario 

Health Promotion 
Ontario  

Ontario Association of 
Public Health Dentistry  

Ontario Association of 
Public Health Nursing 
Leaders 

Ontario Dietitians in 
Public Health 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

The Honourable Peter Bethlenfalvy                        January 20, 2025 
Minister of Finance 
Frost Building North, 3rd floor 
95 Grosvenor Street 
Toronto ON M7A 1Z1 
 
Dear Minister Bethlenfalvy, 
 
Re: 2024 Pre-Budget Submission: Public Health Programs and Services 
 
On behalf of the Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) and its Boards of 
Health Section, Council of Ontario Medical Officers of Health Section, and Affiliate 
Organizations, we are writing to provide input on the financial requirements for a stable, 
locally based public health system as part of this year’s pre-budget consultation.  
 
We are pleased with the choices that have been made at the provincial level regarding 
Ontario’s unique public health system, with approaches to reorganization, programming, 
and funding having been included in the ongoing Strengthening Public Health initiative 
that was first announced in 2023.   
 
The four mergers involving nine of Ontario’s public health units have been formally 
announced, and we are grateful for the ongoing support of the Ministry of Health, 
including commitments to providing the required financial resources, as we navigate the 
complex processes to finalize them. We are also grateful that it is recognized by all 
parties that mergers are not – nor are these intended to be – cost-saving exercises. This 
recognition also acknowledges that, despite the existence of the four new entities as of 
January 1 of this year, a great deal of work remains to realize the intended efficiencies 
through harmonizing resources and consolidating operations.  
 
The second aspect of Strengthening Public Health is the revision of the Ontario Public 
Health Standards, which lay out in substantial detail the legislated expectations for 
programs and services of all Ontario boards of health. While this process is ongoing, early 
reviews suggest that these expectations are more likely to expand than to contract. Our 
members of course welcome any new responsibilities that are designed to improve 
population health and the resource commitments required to carry these out.  
 
The third aspect of this initiative is a promise to review the public health funding model 
itself, which is currently shared between the Province (~75%) and obligated 
municipalities (~25%). These discussions have not yet begun, but we were grateful for 
the predictability afforded by the interim promise of 1% increases over the past three 
years. As we enter the final year of this pledge, we are looking forward to the more 
detailed discussion that has been promised. 
 
While we are embracing the Strengthening Public Health approaches to addressing long-
term stability and capacity, we want to be very clear that local public health is facing 
substantial budget pressures that need to be addressed now.  
 

Page 95 of 124 



As the CMOH observed as part of the announcement of this initiative, the goal is to “optimize capacity, 
stability, and sustainability in public health and deliver more equitable health outcomes for Ontarians”. 
He further observed that “there are long-standing challenges within the public health sector in Ontario 
related to capacity, stability and sustainability that have been identified through multiple reports over 
the past 20 years”. 
 
In his 2023 Annual Report, the CMOH urged an end to the “boom and bust” public health funding cycles 
that see the scaling back of resources that places public health systems at a disadvantage at the onset of 
each crisis. He emphasized the need to invest in public health up front and consistently, and repeated 
that such investments save money and provide long-term social and economic benefits (p. 11). 
 
We acknowledge and appreciate the concrete financial commitments to public health that have been 
made in recent years (e.g. mitigation funding when the cost-sharing proportions were briefly changed, 
one-time investments related to the pandemic response, 1% year-over-year increases), but these have 
not and will not come close to addressing the longstanding and increasing capacity issues that local 
public health has experienced.   
 
According to the Bank of Canada, inflation has averaged over 4% per year since 2020, which means that 
the 1% increases are insufficient and amount to de facto year-over-year funding cuts. In addition, 
inflation does not account for cost increases related to the decision to cost-share programs that were 
previously 100% funded by the Province, significant population growth, capital and technical 
expenditures, and increased expectations under the OPHS mandate.  
 
As part of our 2023 budget submission, we included the following key findings. These needs are 
ongoing:  
 

• Overall, the current funding envelope for public health units in Ontario is not sufficient to meet 
the provincially mandated standards. Though this has been the case for many years, our 2023 
survey indicated that local public health units are projecting additional budget pressures from 
multiple sources in the coming years, including collective agreements, substantially increased 
inflationary pressures, the additional demands of the response to the co-circulation of 
respiratory diseases including flu, RSV and COVID-19, and the backlog of programs and services 
that has built up over nearly three full calendar years.  

 
• Effectively meeting the Ontario Public Health Standards, excluding the Healthy Babies Healthy 

Children program for 2023 would have required an estimated $132M in total additional funding, 
representing an average increase of 11.8% across health units. This represents an increase of 
just 0.2% of the entire Ministry of Health budget.  
 

• Effectively meeting the requirements of the Healthy Babies Healthy Children program for 2023 
would have required an estimated $12.5M in total additional funding, representing an average 
increase of 13.8% across health units. This represents an increase of only 0.08% of the entire 
Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services budget.  

 
Investments in public health generate significant returns, including better health, lower health care 
costs, and a stronger economy. According to the Ministry of Health’s 2023-24 Budget, transfers to 
Ontario’s Local Official Health Agencies amounted to $939,443,900, which was approximately 1.3% of 
the Ministry’s entire operating budget for that year. Not only does this demonstrate a tremendous 
return on investment given the significant benefit to the health of the people of Ontario, but also that 

Page 96 of 124 

https://www.ontario.ca/page/chief-medical-officer-health-2022-annual-report
https://www.ontario.ca/page/expenditure-estimates-ministry-health-2023-24#section-5


even the high-percentage increases required for local public health to carry out its mandate would be 
relatively modest in dollar amounts.  
 
alPHa has produced a series of infographics that demonstrate the return on investment that public 
health provides through programs and services that promote well-being, prevent disease and injury, and 
protect population health. In so doing, local public health supports the Ontario government in its goals 
to be efficient, effective, and provide value for money. The Ministry of Health’s Strengthening Public 
Health initiative demonstrates the government’s commitment to local public health, and we are asking 
that an explicit commitment be made to providing local public health agencies with the sufficient and 
sustainable funding required in the 2025 Budget. 
 
We always welcome this opportunity to provide comments on desired spending priorities for the coming 
year and would like to note that many of our members will also be providing their own input. We 
strongly urge you to take each of these into careful consideration, as these will reflect the diverse local 
needs and priorities that will delve further into the details of public health work and the resources 
required to carry it out.  
 
We look forward to working with you and welcome this opportunity to advocate for a sustainable and 
resilient public health system. Please have your staff contact Loretta Ryan, Chief Executive Officer, 
alPHa, at loretta@alphaweb.org or 647-325-9594 for any follow-up. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Trudy Sachowski 
alPHa Chair  
 
Copy:   Hon. Sylvia Jones, Minister of Health 

Dr. Kieran Moore, Chief Medical Officer of Health, Ontario   
 
Encl. 
 
The Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) is a not-for-profit organization that provides 
leadership to the boards of health and public health units in Ontario. alPHa advises and lends 
expertise to members on the governance, administration and management of health units. The 
Association also collaborates with governments and other health organizations, advocating for a 
strong, effective and efficient public health system in the province. Through policy analysis, 
discussion, collaboration, and advocacy, alPHa’s members and staff act to promote public health 
policies that form a strong foundation for the improvement of health promotion and protection, 
disease prevention and surveillance services in all of Ontario’s communities.   

Page 97 of 124 

https://www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/docs/alPHa_PH_Matters_1-3.pdf
mailto:loretta@alphaweb.org


7,139,930
INDIVIDUALS VACCINATED 
WITH 3 DOSES IN ONTARIO
AS OF MARCH 22, 2022
Source: Government of Ontario

1,140,865
CONFIRMED COVID-19 
CASES IN ONTARIO 
AS OF MARCH 21, 2022
Source: Public Health Ontario

Public health champions health for all. Local public health agencies provide programs and 
services that promote well-being, prevent disease and injury, and protect population health. Our work, 
often done in collaboration with local partners and within the broader public health system, results in a 
healthier population and avoids drawing on costly and scarce health care resources. 

A PUBLIC HEALTH PRIMER 

OUR ASK
That decision makers 
acknowledge that local public 
health has been the backbone of 
Ontario’s successful response to 
the pandemic and remains 
essential to the province’s health 
and economic recovery, which 
will require sustained and 
sufficient resources and a stable 
structure embedded in  local 
communities.

Chronic Disease 
Prevention and 

Well-Being
Food  

Safety
Emergency  

Management
Healthy 

Environments
Population  

Health  
Assessment

Health  
Equity

Effective Public 
Health Practice

Ontario’s 34 local public health agencies are the front line of the 
COVID-19 response. 
Public health professionals are responsible for the following:     

PUBLIC HEALTH RESPONSE

ADVICE TO GOVERNMENT:
Provide expert input to inform 
government actions in the fight 
against COVID-19.  

ADVICE TO THE PUBLIC:
Provide and reinforce expert advice 
to empower the public in the fight 
against COVID-19. 

VACCINATION EFFORTS:
Lead the distribution and administration of COVID-19 vaccines in all 
Ontario communities. 

OUTBREAK CONTROL: 
Protect vulnerable populations 
in higher risk settings.

PUBLIC HEALTH MEASURES: 
Implement and enforce measures 
to slow the spread of COVID-19.

CASE AND CONTACT 
MANAGEMENT:
Identify and isolate cases.

DATA ANALYSIS: 
Identify sources of infection and 
patterns of transmission. 

PUBLIC HEALTH 
MATTERS

Providing Leadership in 
Public Health Management

www.alphaweb.org

SPRING 2022

Page 98 of 124 

https://covid-19.ontario.ca/data
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Infectious-Disease/COVID-19-Data-Surveillance/COVID-19-Data-Tool?tab=summary


IMPACT ON RESOURCES

The COVID-19 response pre-empted 
most activities mandated by the Ontario 
Public Health Standards. 

RETURN ON 
INVESTMENT
Investments in public health 
generate significant returns, 
including better health, lower 
health care costs, and a 
stronger economy. 
According to the 2018-19 
(former) Ministry of Health and 
Long-Term Care Expenditure 
Estimates, the operating 
estimate for the entire 
Population and Public Health 
Program (which includes 
internal Ministry expenses, 
funding for Public Health 
Ontario and the local grants) 
was $1.267 billion, or about 2% 
of the total Ministry operating 
expenses. 
This demonstrates a 
tremendous return on 
investment given the significant 
benefit to the health of the 
people of Ontario. 

Source: alPHa Report: Public Health Resilience in Ontario - Executive Summary
Source: alPHa Report: Public Health Resilience in Ontario – Report
Please visit: www.alphaweb.org

2% 

Safe  
Water

Substance Use  
and Injury  
Prevention

Immunization
Infectious and 

Communicable Diseases  
Prevention and Control

School  
Health

Healthy  
Growth and  

Development
Oral 

   Health

2018-19
TOTAL MINISTRY 
OF HEALTH AND 

LONG-TERM CARE
OPERATING
EXPENSES

Each of Ontario’s 34 local public health agencies 
had to divert on average 78% of all available 

resources to the COVID-19 response.

Suspension of routine public health
 programs and services is our equivalent of the 

health care system’s “surgical backlog.”
We must resume these while we maintain 

an effective COVID-19 response. 

The COVID-19 pandemic magnified existing 
health inequities. 
This will put additional demands on Public Health 
resources to address them in the future.

A measurable uptick in substance use 
(e.g., alcohol and opioids), mental health 
issues, and factors that contribute to 
chronic diseases will put further demands 
on public health resources in the future.

OPHS

POPULATION 
AND PUBLIC 
HEALTH 
PROGRAM

PUBLIC HEALTH 
MATTERS

78% 

Page 99 of 124 

https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9/alPHa_PH_Resilience_Report_Exec_Sum_Jan2022.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9/alPHa_PH_Resilience_Report_Final_Jan2022.pdf


Local public health units increased vaccine coverage and provided vital protection against 
disease for residents across Ontario. The leadership provided by Ontario’s local public health 
agencies on an unprecedented number of vaccine campaigns has resulted in exceptional vaccine 
uptake. This fall, Ontario’s 34 local public health units intensified vaccine activities to combat the fall 
respiratory virus surge and other emerging public health issues.

#2 of Series

January 11, 2023

* co-administration of multiple vaccines 

Ontario’s 34 public health units led Ontario’s 
vaccination campaigns with a focus on 
increased access, data-driven action, 
integrated services, and amplified messages. 

1,100+
Fixed site clinics*

2,000+
Mobile clinics*

700+
Influenza clinics

1,000+
Student 

Immunization and 
catch-up clinics

4,500,000+
Social media 

engagement and 
impressions

400+
Mpox  
clinics

3,300+
Social  

media posts

3,000+
Homebound 
vaccinations

700+
Media releases, 
responses, and 

interviews

PUBLIC HEALTH FALL VACCINE SUCCESS

FALL 2022 VACCINATION BY THE NUMBERS

PUBLIC HEALTH UNITS 
PREPARED FOR, COORDINATED, 
AND DELIVERED 7 VACCINE 
CAMPAIGNS

MORE CLINICS,  
INCREASED CAPACITY,  
BROADER OUTREACH, 
EXTRAORDINARY RESULTS

COMMUNICATION  
AND PUBLIC EDUCATION  
ABOUT VACCINE CAMPAIGNS

• COVID-19: pediatric, 5-17 booster, and bivalent
• Routine: influenza and student immunization  

and catch-up program
• Outbreak response: mpox & meningococcal B
• Promoted routine vaccines

PUBLIC HEALTH 
MATTERS

Chronic Disease 
Prevention and 

Well-Being
Food  

Safety
Emergency  

Management
Healthy 

Environments
Population  

Health  
Assessment

Health  
Equity

Effective Public 
Health Practice

Page 100 of 124 



ACCESS INCREASED  
• Local public health units partnered with municipalities to run mobile vaccination buses.  

The buses aimed to decrease barriers to vaccination, services were offered at locations  
where people attend regularly (such as malls, grocery stores, local events, and parks),  
in remote locations, to at-risk communities, and in other underserved areas.

• Local public health units worked closely with Indigenous communities. For example, a 
local public health unit created and shared biweekly communication packages with local 
First Nations, urban Indigenous community groups and Métis partners to foster open 
communication, prompt sharing of public health guidance, and updates on vaccines.

DATA-DRIVEN ACTIVITIES  
• Ontario’s 34 local public health units used data to optimize vaccine coverage. This is 

exemplified through a local public health unit who used equity indicators to identify their  
highest priority neighbourhoods to target outreach and support. This geographically mapped 
information was posted publicly on a COVID-19 dashboard and used internally for health 
system planning. Vaccine strategies were employed, using mobile clinics, fixed sites, and 
organization partnerships (such as Ontario Health Teams and community clinics) in order to 
increase vaccination.

AMPLIFIED MESSAGES  
• Ontario’s 34 local public health units employed traditional media tactics (such as news 

releases, media events, and social media) in addition to unique targeted local tactics. One 
example of this work is demonstrated by a local public health unit who worked with hospital 
partners to create a commercial that highlighted actions needed to reduce strain on hospital 
systems resulting from respiratory illnesses. The commercial plays before every movie at the 
local cinema, at hockey home games, and on local television. 

INTEGRATED SERVICES AND COMMUNITY OUTREACH  
• Ontario’s local public health units integrated services to have the greatest impact. For 

example, a local public health unit established 15 hubs throughout their community, offering 
services like dental screenings, mental health, addictions and substance use supports, 
COVID-19, flu and routine immunizations. 

• Local public health units partnered with community agencies to enhance vaccine outreach 
and worked to help get residents vaccinated against COVID-19. In one local public health unit, 
this included the operation of Vaccine Engagement Teams comprised of over 150 health, 
community, and faith-based organizations and more than 700 community ambassadors 
reflecting the community’s diversity.

PUBLIC HEALTH FALL VACCINE SUCCESS

PUBLIC HEALTH 
MATTERS

Chronic Disease 
Prevention and 

Well-Being
Food  

Safety
Emergency  

Management
Healthy 

Environments
Population  

Health  
Assessment

Health  
Equity

Effective Public 
Health Practice

Page 101 of 124 



Public health champions health for all. Local public health agencies provide programs and 
services that promote well-being, prevent disease and injury, and protect population health. Our work, 
often done in collaboration with local partners and within the broader public health system, results in a 
healthier population and avoids drawing on costly and scarce health care resources. 

A BUSINESS CASE FOR LOCAL PUBLIC HEALTH

OUR ASK
We are asking decision 
makers for their support for 
the goals and objectives of 
public health, with sustained 
and sufficient resources to 
ensure stability for Ontario's 
locally-based network of 
public health agencies. 

Local public health remains 
essential to the province’s 
population health and the 
associated economic 
prosperity.

Local public health supports 
the Ontario government
in its goals to be efficient, 
effective, and provide value 
for money. 

Chronic Disease 
Prevention and 

Well-Being
Food  

Safety
Emergency  

Management
Healthy 

Environments
Population  

Health  
Assessment

Health  
Equity

Effective Public 
Health Practice

Investment in local public health includes the following returns:

INVESTMENT IN LOCAL PUBLIC HEALTH

PUBLIC HEALTH 
MATTERS 

Providing Leadership in 
Public Health Management

www.alphaweb.org

Local public health protects our 
communities by working with 
municipalities to provide safe 
water, safe food, and emergency 
preparedness and response.

SAFE 
COMMUNITIES:

Local public health protects 
children through promotion of 
healthy growth and 
development, vaccination, dental 
screening, and school health.

HEALTHY 
CHILDREN: 

Public health measures such as 
vaccination, case and contact 
management, outbreak response, 
community infection control 
measures reduced hospitalizations 
by 13 times during the COVID-19 
pandemic.

Local public health is also central to 
responding to new infectious 
disease risks such as MPOX, 
reemerging pathogens like 
poliomyelitis and tuberculosis, and 
the return of annual seasonal 
epidemics such as influenza and 
respiratory syncytial virus (RSV).

REDUCED 
HOSPITALIZATIONS 
AND DEATHS:

Page 102 of 124 



Safe  
Water

Substance Use  
and Injury  
Prevention

Immunization
Infectious and 

Communicable Diseases  
Prevention and Control

School  
Health

Healthy  
Growth and  

Development
Oral 

   Health

PUBLIC HEALTH 
MATTERS 

In the wake of the COVID-19 
pandemic, local public health 
has been working hard to put 
back in place its full range of 
programs, with progress being 
made on its recovery priorities 
(Public Health Resilience), and 
responding to seasonal 
respiratory viruses.

COVID-19 
RECOVERY

Health promotion and disease prevention are 
mandated roles for local public health agencies. In 
doing this, they also who work with the Ministry of 
Health and key stakeholders in addressing chronic 
diseases such as diabetes, heart disease and cancer.

PUBLIC HEALTH LEADS TO HEALTH CARE SAVINGS
FUNDING

Local public health requires 
sufficient and sustainable base 
funding from the provincial 
government. 

The end of mitigation funding 
($46.8M) from the province would 
equal a  loss to the overall 
funding of local public health 
programs.

A return to the previous provincial-
municipal cost-sharing formula for 
all programs and services would 
help to offset this loss.

Alcohol use  is another major contributor to health 
care and societal cost. It is estimated that alcohol 
use costs the Ontario economy $5.3B in health 
care, law enforcement, corrections, prevention, 
lost productivity and premature mortality. 

Promotion of tobacco cessation and tobacco 
control reduced health care costs by 1.7% overall 
= $4.2B saved over 10 years.

Smoking, alcohol, diet and physical activity
improvements could prevent $89B in health care 
costs = 22% of all health care costs over 10 years.

It is estimated that diabetes in Canada cost the 
health care system $15.36 billion over a 10 year 
period, affecting nearly 10% of the population.

 15%

[ ]HEALTH INEQUITIES DUE TO 
SOCIOECONOMIC POSITION CONTRIBUTED 
$60.7B = 15% OF ALL HEALTH CARE COSTS.

Page 103 of 124 

https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/collection/822EC60D-0D03-413E-B590-AFE1AA8620A9/alPHa_PH_Resilience_Report_Final_Jan2022.pdf
alPHa ED
Cross-Out

alPHa ED
Cross-Out



PLEASE ROUTE TO: 
All Board of Health Members 
All Members of Regional Health & Social Service Committees 
All Senior Public Health Managers 

 

   

January 16, 2025 
 

   

 

   

January 2025 InfoBreak 
 

This update is a tool to keep alPHa's Members apprised of the latest news in public 
health including provincial announcements, legislation, alPHa activities, 

correspondence, and events. Visit us at alphaweb.org. 
 

   

Leader to Leader - A message from alPHa’s Chair - January 2025  
 

 

Happy New Year!  
 
Looking ahead - there is much optimism for 2025. There is no doubt that it is going 
to be an interesting and busy year ahead for alPHa, local public health, and for 
Ontario’s public health system.  

Page 104 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoicXpMY3NOX0xqUHYxQ1lrekhjenMxWHhEMDJ3IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwOlxcXC9cXFwvYWxwaGF3ZWIub3JnXFxcL1wiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiODI5OWI3MTY5NzU1NmY4ZmJhYzlmYjAxZGE3ODY4YzIxZjM4OWNkOVwiXX0ifQ


 
On your behalf, the 2024-2025 alPHa Board of Directors, are dedicated to their 
governance role as a uniquely qualified and unified leadership voice for Ontario’s 
local public health system. Throughout 2025, alPHa representatives will continue to 
participate in various committees, focus groups, and public health tables to provide 
recommendations and advice to the province’s policy influencers and key decision-
makers. Collectively the alPHa Board of Directors and its members are advancing 
the cause of a resilient, sufficiently resourced, local public health system. alPHa’s 
Chief Executive Officer and alPHa staff provide essential support for the Board of 
Directors and for alPHa Members in this work. 
 
The foundation of alPHa and its success is built upon the support of its Members 
and the existing network of relationships with its Member local public health 
agencies. During 2025, alPHa is committed to continuing to value, support, and 
engage its Members, proactively, and meaningfully through regular updates via 
email, monthly in Information Break, on X (formerly known as Twitter), at Member-
driven events, and with time sensitive updates and opportunities for consultations. 
alPHa’s website www.alphaweb.org is a public portal of public health resources, 
while Information Break is your public health portal exclusive to alPHa Members.  
 
On the horizon are key Member-engagement opportunities such as alPHa’s 2025 
Online Winter Symposium and alPHa’s in-person 2025 AGM and Conference in 
Toronto. Online and in-person alPHa Member events are tremendous opportunities 
to network and to continue the important conversation on the role of local public 
health in the province's resilient public health system and its demonstrated role for 
the public health of all Ontarians. 
 
Anticipation is building around alPHa’s online 2025 Winter Symposium, Workshops, 
and Section meetings on February 14, 2025. An informative lineup of topics, with 
speakers including Ontario’s Chief Medical Officer of Health, Dr. Kieran Moore; 
Principals of Strategy Corp, Sabine Matheson and John Perenack; and others. 
Founder and CEO of GenWell, Pete Bombaci, will be the keynote. He will talk about 
the importance of being a catalyst for action to meaningfully improve long-term 
health and well-being, reduce costs to the healthcare system, increase social 
cohesion and inclusivity, and drive economic and community benefit. 
 
Pre-symposium workshops are included, at no additional cost, for each individual 
who registers for the alPHa 2025 Winter Symposium. On the afternoon of 

Page 105 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiYWNJalF1MGJFRXVvTWxMeVVWdDJZdV9LLXo4IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvcGFnZVxcXC9CT0RcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjc4YjYyZGZiMTczODdlM2M1OTUwNmU4M2YyYWUyZTJjMzUzMmJhZWJcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiMkhMaU8yMGtjLWRpMjRXTXMyMml6SEotSGYwIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvcGFnZVxcXC9FeGVjdXRpdmVfRGlyZWN0b3JcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjY4MjUyZjRjZDA3MGZlODAyNDQxMTJjZWI4NTdjOWQ5YzY2MmE3MjdcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiQi1rUk5UaGxOOEdxdnU3UDd4SWN6V3llTEZJIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwOlxcXC9cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9cIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjcyMTVhYWI3NjRlZDhjYWQ2NDRmMTkyZmE3OGFlZTNmMDg0OGVhOGVcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiTFpjTnB4WkIzYzJLTFYzQVFaNWlJeVVnMHc4IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvZ2VuZXJhbFxcXC9jdXN0b20uYXNwP3BhZ2U9bmV3c2xldHRlcl9hcmNoaXZlXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCI0MDY2N2M4YTJmZWIyOWEwNTBiYTJkZDg1NDMzNzM5ZTY0NDYzYzFlXCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiTTB5cmhIVnp3TXdqLXdQaXByaEhWWGg0cTd3IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvZXZlbnRzXFxcL0V2ZW50RGV0YWlscy5hc3B4P2lkPTE4NzkzNjImZ3JvdXA9XCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJlMWU2ODZkMWMyNjMzZTRhNWVlMmJjNGQzMmVjNWFlZmM1MDFkMjA4XCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiTTB5cmhIVnp3TXdqLXdQaXByaEhWWGg0cTd3IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvZXZlbnRzXFxcL0V2ZW50RGV0YWlscy5hc3B4P2lkPTE4NzkzNjImZ3JvdXA9XCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJlMWU2ODZkMWMyNjMzZTRhNWVlMmJjNGQzMmVjNWFlZmM1MDFkMjA4XCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/genwell.ca?p=eyJzIjoiajNfcXU0eXI5OG1oUzlKN2JwMmtGdUg1N0NzIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2dlbndlbGwuY2FcXFwvXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJmY2I1ZjdjYWRhY2QyNDViYWY4ZjlmYTNjYmJjMGIyNzRmMDg3NmI1XCJdfSJ9


Wednesday, February 12 is “Leading Change – The 5 Tensions to Manage 
Successful Transformation” with Tim Arnold. The following afternoon on Thursday, 
February 13 is “Harnessing the Power of ‘Where’ for Public Health Discussions” with 
Esri Canada. Registration to these workshops is automatic with your individual 
Symposium registration.  
 
The road ahead for 2025 and beyond is clearly paved by alPHa’s 2024-2027 
Strategic Plan. The Winter Symposium coincides with the one-year anniversary of 
the release of the plan. Maria Sánchez-Keane, Principal, Centre for Organizational 
Effectiveness will report on the progress of the plan and alPHa’s accomplishments. 
The alPHa Board of Directors and Executive Committee, supported by alPHa’s Chief 
Executive Officer and staff, will continue to provide this strategic leadership with 
one, unified voice representing the public health system across its member 
constituents.  
 
In my role as Chair of the alPHa Board of Directors, I will be attending the Rural 
Ontario Municipal Association (ROMA) 2025 Conference January 19 to 21, 2025 and 
The Ontario Public Health Convention (TOPHC) 2025 in March. If you are at either 
of these events, I look forward to the opportunity to connect. In the meantime, I 
will see you online at the alPHa 2025 Winter Symposium, and the alPHa BOH Section 
meeting.  

 

Trudy Sachowski 
Chair, alPHa Board of Directors 

 

   

Registration for the alPHa 2025 Winter Symposium, Section 
Meetings, and Workshops is now open! 

 

Page 106 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiRmhvWm1wUXl4SHlkaGlxbkpSSnRtN244RFVzIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzUyMzAyRTgwLUQ0QUEtNDZDRi1BRDkzLTNCNEI1NzczQzEyMVxcXC9hbFBIYV9TdHJhdGVnaWNfUGxhbl8yMDI0LTIwMjcucGRmXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJjN2Y2NGU2ZmY0YjUwY2Q4NzdjZGM5ZGI1NjQ2ZDNjNTFlY2QwZDgwXCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiRmhvWm1wUXl4SHlkaGlxbkpSSnRtN244RFVzIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzUyMzAyRTgwLUQ0QUEtNDZDRi1BRDkzLTNCNEI1NzczQzEyMVxcXC9hbFBIYV9TdHJhdGVnaWNfUGxhbl8yMDI0LTIwMjcucGRmXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJjN2Y2NGU2ZmY0YjUwY2Q4NzdjZGM5ZGI1NjQ2ZDNjNTFlY2QwZDgwXCJdfSJ9


 

Registration is now open for the online 2025 Winter Symposium, Section Meetings, 
and Workshops that are taking place February 12-14! These events will discuss a 
variety of issues of key importance to public health leaders and you won’t want to 
miss out.  
 
alPHa would like to acknowledge and thank Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit for 
being the co-host for the alPHa Winter Symposium. Their support and partnership 
have made these events possible.  
 
A thank you also goes to the University of Toronto’s Dalla Lana School of Public 
Health, Eastern Ontario Health Unit, Esri Canada, and GenWell for their generous 
event support.  
 
On Friday, February 14, from 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m., there is an exciting lineup of 
Symposium speakers and topics:  
 

• alPHa Update with Trudy Sachowski, alPHa Chair, and Loretta Ryan, Chief 
Executive Officer, alPHa.  

• Building a More Connected Canada Where Everyone Thrives with keynote 
speaker, Pete Bombaci, Founder & CEO, GenWell. 

Page 107 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiTTB5cmhIVnp3TXdqLXdQaXByaEhWWGg0cTd3IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvZXZlbnRzXFxcL0V2ZW50RGV0YWlscy5hc3B4P2lkPTE4NzkzNjImZ3JvdXA9XCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJlMWU2ODZkMWMyNjMzZTRhNWVlMmJjNGQzMmVjNWFlZmM1MDFkMjA4XCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiTTB5cmhIVnp3TXdqLXdQaXByaEhWWGg0cTd3IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvZXZlbnRzXFxcL0V2ZW50RGV0YWlscy5hc3B4P2lkPTE4NzkzNjImZ3JvdXA9XCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJlMWU2ODZkMWMyNjMzZTRhNWVlMmJjNGQzMmVjNWFlZmM1MDFkMjA4XCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.simcoemuskokahealth.org?p=eyJzIjoibElDVWRDUFhzQU1USWVWNzR3UDdCeFFFdll3IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5zaW1jb2VtdXNrb2thaGVhbHRoLm9yZ1xcXC9cIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImY4NmVjMzA3ZjExZDhkZTFiZmJkMjRlZTQyMGM4Y2VhYzFlNTJjYTBcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.dlsph.utoronto.ca?p=eyJzIjoiMUt4VVE0SUJiaUFWbWczWXNvZnlPMmVmMTJFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5kbHNwaC51dG9yb250by5jYVxcXC9cIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjQ0YWMyMTk0MjYwOGRlMjBkNDlhMjYwNTRjN2M3MGRiMzVkZWJkMGZcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.dlsph.utoronto.ca?p=eyJzIjoiMUt4VVE0SUJiaUFWbWczWXNvZnlPMmVmMTJFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5kbHNwaC51dG9yb250by5jYVxcXC9cIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjQ0YWMyMTk0MjYwOGRlMjBkNDlhMjYwNTRjN2M3MGRiMzVkZWJkMGZcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.eohu.ca?p=eyJzIjoiMXpxUTljYXJ2UWVqV3FqZy1KNW5jSjJTbkZNIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5lb2h1LmNhXFxcL2VuXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCI0OTg0YmVjYWNjYzA4OGJkY2RhZGZhYmRkY2IwMTQ1ZmEzY2M5YjZhXCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.esri.ca?p=eyJzIjoiVjNBRHNnY1BST2JkY1FHaDFnU1pmZTFzWGVrIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5lc3JpLmNhXFxcL2VuLWNhXFxcL2hvbWVcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImJlY2I1YWI1OWYwMjA4NmNkZGRjZDFiYTYxOTljYjljZGQ2ZjkyNjVcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/genwell.ca?p=eyJzIjoiajNfcXU0eXI5OG1oUzlKN2JwMmtGdUg1N0NzIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2dlbndlbGwuY2FcXFwvXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJmY2I1ZjdjYWRhY2QyNDViYWY4ZjlmYTNjYmJjMGIyNzRmMDg3NmI1XCJdfSJ9


• We’ve Merged! So, What’s Next? with Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Deputy MOH, 
South East Health Unit and Susan Stewart, Director, Merger Office.    

• alPHa Strategic Plan - Happy First Anniversary, with Maria Sánchez-Keane, 
Principal, Centre for Organizational Effectiveness.  

• Update from Public Health Ontario with Dr. Jessica Hopkins, Vice President 
and Chief, Communicable Disease Control, Public Health Ontario. 

• So, Still Can’t Sleep at Night? with Sabine Matheson and John Perenack, 
Principals, StrategyCorp. 

• Update from the Chief Medical Officer of Health, Dr. Kieran Moore, Chief 
Medical Officer of Health.  

 
The lineup of speakers and topics for the BOH Section meeting includes:  
 
  

• Mergers - Meet the New Chairs! with Jan O’Neill, Board of Health, South East 
Health Unit (Additional names to be added…stay tuned!). 

• Boards of Health - Roles & Responsibilities with James LeNoury, Principal, 
LeNoury Law, and Legal Counsel, alPHa.  

• Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) Update. This session includes 
their report titled, Municipalities Under Pressure: The Human and Financial 
Cost of Ontario’s Homelessness Crisis, with Alicia Neufeld, Senior Manager, 
Policy, and Daniela Spagnuolo, Policy Advisor, AMO.  

 
Please note, Affiliates are welcome and encouraged to attend the BOH Section 
Meeting.   
 
In conjunction with the Symposium and Section meetings, we are holding two half-
day workshops. The first one, Leading Change – The 5 Tensions to Manage 
Successful Transformation, with Tim Arnold, is on Wednesday, February 12, from 1 
p.m. to 4 p.m. The workshop will help you to: embrace innovation and consistency; 
validate facts and feelings; focus on the short term and the long term; promote 
planning and action, and value complexity and simplicity. To learn more, click here.    
 
On the afternoon of Thursday, February 13, from 1 p.m. to 4 p.m., we will hold the 
second workshop with Esri Canada. This workshop titled, Harnessing the Power of 
‘Where’ for Public Health Discussions, is designed to assist alPHa Members to 
understand and recognize the growing value of maps and geographic technology to 
help solve some of Canada’s most pressing public health challenges. Through a series 

Page 108 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiLXdyLTVOTlRycWF1ZWNzSVd2RFRwSlpJbmtZIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcL0IxMTVDOENCLTlBMTEtNDMzRS05ODhBLUU0RkVGMjU0MEVFMVxcXC9hbFBIYV8yMDI1X1dpbnRlcl9TeW1wb3NpdW1fQXJub2xkX1dvcmtzaG9wX0ZlLnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiNWE1ZmE0ZGE2Nzc2ZWU4YjlmYzE0MjYwNDI4MjUyODlkMGE3ZmM2M1wiXX0ifQ


of presentations of real-world case studies and dynamic discussions, attendees will 
learn how geographic data, real-time maps, and new innovations in geographic 
technology are connecting Canadian public health teams to uncover local drivers of 
health inequity, strengthen health emergency preparedness, and improve 
collaborative decision-making. To learn more, click here.     
 
These workshops are being offered at no additional cost to Symposium registrants 
and you will be registered automatically when you sign up for the Winter Symposium. 
Separate registrations are not available for individual events. 
 
The following documents can be accessed by clicking on the links below:  
 

• Event Poster 
• Symposium Draft Program  
• BOH Section Meeting Draft Agenda  
• Leading Change – The 5 Tensions to Manage Successful Transformation 

Workshop Poster and Draft Agenda 
• Harnessing the Power of ‘Where’ for Public Health Discussion Workshop Draft 

Agenda 
• Zoom Troubleshooting Tips 

 

Registration is for alPHa Members only, (please note, you do not need to create an 
account on the alPHa website in order to register for the event) and the cost is 
$399+HST (and is inclusive of the Symposium, Workshops, and Section Meeting. You 
also only need to register once to attend all of the events). The closing date to 
register is Friday, February 7, 2025. Cancellations and substitutions are 
permitted until February 7. Cancellations are subject to a $50 processing fee and 
must be received by February 7. No refunds will be issued after that date.  
 
As an important reminder, badge sharing is not permitted, and one registration 
equals one Member. This is a vital way to ensure all attendees have paid and are 
supporting alPHa in doing so. 
 
Please note, the best way to pay for your registration is via credit card or Electronic 
Fund Transfer (EFT). If it is not possible to pay via credit card or EFT, cheques may 
be sent to:  
 

Association of Local Public Health Agencies 

Page 109 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoid0hiN2hPa3htVVB1NXB6V1dBM1JidWRDLUdNIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcL0IxMTVDOENCLTlBMTEtNDMzRS05ODhBLUU0RkVGMjU0MEVFMVxcXC9hbFBIYV8yMDI1X1dpbnRlcl9TeW1wb3NpdW1fRXNyaV9Xb3Jrc2hvcF9GZWIxLnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiZjVkODdlMGI0OTNkY2FhMTA0ZjNhMzFlOWQ3ZTk1ZDgxMDMyYzQzMFwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiYVl4ZVRoem5uQXVOTlVjamYzX296YVZrVFNFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcL0IxMTVDOENCLTlBMTEtNDMzRS05ODhBLUU0RkVGMjU0MEVFMVxcXC8yMDI1X1dpbnRlcl9TeW1wb3NpdW1fcG9zdGVyLnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiNmJmNmEzMmRiNTJlZTE5OTYzNzk4OTMzMWI0Njk1Njc5ZDg5ZTZmN1wiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiQ0VraUVFQWkxNkNvMW5NM1U4ME5Md1YzcVRJIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcL0IxMTVDOENCLTlBMTEtNDMzRS05ODhBLUU0RkVGMjU0MEVFMVxcXC9hbFBIYV8yMDI1X1dpbnRlcl9TeW1wb3NpdW1fUHJvZ3JhbS5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImM3N2ZiYjM5ZWNjZmU4ZTg3NjNhNmFmZWYwOTQyNjAxMDk5YzU0OTVcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiQUFqVXA1NWplY0t6LVByUFZJMFVkQkk2SWJVIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzQxNkYyRjlBLTBFQUMtNDA0OC1CODEzLUJCMTNCNzIwRDJBN1xcXC9CT0hfU2VjdGlvbl9BZ2VuZGFfMTQwMjI1LnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiNDRjYjE1MWRkMzAwZTgzNjZlYTg2YTYxNTg0OWZlN2I2NDRiNGRlOFwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiLXdyLTVOTlRycWF1ZWNzSVd2RFRwSlpJbmtZIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcL0IxMTVDOENCLTlBMTEtNDMzRS05ODhBLUU0RkVGMjU0MEVFMVxcXC9hbFBIYV8yMDI1X1dpbnRlcl9TeW1wb3NpdW1fQXJub2xkX1dvcmtzaG9wX0ZlLnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiNWE1ZmE0ZGE2Nzc2ZWU4YjlmYzE0MjYwNDI4MjUyODlkMGE3ZmM2M1wiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiLXdyLTVOTlRycWF1ZWNzSVd2RFRwSlpJbmtZIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcL0IxMTVDOENCLTlBMTEtNDMzRS05ODhBLUU0RkVGMjU0MEVFMVxcXC9hbFBIYV8yMDI1X1dpbnRlcl9TeW1wb3NpdW1fQXJub2xkX1dvcmtzaG9wX0ZlLnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiNWE1ZmE0ZGE2Nzc2ZWU4YjlmYzE0MjYwNDI4MjUyODlkMGE3ZmM2M1wiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoid0hiN2hPa3htVVB1NXB6V1dBM1JidWRDLUdNIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcL0IxMTVDOENCLTlBMTEtNDMzRS05ODhBLUU0RkVGMjU0MEVFMVxcXC9hbFBIYV8yMDI1X1dpbnRlcl9TeW1wb3NpdW1fRXNyaV9Xb3Jrc2hvcF9GZWIxLnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiZjVkODdlMGI0OTNkY2FhMTA0ZjNhMzFlOWQ3ZTk1ZDgxMDMyYzQzMFwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoid0hiN2hPa3htVVB1NXB6V1dBM1JidWRDLUdNIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcL0IxMTVDOENCLTlBMTEtNDMzRS05ODhBLUU0RkVGMjU0MEVFMVxcXC9hbFBIYV8yMDI1X1dpbnRlcl9TeW1wb3NpdW1fRXNyaV9Xb3Jrc2hvcF9GZWIxLnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiZjVkODdlMGI0OTNkY2FhMTA0ZjNhMzFlOWQ3ZTk1ZDgxMDMyYzQzMFwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiMk9zSUd2SUpHLVY2ZDhCWUx3b2ktTW9WTS1rIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcL0IxMTVDOENCLTlBMTEtNDMzRS05ODhBLUU0RkVGMjU0MEVFMVxcXC9ab29tX1Ryb3VibGVzaG9vdGluZy5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjk5YmU0OTdkZGU2MjkxOGM1OTA1NDEwMjdmMTkyNjg2MTc0OWQzYjlcIl19In0


PO Box 73510, RPO Wychwood  
Toronto, Ont.  

M6C 4A7  
 
If you have any questions regarding these events, please contact alPHa Staff at: 
info@alphaweb.org.  

 

   

Calling all Executive Assistants/Administrative Assistants! 
 

 

In case you missed it, registration has opened for the Executive 
Assistant/Administrative Assistant Workshop! This online event will be held on 
Tuesday, February 11, 2025 from 1 p.m. - 4 p.m., and is an opportunity to connect 
with colleagues from across Ontario and learn new skills. The cost is $149+HST and 
the final day to register is Friday, February 7, 2025. 
 
alPHa would like to acknowledge and thank Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit for 
being the co-host for the alPHa EA/AA Workshop. Their support and partnership have 
made this event possible. A thank you also goes to the University of Toronto’s Dalla 

Page 110 of 124 

mailto:info@alphaweb.org?subject=&body=
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiUWoxUGhXTXJDSlNxX0thbW9TTzVVLXFPa1ZZIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvZXZlbnRzXFxcL0V2ZW50RGV0YWlscy5hc3B4P2lkPTE5MjQwNjYmZ3JvdXA9XCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJlMWU2ODZkMWMyNjMzZTRhNWVlMmJjNGQzMmVjNWFlZmM1MDFkMjA4XCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiUWoxUGhXTXJDSlNxX0thbW9TTzVVLXFPa1ZZIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvZXZlbnRzXFxcL0V2ZW50RGV0YWlscy5hc3B4P2lkPTE5MjQwNjYmZ3JvdXA9XCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJlMWU2ODZkMWMyNjMzZTRhNWVlMmJjNGQzMmVjNWFlZmM1MDFkMjA4XCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.simcoemuskokahealth.org?p=eyJzIjoibElDVWRDUFhzQU1USWVWNzR3UDdCeFFFdll3IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5zaW1jb2VtdXNrb2thaGVhbHRoLm9yZ1xcXC9cIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImY4NmVjMzA3ZjExZDhkZTFiZmJkMjRlZTQyMGM4Y2VhYzFlNTJjYTBcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.dlsph.utoronto.ca?p=eyJzIjoiMUt4VVE0SUJiaUFWbWczWXNvZnlPMmVmMTJFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5kbHNwaC51dG9yb250by5jYVxcXC9cIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjQ0YWMyMTk0MjYwOGRlMjBkNDlhMjYwNTRjN2M3MGRiMzVkZWJkMGZcIl19In0


Lana School of Public Health, Eastern Ontario Health Unit, Esri Canada, and GenWell 
for their generous event support.  
 
The workshop, titled Building A More Connected Canada Where Everyone Thrives, is 
being led by Pete Bombaci, Founder & CEO, of GenWell. It will help you to deepen 
your understanding of the growing issues of social isolation, disconnection and 
loneliness, and the power of the human connection in the workplace. To learn more 
about this event, you can view the flyer here. 
 
Please note, you do not need to create an account on the alPHa website in order to 
register for the workshop. Cancellations and substitutions are permitted until 
February 7. Cancellations are subject to a $50 processing fee. No refunds will be 
issued after that date. The best way to pay for your registration is via credit card or 
Electronic Fund Transfer (EFT). If it is not possible to pay via credit card or EFT, 
cheques may be sent to:  
 

Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
PO Box 73510, RPO Wychwood  

Toronto, Ont.  
M6C 4A7  

 
As an important reminder, badge sharing is not permitted, and one registration 
equals one participant. This is a vital way to ensure all attendees have paid and are 
supporting alPHa in doing so. 
 
While this workshop is geared to EAs/AAs, if there are other support staff from your 
health unit who would benefit from it, please share this invitation with them. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this event, please contact alPHa Staff at: 
info@alphaweb.org.   
 
We hope to see you online on February 11! 

 

   

Rural Ontario Municipal Association (ROMA) Conference 
 

Page 111 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.dlsph.utoronto.ca?p=eyJzIjoiMUt4VVE0SUJiaUFWbWczWXNvZnlPMmVmMTJFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5kbHNwaC51dG9yb250by5jYVxcXC9cIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjQ0YWMyMTk0MjYwOGRlMjBkNDlhMjYwNTRjN2M3MGRiMzVkZWJkMGZcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.eohu.ca?p=eyJzIjoiMXpxUTljYXJ2UWVqV3FqZy1KNW5jSjJTbkZNIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5lb2h1LmNhXFxcL2VuXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCI0OTg0YmVjYWNjYzA4OGJkY2RhZGZhYmRkY2IwMTQ1ZmEzY2M5YjZhXCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.esri.ca?p=eyJzIjoiVjNBRHNnY1BST2JkY1FHaDFnU1pmZTFzWGVrIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5lc3JpLmNhXFxcL2VuLWNhXFxcL2hvbWVcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImJlY2I1YWI1OWYwMjA4NmNkZGRjZDFiYTYxOTljYjljZGQ2ZjkyNjVcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/genwell.ca?p=eyJzIjoiajNfcXU0eXI5OG1oUzlKN2JwMmtGdUg1N0NzIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2dlbndlbGwuY2FcXFwvXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJmY2I1ZjdjYWRhY2QyNDViYWY4ZjlmYTNjYmJjMGIyNzRmMDg3NmI1XCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiMVFCSkxtWk9sTTF1aXZYS2d5THZyQXY1S0F3IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcL0IxMTVDOENCLTlBMTEtNDMzRS05ODhBLUU0RkVGMjU0MEVFMVxcXC8yMDI1X0VBQUFfV29ya3Nob3BfcG9zdGVyLnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMGRlZTdlN2U1YzM4ZjI1YjNjZjU3ZWYzZWQ2OTNhZGUyZWVkMzk5NVwiXX0ifQ
mailto:info@alphaweb.org?subject=&body=


 

This month, many alPHa Members, particularly from the Boards of Health Section, 
will be attending the ROMA Conference taking place from January 19-21, in Toronto. 
Whether you’re an alPHa member attending the conference or participating in a 
delegation, here are some key alPHa resources:  
 

• 2025 Pre-Budget Consultations - alPHa Deputation 
• alPHa Letter - OAG Opioid Strategy 
• alPHa’s submissions on 2024 OPHS Review (includes the Statement of Principles) 

and OPHS Review Follow-Up 
• alPHa’s Resolutions from the 2024 AGM 
• Public Health Matters Infographic – Business Case for Public Health 
• “What is Public Health?” 

 
Looking for more information? Visit our Boards of Health Resources webpage for 
documents to help you prepare for this event.  

 

   

Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) releases report on 
ending chronic homelessness 

 

Page 112 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.roma.on.ca?p=eyJzIjoiVW81bGNqZ3dfdzJHdUFMRkIzcmZYbWxNUC1ZIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5yb21hLm9uLmNhXFxcL3JvbWEtY29uZmVyZW5jZVwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiZjEwODEwMDI4NWZmMGE2YzVlOTQ3ODY2ZTA4MGUwNGUxMjU1ODAzOVwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiLW1Wd0FVa05pNVMwTEtCazVJOVpCVjNIMEgwIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzA1MjA3Rjc0LTA4REMtNDg0Ri05Qzk4LUZEMjk2QzdDNjc3MVxcXC9hbFBIYV9EZXB1dGF0aW9uX1ByZV9CdWRnZXRfMjAyNV8xNjEyMjQucGRmXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJkNzIwMDMxOGJjNDNjNGFmZWNlNzE0N2RlYTdlYzliZWJjOTU1YTQxXCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoieGpmNUQ1ZW1rMnlqSk4tWmhaemlMb3h4d0RFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvcmVzb3VyY2VcXFwvY29sbGVjdGlvblxcXC8wNTIwN0Y3NC0wOERDLTQ4NEYtOUM5OC1GRDI5NkM3QzY3NzFcXFwvYWxQSGFfTGV0dGVyX09BR19PcGlvaWRfU3RyYXRlZ3lfMTcxMjI0LnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiN2FkNTlkNWNlMDE2ZjYzNTA2ODUzZWQyNTU2NTA3ZDU1MWM3NDYwM1wiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiN3gyc2JEYVhkQjcyZ1Q1WE11UlNjYmZXVU9RIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzA1MjA3Rjc0LTA4REMtNDg0Ri05Qzk4LUZEMjk2QzdDNjc3MVxcXC9hbFBIYV9MZXR0ZXJfT1BIU19SZXZpZXdfUmVzcG9uc2VfMjAyNjI0LnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMzdhODMwMjVkMmM1MDc0M2QyZjUyN2Q5NjBjN2I5NTdhZTcxMmU4M1wiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoienpGZGlmR0lrUWpxWmotYmdOUFg2S0pCaWxzIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzA1MjA3Rjc0LTA4REMtNDg0Ri05Qzk4LUZEMjk2QzdDNjc3MVxcXC9hbFBIYV9MZXR0ZXJfT1BIU19SZXZpZXdfUmVxdWVzdF8yNTA2MjQucGRmXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCIwNTA1NzEwY2M1N2Y0MjNiNTU2MWMyOGU3ODk1OTBmMWE1Mjk4NzE2XCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoib1B5T1NYN1NqRDZTdjdvNENXaWpIVXM0WlljIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvcGFnZVxcXC9hbFBIYV9SZXNvbHV0aW9uc1wiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMzdkYTBjMmI2N2JjMDM3ODhhNGExZDhmYWJkYTIwYmQzYjY4Y2M3MlwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiUjA4TUVSMk43OUdNa3F0WEZWbHBsWDFYWURZIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzgyMkVDNjBELTBEMDMtNDEzRS1CNTkwLUFGRTFBQTg2MjBBOVxcXC9QSF9NYXR0ZXJzX0luZm9ncmFwaGljX0J1c2luZXNzX0Nhc2VfSnVseV8yMDIzLnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMDY4N2UwMGRjMzIwNGZmNjE0ZmM1YzUxNDAzZTM2YzA5MzcyNTc0MVwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiR3BSaklTVnkzZXFKb0tLbnJIdFpWanlneThzIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzg2RDMxNjY2LUU3RUEtNDJGMS1CREExLUEwM0VDQTBCNEUzRFxcXC90cmlmb2xkX2Jyb2NodXJlX2FscGhhLnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMGU3N2Q4YTNhNmZlNzYzNTc3OTFhODlhMDNiZjE0ZDM2M2UyYWRlOVwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiR3BSaklTVnkzZXFKb0tLbnJIdFpWanlneThzIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzg2RDMxNjY2LUU3RUEtNDJGMS1CREExLUEwM0VDQTBCNEUzRFxcXC90cmlmb2xkX2Jyb2NodXJlX2FscGhhLnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMGU3N2Q4YTNhNmZlNzYzNTc3OTFhODlhMDNiZjE0ZDM2M2UyYWRlOVwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiR3BSaklTVnkzZXFKb0tLbnJIdFpWanlneThzIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzg2RDMxNjY2LUU3RUEtNDJGMS1CREExLUEwM0VDQTBCNEUzRFxcXC90cmlmb2xkX2Jyb2NodXJlX2FscGhhLnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMGU3N2Q4YTNhNmZlNzYzNTc3OTFhODlhMDNiZjE0ZDM2M2UyYWRlOVwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiNC1CRHk4cVhaVzRRai1DQXhKLVJKVlpHS21VIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvcGFnZVxcXC9CT0hfU2hhcmVkX1Jlc291cmNlc1wiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiYTRkYTNmMjc5MWExMTY2OGQxZTljNmFjYWIxNmQwMTc1ZTNmYzVlNFwiXX0ifQ


 

AMO, a non-profit organization representing all of Ontario’s 444 municipal 
governments, has released a new research report documenting the growth in 
homelessness in recent years and outlining what is needed to reverse these 
trends. This research project was undertaken in partnership with the Ontario 
Municipal Social Services Association (OMSSA) and the Northern Ontario Service 
Delivery Association (NOSDA) while also being led by researchers at HelpSeeker 
Technologies.  
 
The full report, key messages cover document, news release and a communications 
toolkit are now on the AMO website. 

 

   

2025 Budget Consultations 
 

 

alPHa sent an e-mail to the Membership on December 3, 2024 regarding the 
Government of Ontario seeking input on the 2025 budget. You can submit your input 
via a survey, a written submission, or by mail.  
 

Page 113 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.amo.on.ca?p=eyJzIjoiMkhjbERra29yTWMxa1duc0NZVFpNc2xGZmpRIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbW8ub24uY2FcXFwvc2l0ZXNcXFwvZGVmYXVsdFxcXC9maWxlc1xcXC9hc3NldHNcXFwvRE9DVU1FTlRTXFxcL1JlcG9ydHNcXFwvMjAyNVxcXC8yMDI1LTAxLTA4LUVuZGluZ0Nocm9uaWNIb21lbGVzc25lc3Npbk9udGFyaW8ucGRmXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJhZWRhY2VkOWM4NGFkZjA4Y2M5ZTMyZmEwYWExYTRiNmYwYTRhMmQyXCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.amo.on.ca?p=eyJzIjoiblNXT1FBbzRGQ0Mtb1lTY2phc2VzNFAtSTdFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbW8ub24uY2FcXFwvcG9saWN5XFxcL2hlYWx0aC1lbWVyZ2VuY3ktYW5kLXNvY2lhbC1zZXJ2aWNlc1wiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiY2U4NjExYTVkOGE3MzU4NDc3NmU5MTYyNWYxYjczMzM2MTBiNjVhMFwiXX0ifQ


On December 16, 2024, Paul Sharma, Affiliate Representative on the alPHa Board of 
Directors, gave a deputation regarding the Ontario budget, on behalf of the 
Association during a consultation session that took place in Mississauga. Please note, 
the speakers were limited to three minutes for presentation time. To view the 
deputation, click here.  
 
alPHa will be providing a written submission and invites its Members to also do so. 
alPHa Members are encouraged to also send in a submission. Details can be found 
below and at www.ontario.ca/budgetconsultations. 
 
You can share your ideas in the following ways: 
 

• The online survey will close on February 3, 2025. 
• Take the survey 

 
• Submit your written ideas via the submission portal by February 3, 2025. 
• Submit your proposal 

 
• Mail your submission to: 

 
The Honourable Peter Bethlenfalvy 

Minister of Finance  
c/o Budget Secretariat 

Frost Building North, 3rd Floor 
95 Grosvenor Street 

Toronto, Ontario 
M7A 1Z1 

 

• Email: MOFconsultations@ontario.ca for more information. 
• Questions? Email: MOFconsultations@ontario.ca 

 

   

National Collaborating Centres for Methods and Tools: 2025 
Knowledge Translation Graduate Student Awards 

 

 

Page 114 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiLW1Wd0FVa05pNVMwTEtCazVJOVpCVjNIMEgwIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzA1MjA3Rjc0LTA4REMtNDg0Ri05Qzk4LUZEMjk2QzdDNjc3MVxcXC9hbFBIYV9EZXB1dGF0aW9uX1ByZV9CdWRnZXRfMjAyNV8xNjEyMjQucGRmXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJkNzIwMDMxOGJjNDNjNGFmZWNlNzE0N2RlYTdlYzliZWJjOTU1YTQxXCJdfSJ9
https://u46488652.ct.sendgrid.net/ls/click?upn=u001.dR0-2BwQKx3frVtR3xG9TfEySvPJ9rYDeOlENU2Cw6GKqMcDDPriiE-2FWqxXNszwvZjAi1uYxA5X2VyN5kQ9-2BQq5Q-3D-3DdlFs_MzuE0smQ3ftRBr1LVH3E8MN8-2BytOgoLQiHKe-2FpYfqoFfpCka0EBO9Pg38icYbnYnMEEB-2BAZBdqgvEcCzDyXeGbDT9FJtAtN73WZ26Dn2ddRbtt2UTiISUY2ettd7jxEKwY19Nu2ZzIXhgzX5FdHIUvWmoQoCjpXoi0q7JW6VqPxnE6SnwjfdYoY4nngYKfYuqfaEhEJGKR-2F1bb4PcfcsXw-3D-3D
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.ontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiWno5R01TcnNKN3RzTHVVX3gtUVN4a3FlRldjIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5vbnRhcmlvLmNhXFxcL2Zvcm1cXFwvc3VydmV5LTIwMjUtYnVkZ2V0LWNvbnN1bHRhdGlvbnNcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImViMzgyZWUwZmZhMzNkZGU2MTA5ZWM2ZmE0MmQxYjliZTg2OWEyYmFcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.sms.cac.gov.on.ca?p=eyJzIjoiQ3AzMnY0VDFxU2QwWWRuU210dzVRcHExN0drIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5zbXMuY2FjLmdvdi5vbi5jYVxcXC9lbi1DQVxcXC9DYW1wYWlnbkxhbmRpbmdQYWdlXFxcL0luZGV4XFxcLzBiZjFlMzFlLWZkYmYtNDhhMi05M2Y3LTU1OTk5NDE0YjMxN1wiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMDA0YWNhNTg1OTkxODVhYzZmMzIyYjAxMThjYjUzMzA5YjM5Y2FjZlwiXX0ifQ
mailto:MOFconsultations@ontario.ca
mailto:MOFconsultations@ontario.ca


The National Collaborating Centres for Public Health (https://nccph.ca/) are now 
accepting applications for the 2025 Knowledge Translation Graduate Student 
Awards! Three prizes of $1500 will be awarded to recognize the work of graduate 
students related to knowledge translation in public health in Canada. The deadline 
for applications is February 10, 2025. Learn more about the awards here: 
https://www.nccmt.ca/impact/kt-student-awards-nccph. 

 

   

Voluntary mergers for local public health agencies  
 

 

On December 2, 2024, the Government of Ontario made a number of 
announcements, including the voluntary mergers of nine local public health agencies. 
To read more, click here.  

 

   

Ontario Public Health Directory: January 2025 update  
 

 

Page 115 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/nccph.ca?p=eyJzIjoiMUhlcFNUWEQ5a0pwLV9ua2s0YVJRZmdFdE5NIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL25jY3BoLmNhXFxcL1wiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjdiMTllNWU0NjdiNDQzMTVhYmEyYjRlMDMyYTFlNzhiXCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiNWE3MTc2OWE2ODI4ZWU1MmIwYTkzMGRhZDA1ZGViMGU3OTJhMjdhOVwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.nccmt.ca?p=eyJzIjoiZk5TYlJCM0RQZ3pmUUZuVlp5OFUxSXhXYXhNIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5uY2NtdC5jYVxcXC9pbXBhY3RcXFwva3Qtc3R1ZGVudC1hd2FyZHMtbmNjcGhcIixcImlkXCI6XCI3YjE5ZTVlNDY3YjQ0MzE1YWJhMmI0ZTAzMmExZTc4YlwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjE2YzRlYWNkMDRmNWY4NTc2ZTIxYWUwOTAzMjA5NmM2NDgwYzhkZWJcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/news.ontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiUmxsTGdBLVJmRC1QV29tRDlmcjNwZXdsYmxvIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL25ld3Mub250YXJpby5jYVxcXC9lblxcXC9yZWxlYXNlXFxcLzEwMDU0MzZcXFwvb250YXJpby1jb250aW51aW5nLXRvLWJ1aWxkLWEtbW9yZS1jb25uZWN0ZWQtYW5kLWNvbnZlbmllbnQtaGVhbHRoLWNhcmUtc3lzdGVtXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJhY2FkZGE2YTc1NmU5NDkyZjA3OTVhYjI0ZjUwOWUyNGJmY2UyNDBjXCJdfSJ9


The Ontario Public Health Directory has been updated and is available on the alPHa 
website. Please ensure you have the latest version, which has been dated as of 
January 14, 2025. To view the file, log into the alPHa website.   
 
Please note, we will be updating the directory again soon with regards to the recently 
announced mergers.  

 

   

GenWell: Face-to-Face February  
 

 

In February, GenWell is launching its Face-to-Face February campaign. This is built 
by students, for students, and is a month-long social connection challenge that 
encourages students to take action throughout February to get more socially 
connected with others. To learn more, click here.  
 
alPHa is very pleased to note that Pete Bombaci, from GenWell, will be conducting a 
workshop with the EAs/AAs on February 11. He will also be the opening keynote 
speaker at the Winter Symposium on February 14.   

 

   

Boards of Health: Shared Resources 
 

Page 116 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoia0dwbkZqWXZlVkpLV0pHX1k3Z0lPVndQVGhvIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvZ2xvYmFsX2VuZ2luZVxcXC9kb3dubG9hZC5hc3B4P2ZpbGVpZD1BQzhFQkRGNC1GNjgzLTRDMTItODRCOS1DMEVBOThBM0U0QzhcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjI4NWFmZDJmMDZjMTVlYmZkNzIxOTJmNTY0YTYyNmQ5YjEyMTM3NmNcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/genwell.ca?p=eyJzIjoiTWItWW9qVnNPeHZsT1BiOXZ3X2c2alhIa2Z3IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2dlbndlbGwuY2FcXFwvY2FtcGFpZ25zXFxcL1wiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiYWM2NGZhYzRiZjFjNWNkMjEyM2IxNjY1NjJjYjYwNTdlMDBhYzk4MlwiXX0ifQ


 

A resource page is available on alPHa's website for Board of Health members to 
facilitate the sharing of and access to information, orientation materials, best 
practices, case studies, by-laws, Resolutions, and other resources. In particular, 
alPHa is seeking resources to share regarding the province’s 
Strengthening Public Health Initiative, including but not limited to, 
voluntary mergers and the need for long-term funding for local public 
health. If you have a best practice, by-law or any other resource that you would like 
to make available via the newsletter and/or the website, please send a file or a link 
with a brief description to gordon@alphaweb.org and for posting in the appropriate 
library. 
 
 
Resources available on the alPHa website include: 

 

• Orientation Manual for Boards of 
Health (Revised Jan. 2024) 

• Review of Board of Health Liability, 
2018, (PowerPoint presentation, 
Feb. 24, 2023) 

• Legal Matters: Updates for Boards 
of Health (Video, June 8, 2021) 

• Obligations of a Board of Health 
under the Municipal Act, 2001 
(Revised 2021) 

• Governance Toolkit (Revised 2022) 
• Risk Management for Health Units 

• The Ontario Public Health 
Standards 

• Public Appointee Role and 
Governance Overview (for 
Provincial Appointees to BOH) 

• Ontario Boards of Health by Region 
• List of Units sorted by Municipality 
• List of Municipalities sorted by 

Health Unit 
• Map: Boards of Health Types 

Page 117 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiNC1CRHk4cVhaVzRRai1DQXhKLVJKVlpHS21VIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvcGFnZVxcXC9CT0hfU2hhcmVkX1Jlc291cmNlc1wiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiYTRkYTNmMjc5MWExMTY2OGQxZTljNmFjYWIxNmQwMTc1ZTNmYzVlNFwiXX0ifQ
mailto:gordon@alphaweb.org
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiLXlteDBqUzkzZ1NxbVBteWZYQXJBbjlJdXFFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcL0U3NUI2RUVGLTYwQjktNDgyRi04M0Q2LTY5QUVERTc5MDE5MlxcXC9CT0hfT3JpZW50YXRpb25fTWFudWFsXzIwMjJfUl9KYW5fMjAyNC5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImU5NTlhNjE2MWZhZWQxMjUyNWNkZDk1YWVlYmNmYWUwMjEwOGRhM2JcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiLXlteDBqUzkzZ1NxbVBteWZYQXJBbjlJdXFFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcL0U3NUI2RUVGLTYwQjktNDgyRi04M0Q2LTY5QUVERTc5MDE5MlxcXC9CT0hfT3JpZW50YXRpb25fTWFudWFsXzIwMjJfUl9KYW5fMjAyNC5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImU5NTlhNjE2MWZhZWQxMjUyNWNkZDk1YWVlYmNmYWUwMjEwOGRhM2JcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiS2gtVEJQQUszVVhlMjdTUWVkTGd5eUI4ekdjIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvcmVzb3VyY2VcXFwvcmVzbWdyXFxcL2JvaF9maWxlXFxcL2JvYXJkX2xpYWJpbGl0eV9wYXBlcl8yMDE4LnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMWE5ZWE0MmY1ZmMyMThmYjNjMGNiZjAxYTc2OTcxNWE0ZjlkZTBmZFwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiS2gtVEJQQUszVVhlMjdTUWVkTGd5eUI4ekdjIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvcmVzb3VyY2VcXFwvcmVzbWdyXFxcL2JvaF9maWxlXFxcL2JvYXJkX2xpYWJpbGl0eV9wYXBlcl8yMDE4LnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMWE5ZWE0MmY1ZmMyMThmYjNjMGNiZjAxYTc2OTcxNWE0ZjlkZTBmZFwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoidTVvTkVrUDFBX0Nlb3hTdzg4RGE1NmIyQktzIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvZ2xvYmFsX2VuZ2luZVxcXC9kb3dubG9hZC5hc3B4P2ZpbGVpZD1EQjdENDY2NS0yOTQwLTRGNDYtQTEwQS1DRTM5RUVBQ0E1OEZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjI4NWFmZDJmMDZjMTVlYmZkNzIxOTJmNTY0YTYyNmQ5YjEyMTM3NmNcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoidTVvTkVrUDFBX0Nlb3hTdzg4RGE1NmIyQktzIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvZ2xvYmFsX2VuZ2luZVxcXC9kb3dubG9hZC5hc3B4P2ZpbGVpZD1EQjdENDY2NS0yOTQwLTRGNDYtQTEwQS1DRTM5RUVBQ0E1OEZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjI4NWFmZDJmMDZjMTVlYmZkNzIxOTJmNTY0YTYyNmQ5YjEyMTM3NmNcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.youtube.com?p=eyJzIjoiYTF3bERrRHFjZU5Ma284dlVNS0xIOE5meFBNIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy55b3V0dWJlLmNvbVxcXC93YXRjaD92PW9ZMnBSbDJGM3gwXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCI3NzRmNzQxMmQxYTM2OWQxYzA0YWIwYmI5NjQ2MTRjZDU1ZTdlMjk0XCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.youtube.com?p=eyJzIjoiYTF3bERrRHFjZU5Ma284dlVNS0xIOE5meFBNIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy55b3V0dWJlLmNvbVxcXC93YXRjaD92PW9ZMnBSbDJGM3gwXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCI3NzRmNzQxMmQxYTM2OWQxYzA0YWIwYmI5NjQ2MTRjZDU1ZTdlMjk0XCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoieU5Za3ZVYkZwOFRFcGUwRlgtTTRLdDVRalZJIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvcmVzb3VyY2VcXFwvcmVzbWdyXFxcL2JvaF9maWxlXFxcLzIwMjFfUmV2aXNlZF9PYmxpZ2F0aW9uc19vZl8ucGRmXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCI0MWU1YzE2YzUxODYzZjc0MjdkMDhlMjIzYzdjMDAyYmQ5NDYxOTZmXCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoieU5Za3ZVYkZwOFRFcGUwRlgtTTRLdDVRalZJIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvcmVzb3VyY2VcXFwvcmVzbWdyXFxcL2JvaF9maWxlXFxcLzIwMjFfUmV2aXNlZF9PYmxpZ2F0aW9uc19vZl8ucGRmXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCI0MWU1YzE2YzUxODYzZjc0MjdkMDhlMjIzYzdjMDAyYmQ5NDYxOTZmXCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiRXFQOTlnMXAydXZ4MGs5bnJjdThOekNucjFrIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcL0U3NUI2RUVGLTYwQjktNDgyRi04M0Q2LTY5QUVERTc5MDE5MlxcXC9CT0hfR09WRVJOQU5DRV9UT09MS0lUXzIwMjIucGRmXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJhOTlkMDMyMDY2ZTQwYjFlMjViZjRhMDhlNzFlMjU2NzVhNTEyNGU1XCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiOVBNbGJuU29LLVZOTVFuVHo1V1BZeU1VRTZZIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvcGFnZVxcXC9SaXNrTWdtdFwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiYTY3MTk1ZDRlNmQ2YmNkYTA2OWFhMjQzYTRlMDM5OWIyMWQ3MjE5YlwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.health.gov.on.ca?p=eyJzIjoieGVGZlIwenprYXpuMlpJNE1MNXN5c0hXeENVIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwOlxcXC9cXFwvd3d3LmhlYWx0aC5nb3Yub24uY2FcXFwvZW5cXFwvcHJvXFxcL3Byb2dyYW1zXFxcL3B1YmxpY2hlYWx0aFxcXC9vcGhfc3RhbmRhcmRzXFxcL2RlZmF1bHQuYXNweD9cXFwvaW5kZXguaHRtbFwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiOWYwNDkzMDk1MDQyYWI1OWI4MGNiZjBhZDZkMWU2NTQ5YTk1NjQ5YlwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.health.gov.on.ca?p=eyJzIjoieGVGZlIwenprYXpuMlpJNE1MNXN5c0hXeENVIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwOlxcXC9cXFwvd3d3LmhlYWx0aC5nb3Yub24uY2FcXFwvZW5cXFwvcHJvXFxcL3Byb2dyYW1zXFxcL3B1YmxpY2hlYWx0aFxcXC9vcGhfc3RhbmRhcmRzXFxcL2RlZmF1bHQuYXNweD9cXFwvaW5kZXguaHRtbFwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiOWYwNDkzMDk1MDQyYWI1OWI4MGNiZjBhZDZkMWU2NTQ5YTk1NjQ5YlwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoicEZHQ0JvOEdrRmZCemprZVgtWlZ1dkVpUWw4IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzg2RDMxNjY2LUU3RUEtNDJGMS1CREExLUEwM0VDQTBCNEUzRFxcXC9QQVNfQXBwb2ludGVlX09yaWVudGF0aW9uXzA5MDgxOS5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjA2ZjA3NjU0MWE5NTc0NTdjMGIzYTVjNzk2NmI2MGM2OWQ1NjUxNmRcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoicEZHQ0JvOEdrRmZCemprZVgtWlZ1dkVpUWw4IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzg2RDMxNjY2LUU3RUEtNDJGMS1CREExLUEwM0VDQTBCNEUzRFxcXC9QQVNfQXBwb2ludGVlX09yaWVudGF0aW9uXzA5MDgxOS5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjA2ZjA3NjU0MWE5NTc0NTdjMGIzYTVjNzk2NmI2MGM2OWQ1NjUxNmRcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiWFBXY0k4ZWNrVVFFbFF3T19XcDFaZFhRWVo0IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9yZXNtZ3JcXFwvYm9oX2ZpbGVcXFwvb250YXJpb19ib2FyZHNfb2ZfaGVhbHRoX2J5Xy5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImI2YjEwZGE1ZGEwMjg3ZDliMDllOTIzNzBjNmNhYjI1OTc2ZmUzMzNcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiaW50NTV1U21LOUxGTnZFcXFneW5PNTlFem93IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzg2RDMxNjY2LUU3RUEtNDJGMS1CREExLUEwM0VDQTBCNEUzRFxcXC9IZWFsdGhfVW5pdF9CeV9NdW5pY2lwYWxpdHkucGRmXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCIwZjM0ZDkyN2M3Y2YyMzAzMWY0Yjg2Yzg5NmZiNDFhYTdkYjdjMTg1XCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoib2Z0cGotYk9SZ2ZieEFPeFZWcWZKLW1rczM0IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzg2RDMxNjY2LUU3RUEtNDJGMS1CREExLUEwM0VDQTBCNEUzRFxcXC9NdW5pY2lwYWxpdHlfQnlfSGVhbHRoX1VuaXQucGRmXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCIyNmNmNGEzNmU2OTY3NDM1YWMzYjZmZDZiZjVhZmVmOTJmYjVjMDIwXCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoib2Z0cGotYk9SZ2ZieEFPeFZWcWZKLW1rczM0IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzg2RDMxNjY2LUU3RUEtNDJGMS1CREExLUEwM0VDQTBCNEUzRFxcXC9NdW5pY2lwYWxpdHlfQnlfSGVhbHRoX1VuaXQucGRmXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCIyNmNmNGEzNmU2OTY3NDM1YWMzYjZmZDZiZjVhZmVmOTJmYjVjMDIwXCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiZE44LUgtcGw2ZzRYOXRuZEI4cFBKclB1QjBzIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcL0U3NUI2RUVGLTYwQjktNDgyRi04M0Q2LTY5QUVERTc5MDE5MlxcXC9hbFBIYV9NYXBfQk9IX1R5cGVzXzIwMjEucG5nXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCI4NzgzYjdmMGU4ZWZlOWYxZTVlYWJiYWIzOWZjMjYyZThjMmIyYjAyXCJdfSJ9


• Healthy Rural Communities Toolkit 
• The Canadian Centre on 

Substance Use and Addiction 
 

 

• NCCHPP Report: Profile of 
Ontario’s Public Health System 
(2021) 

• The Municipal Role of Public 
Health(2022 U of T Report) 

• Boards of Health and Ontario 
Not-for-Profit Corporations Act 

       

   

Calling all Ontario Boards of Health: Level up your expertise with 
our training courses designed just for you!  

 

 

Don't miss this unique opportunity to enhance your knowledge and strengthen local 
public health leadership in Ontario.  
 
BOH Governance training course 
Master public health governance and Ontario's Public Health Standards. You’ll learn 
all about public health legislation, funding, accountability, roles, structures, and 
much more. Gain insights into leadership and services that drive excellence in your 
unit.  
 
Social Determinants of Health training course 
Explore the impact of Social Determinants of Health on public health and municipal 
governments. Understand the context, explore Maslow's Hierarchy of Needs, and 
examine various SDOH diagrams to better serve your communities. 
 
Speakers are Monika Turner and Loretta Ryan.  
 
Reserve your spot for in-person or virtual training now! Visit our website to learn 
more about the costs for Public Health Units (PHUs). Let's shape a healthier future 
together.   
 

Page 118 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiTS14TjQ3YlhfblR1d3FnSGZlU0NHbWlBOXFFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvcmVzb3VyY2VcXFwvcmVzbWdyXFxcL2RvY3NcXFwvaGVhbHRoeV9ydXJhbF9jb21tdW5pdGllc190by5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjlmMDA2OTdlNzFiYTUzOGM4NDAyNzg3YWNiOGEwNGJmN2U4OWVkNjNcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.ccsa.ca?p=eyJzIjoidTlQM1dKaTlSQzlSZ3dydlhyT2pod0tYTlM4IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5jY3NhLmNhXFxcL3B1YmxpY2F0aW9uc1wiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMzcyYjFjNjc2Y2Q4MjQ3ZTA2MjY5ZmI3ODk0ODBiMDJiM2IwMmU0YlwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.ccsa.ca?p=eyJzIjoidTlQM1dKaTlSQzlSZ3dydlhyT2pod0tYTlM4IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5jY3NhLmNhXFxcL3B1YmxpY2F0aW9uc1wiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMzcyYjFjNjc2Y2Q4MjQ3ZTA2MjY5ZmI3ODk0ODBiMDJiM2IwMmU0YlwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiVEZFTGFLRUNsa2dKd3c3cXpVblRVNldteUJnIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzgyMkVDNjBELTBEMDMtNDEzRS1CNTkwLUFGRTFBQTg2MjBBOVxcXC8yMDIxLVByb2ZpbGVzLW9mLVB1YmxpYy1IZWFsdGgtU3lzdGVtcy1pbi1DYW5hZGEtT250YXJpby5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjRkNDZjODJmNGU2ZTNlYjVjZTBkMzA4YzUzYWRmYTFlYjcwNGJlNGRcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiVEZFTGFLRUNsa2dKd3c3cXpVblRVNldteUJnIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzgyMkVDNjBELTBEMDMtNDEzRS1CNTkwLUFGRTFBQTg2MjBBOVxcXC8yMDIxLVByb2ZpbGVzLW9mLVB1YmxpYy1IZWFsdGgtU3lzdGVtcy1pbi1DYW5hZGEtT250YXJpby5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjRkNDZjODJmNGU2ZTNlYjVjZTBkMzA4YzUzYWRmYTFlYjcwNGJlNGRcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiR0ZOOVRQckttQmJSOW5wc2xaektvT0Nyc0NNIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzgyMkVDNjBELTBEMDMtNDEzRS1CNTkwLUFGRTFBQTg2MjBBOVxcXC9NdW5pY2lwYWxfUm9sZV9QdWJsaWNfSGVhbHRoXzE3MTEyMi5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjYxYTQ0OTBjNTk4MzhlYTQwMzM1NjQ0MTc5ZjRmNWRkODhkMjI3M2NcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiR0ZOOVRQckttQmJSOW5wc2xaektvT0Nyc0NNIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9jb2xsZWN0aW9uXFxcLzgyMkVDNjBELTBEMDMtNDEzRS1CNTkwLUFGRTFBQTg2MjBBOVxcXC9NdW5pY2lwYWxfUm9sZV9QdWJsaWNfSGVhbHRoXzE3MTEyMi5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjYxYTQ0OTBjNTk4MzhlYTQwMzM1NjQ0MTc5ZjRmNWRkODhkMjI3M2NcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiZU1IUTNMTUdqRXc3OWljU0xTcFFVYUpTTndBIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9yZXNtZ3JcXFwvYm9oX2ZpbGVcXFwvYWxQSGFfQ291bnNlbF9MZXR0ZXJfT05DQV8xMS5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImMyNGZhMjRhM2VjMzU1M2ZhYTJhNzhkYmZjNDhhYjkyYjYxM2Q2M2JcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiZU1IUTNMTUdqRXc3OWljU0xTcFFVYUpTTndBIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9yZXNtZ3JcXFwvYm9oX2ZpbGVcXFwvYWxQSGFfQ291bnNlbF9MZXR0ZXJfT05DQV8xMS5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImMyNGZhMjRhM2VjMzU1M2ZhYTJhNzhkYmZjNDhhYjkyYjYxM2Q2M2JcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/cdn.ymaws.com?p=eyJzIjoiazA2ZDQwMjNpSFdtSE9ZUnM0cmJOTXlXUHEwIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2Nkbi55bWF3cy5jb21cXFwvd3d3LmFscGhhd2ViLm9yZ1xcXC9yZXNvdXJjZVxcXC9yZXNtZ3JcXFwvYm9oX2ZpbGVcXFwvQk9ILWNvdXJzZS1mbHllci0yMDIzLnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiZmRlZWRkNjZiN2QyNmY2MzM3YzAzNzBkMjRkMDljYmRiZmMyZjIyNlwiXX0ifQ


Additionally, thank you to all the public health agencies who have shown interest in 
our BOH courses. alPHa staff are currently coordinating the bookings and are pleased 
to see the uptake.  
 
alPHa would like to thank Renfrew County and District Health Unit and North Bay 
Parry Sound District Health Unit for participating in the courses in November. We 
would also like to acknowledge City of Hamilton Public Health Services for 
participating on Monday, January 13.  

 

   

alPHa Correspondence 
 

 

Through policy analysis, collaboration, and advocacy, alPHa’s Members and staff act to 
promote public health policies that form a strong foundation for the improvement of 
health promotion and protection, disease prevention, and surveillance services in all of 
Ontario’s communities. A complete online library of submissions is available here. These 
documents are publicly available and can be shared widely. 

 

   

Public Health Ontario (PHO) 
 

 

New! Immunization Data Tool 
 

Page 119 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoiQ01abDgzS3FZZFA0a2hxSTloZXpWSGRFbFR3IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvcGFnZVxcXC9hbFBIYV9MZXR0ZXJzXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJiOTYxYzIzMmM3YThiZWI0ZjE4NzA1YjIwZTNjOGM3ZGU4MjRhMTgyXCJdfSJ9


PHO has published the new Immunization Data Tool! This new resource integrates 
and replaces existing immunization surveillance data previously reported on PHO’s 
website. Users are able to explore different aspects of immunization coverage and 
vaccine safety, including trends over time, comparisons across public health units 
(including maps) and age groups. All data in the tool can be easily downloaded. We 
have also published an accompanying infographic that provides a summary of AEFIs 
reported in Ontario following vaccines administered in 2023. These resources do not 
include data on COVID-19 vaccines. As a result of the data integration in this new 
tool, PHO’s Vaccine Safety Surveillance Tool is no longer be available. 
 
Data and Epidemiological Summaries 

• Mpox in Ontario 
• Measles in Ontario 
• SARS-CoV-2 Genomic Surveillance in Ontario 
• Integrated Respiratory Virus Risk Indicators for Ontario 
• Influenza Genomics Surveillance in Ontario: 2024-25 Early Season 
• Chlamydia in Ontario: Focus on 2023 
• Gonorrhea in Ontario: Focus on 2023 
• Infectious Syphilis and Early Congenital Syphilis in Ontario: Focus on 2023 
• Hepatitis C Surveillance Report 

 
Recent Knowledge Products 

• Prevention and Management of Avian Influenza in Health Care Settings 
• Healthcare Utilization and Clinical Comorbidities among People Who Died of a 

Substance-Related Toxicity Death in Ontario 
• Planning Health Promotion Programs 

 
Events 
Be sure to keep an eye on PHO’s Events page for their upcoming events. 

• 20 January - PHO Webinar: Vaping: Evidence on Dual Use with Tobacco 
Cigarettes 

• 22 January - PHO Webinar: Social Environments for Health Webinar Series 
Part Two: Stories from the Field 

 
Recent Presentations 

• Inflicted injuries among children and youth during the pandemic: A study 
across two Canadian provinces 

 

   

Page 120 of 124 

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/Data-and-Analysis/Infectious-Disease/Immunization-Tool
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/V/24/vaccine-safety-surveillance-tool-infographic.pdf?sc_lang=en&rev=bd89f0599d964eec8d629065d3eb1e2d&hash=FDB502E3A1BBBD8465DD88DBFFA77F7E
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoibzlHc2dkbllCeFhlUU1Dd0FUMzhrLWVoS2NRIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5wdWJsaWNoZWFsdGhvbnRhcmlvLmNhXFxcLy1cXFwvbWVkaWFcXFwvRG9jdW1lbnRzXFxcL01cXFwvMjRcXFwvbXBveC1vbnRhcmlvLWVwaS1zdW1tYXJ5LnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiYzM1YWRhOTQ3ZjRhYjBhZDIzZTBmYjBjZjA5ZTI4OGEyNjk5OTBjOFwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiVWtlX0t0bnNFZGk5ZHJNTFY3RjE3Q0pkODg0IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5wdWJsaWNoZWFsdGhvbnRhcmlvLmNhXFxcLy1cXFwvbWVkaWFcXFwvRG9jdW1lbnRzXFxcL01cXFwvMjRcXFwvbWVhc2xlcy1vbnRhcmlvLWVwaS1zdW1tYXJ5LnBkZlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiYzRiZTNmZDk5NzczODY0OTgwMjMwZGI1NDk3NWFmZWYyZmQ0ZDE5N1wiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiOV9UVl9uSmd5dlROemhVN184S25McVVUcXA4IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5wdWJsaWNoZWFsdGhvbnRhcmlvLmNhXFxcLy1cXFwvbWVkaWFcXFwvRG9jdW1lbnRzXFxcL25Db1ZcXFwvZXBpXFxcL2NvdmlkLTE5LXNhcnMtY292Mi13aG9sZS1nZW5vbWUtc2VxdWVuY2luZy1lcGktc3VtbWFyeS5wZGZcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImZmNDFlMzM1OTRjZTU0ODhkMjI3YTgzN2I1Y2M3NzUzMDMxOGJkY2NcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiSl8weWRMODczZ294cEoyRUVyR1IzYlpWZUdVIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5wdWJsaWNoZWFsdGhvbnRhcmlvLmNhXFxcLy1cXFwvbWVkaWFcXFwvRG9jdW1lbnRzXFxcL0lcXFwvMjRcXFwvaW5mbHVlbnphLWdlbm9taWMtc3VydmVpbGxhbmNlLW9udGFyaW8ucGRmPyZzY19sYW5nPWVuXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCJjYjZkNTY1NmNkZTk2N2NmZmE5MWUzYjkzMTczM2RiMDliN2Y4MWIxXCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoic3BkRFFFTXl1TEcyTll1a1hmUUFjNUNXRm0wIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwOlxcXC9cXFwvd3d3LnB1YmxpY2hlYWx0aG9udGFyaW8uY2FcXFwvLVxcXC9tZWRpYVxcXC9Eb2N1bWVudHNcXFwvQ1xcXC8yNVxcXC9jaGxhbXlkaWEtb250YXJpby1mb2N1cy0yMDIzLnBkZj9yZXY9YmRjYWIyMThhYzZmNDgwM2JkMWUwZmM5YmJlODQ1MTMmc2NfbGFuZz1lblwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiNWVhODI3NmRlN2Q4YmUwNDAyNzFjOGI1ZDRjZTg3NmI4ZThjNGQ5OVwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiSlV5eWlCUGstVExHa3k0eHhJamgtRy01NGFJIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwOlxcXC9cXFwvd3d3LnB1YmxpY2hlYWx0aG9udGFyaW8uY2FcXFwvLVxcXC9tZWRpYVxcXC9Eb2N1bWVudHNcXFwvR1xcXC8yNVxcXC9nb25vcnJoZWEtb250YXJpby1mb2N1cy0yMDIzLnBkZj9yZXY9OWYzNDNkZDJmNTQwNGYyOGI1NWQ4MjY0OTRlNDliZDgmc2NfbGFuZz1lblwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMTVlNzViMDRiNDQyZmYxNjg0NjBlOWFiYTQ2YzBjMWU1ZTJiYWUwMlwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiRk81MjFLUGJQaG1Zd0dYSEZXTkc0MDRnalhzIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwOlxcXC9cXFwvd3d3LnB1YmxpY2hlYWx0aG9udGFyaW8uY2FcXFwvLVxcXC9tZWRpYVxcXC9Eb2N1bWVudHNcXFwvU1xcXC8yNVxcXC9zeXBoaWxpcy1vbnRhcmlvLWZvY3VzLTIwMjMucGRmP3Jldj0zMjI4YWYwN2FkMGI0ZGY1YTRkZTA4MGQyYWRhZDg4YSZzY19sYW5nPWVuXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCI1ZjA0ZTk5MjIxOGEzODZhZmRjNmZjNWNkZWI1MzBjZTNlODAzMmVlXCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiUUtLbHJkNWRDam5Za3hUc01aX25uZ2tHeUtJIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5wdWJsaWNoZWFsdGhvbnRhcmlvLmNhXFxcLy1cXFwvbWVkaWFcXFwvRG9jdW1lbnRzXFxcL0FcXFwvMjVcXFwvYXZpYW4tZmx1LXByZXZlbnRpb24tbWFuYWdlbWVudC1oZWFsdGgtY2FyZS1zZXR0aW5ncy5wZGY_cmV2PSZzY19sYW5nPWVuXCIsXCJpZFwiOlwiNjRmMWM1MGVlZWQzNDEwMTlhODM4ZjZkYzM5MzljMTVcIixcInVybF9pZHNcIjpbXCI1NTIzMGUxYjFhZDI4ZTQwMDhhN2ZhN2UyNjcxY2Q4OWU2MmJmNzY1XCJdfSJ9
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiTDMxWTczT2RkUXplcVlvblRlYXFESjhJQzIwIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5wdWJsaWNoZWFsdGhvbnRhcmlvLmNhXFxcLy1cXFwvbWVkaWFcXFwvRG9jdW1lbnRzXFxcL09cXFwvMjVcXFwvb2Rwcm4taGVhbHRoY2FyZS11dGlsaXphdGlvbi1jbGluaWNhbC1jb21vcmJpZGl0aWVzLXN1YnN0YW5jZS5wZGY_cmV2PWJhNDgzNmI3YWYwMDQ0OGE4Y2MyYjAzMDNmZjc5OTQyJnNjX2xhbmc9ZW4maGFzaD1CNDNENzU5QkMxMzU1Qjk1Njg1MDhGODRCQkJGMURCNlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMTJjZjk0NDdiYTg2YTE4MTJjZWI0OTAyNDIxZjBhMzYzNTA4ZjZiYlwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiTDMxWTczT2RkUXplcVlvblRlYXFESjhJQzIwIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5wdWJsaWNoZWFsdGhvbnRhcmlvLmNhXFxcLy1cXFwvbWVkaWFcXFwvRG9jdW1lbnRzXFxcL09cXFwvMjVcXFwvb2Rwcm4taGVhbHRoY2FyZS11dGlsaXphdGlvbi1jbGluaWNhbC1jb21vcmJpZGl0aWVzLXN1YnN0YW5jZS5wZGY_cmV2PWJhNDgzNmI3YWYwMDQ0OGE4Y2MyYjAzMDNmZjc5OTQyJnNjX2xhbmc9ZW4maGFzaD1CNDNENzU5QkMxMzU1Qjk1Njg1MDhGODRCQkJGMURCNlwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiMTJjZjk0NDdiYTg2YTE4MTJjZWI0OTAyNDIxZjBhMzYzNTA4ZjZiYlwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiSHM2Z1ppSDNBVGJqMnB2VXloZjIzVjlGbFI0IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5wdWJsaWNoZWFsdGhvbnRhcmlvLmNhXFxcLy1cXFwvbWVkaWFcXFwvRG9jdW1lbnRzXFxcL1BcXFwvMjVcXFwvcGxhbm5pbmctaGVhbHRoLXByb21vdGlvbi1wcm9ncmFtcy5wZGY_cmV2PTAyMmI2ZjdmMjZjNDQyZmY4NzYzYjgzMjgzMmZhNGUxJnNjX2xhbmc9ZW4maGFzaD0wRDU2Q0Y5OEZGOERGQTQ5RTJFQzU0OEU5NkZCNzBBNVwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiYzY1MjFmZDVlZDI2MzI4ZmIzOWI2NDcwYjY5YzA2ZDE2NWNiMjg1OVwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiOExFWnZzOU5Rc3NfTHA3cGNmRlJjY0pESHdBIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5wdWJsaWNoZWFsdGhvbnRhcmlvLmNhXFxcL2VuXFxcL0VkdWNhdGlvbi1hbmQtRXZlbnRzXFxcL0V2ZW50cyNxPTFcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjY5NTVjMDM3ZTYxNjM1NmQ3ZjE5YWQ1YjAxYjkxZDRjOGIxNTZjMTNcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiNWk4Vno1UkE4MTU5R0xVLWdCRVFzNHR5MGRNIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5wdWJsaWNoZWFsdGhvbnRhcmlvLmNhXFxcL2VuXFxcL0VkdWNhdGlvbi1hbmQtRXZlbnRzXFxcL0V2ZW50cy1hbmQtUHJlc2VudGF0aW9uc1xcXC8yMDI1XFxcLzAxXFxcL1ZhcGluZy1FdmlkZW5jZS1EdWFsLVVzZS1Ub2JhY2NvLUNpZ2FyZXR0ZXNcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjEzMWIwYzdkMjFhZGNjZTA1Yzk0MmMyMDRlNDJhY2M5MDE4Mzk0NmJcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiNWk4Vno1UkE4MTU5R0xVLWdCRVFzNHR5MGRNIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5wdWJsaWNoZWFsdGhvbnRhcmlvLmNhXFxcL2VuXFxcL0VkdWNhdGlvbi1hbmQtRXZlbnRzXFxcL0V2ZW50cy1hbmQtUHJlc2VudGF0aW9uc1xcXC8yMDI1XFxcLzAxXFxcL1ZhcGluZy1FdmlkZW5jZS1EdWFsLVVzZS1Ub2JhY2NvLUNpZ2FyZXR0ZXNcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjEzMWIwYzdkMjFhZGNjZTA1Yzk0MmMyMDRlNDJhY2M5MDE4Mzk0NmJcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiTDQ3VEo4WUJrNmkzSi0xdU5oX1ZMNGZmWGtFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5wdWJsaWNoZWFsdGhvbnRhcmlvLmNhXFxcL2VuXFxcL0VkdWNhdGlvbi1hbmQtRXZlbnRzXFxcL0V2ZW50cy1hbmQtUHJlc2VudGF0aW9uc1xcXC8yMDI1XFxcLzAxXFxcL1N0b3JpZXMtZnJvbS10aGUtRmllbGRcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjY4MGQ2NTNjNGE0ZTZiZGExYTkxMDVjOWM5NDI4Y2E2NjVhZGJhNzBcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoiTDQ3VEo4WUJrNmkzSi0xdU5oX1ZMNGZmWGtFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5wdWJsaWNoZWFsdGhvbnRhcmlvLmNhXFxcL2VuXFxcL0VkdWNhdGlvbi1hbmQtRXZlbnRzXFxcL0V2ZW50cy1hbmQtUHJlc2VudGF0aW9uc1xcXC8yMDI1XFxcLzAxXFxcL1N0b3JpZXMtZnJvbS10aGUtRmllbGRcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcIjY4MGQ2NTNjNGE0ZTZiZGExYTkxMDVjOWM5NDI4Y2E2NjVhZGJhNzBcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.publichealthontario.ca?p=


Healthcare Utilization and Clinical Comorbidities among People 
Who Died of Susbtance-Related Toxicity Death in Ontario report 
released 

 

 

On January 9, PHO and Ontario Drug Policy Research Network (ODPRN) released a 
report titled Healthcare Utilization and Clinical Comorbidities among People Who Died 
of a Substance-Related Toxicity Death in Ontario. They’ve also released an 
infographic.  
 
The report highlights the high prevalence of healthcare needs and use among 
Ontarians who died of a substance-related toxicity. It provides insight into where and 
why individuals present to healthcare settings prior to death, with the goal of 
identifying gaps in access to care and supportive services for people who use 
substances. 

 

   

Upcoming DLSPH Events and Webinars 
 

Page 121 of 124 

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/O/25/odprn-healthcare-utilization-clinical-comorbidities-substance.pdf?rev=ba4836b7af00448a8cc2b0303ff79942&sc_lang=en&hash=B43D759BC1355B9568508F84BBBF1DB6&_cldee=9rA3DP0CqY-FL0sB3oxwVIGMm9PGgEg8KzxlbbZVZfm0QyIvR0JwCXK52HvWOVM8&recipientid=contact-4b41cc5e091ce811a0da0050569e0009-8b358ea613ff4aa6b2ed30221068219c&esid=3dc9d3de-2fcd-ef11-81a0-005056ad61b6
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/O/25/odprn-healthcare-utilization-clinical-comorbidities-substance.pdf?rev=ba4836b7af00448a8cc2b0303ff79942&sc_lang=en&hash=B43D759BC1355B9568508F84BBBF1DB6&_cldee=9rA3DP0CqY-FL0sB3oxwVIGMm9PGgEg8KzxlbbZVZfm0QyIvR0JwCXK52HvWOVM8&recipientid=contact-4b41cc5e091ce811a0da0050569e0009-8b358ea613ff4aa6b2ed30221068219c&esid=3dc9d3de-2fcd-ef11-81a0-005056ad61b6
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/media/Documents/O/25/odprn-healthcare-patterns-substance-related-toxicity-deaths.pdf?rev=9149a87e07004ee9abd28e4fcc3b013f&sc_lang=en&hash=DC13EF073627A89E1EDD63370DD8BE48&_cldee=9rA3DP0CqY-FL0sB3oxwVIGMm9PGgEg8KzxlbbZVZfm0QyIvR0JwCXK52HvWOVM8&recipientid=contact-4b41cc5e091ce811a0da0050569e0009-8b358ea613ff4aa6b2ed30221068219c&esid=3dc9d3de-2fcd-ef11-81a0-005056ad61b6


 

• Climate Change & Youth Mental Health: Impacts and Opportunities for Action 
(Jan. 21)  

• Conversations on Research Data Management in Health Sciences: Data Deposit 
(Jan. 21) 

 

   

BrokerLink Insurance 
 

 

Please note, alPHa’s partnership with Aviva is no longer in place. All Members who 
are with Aviva are encouraged to explore insurance with BrokerLink.  

 

alPHa Members qualify for exclusive insurance discounts with BrokerLink. We are 
excited to announce the 2025 Grand Group Giveaway! Get a quote on car or home 
insurance, and you could win a prize. Don’t miss your chance to save on insurance 
and win some cash in BrokerLink’s Grand Group Giveaway! Visit BrokerLink.ca/alPHa 
to learn more. 

 

 

   

alPHa’s Strategic Plan  
 

Page 122 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.dlsph.utoronto.ca?p=eyJzIjoiM3hGTzQ4NDI1VmRlbTYwd204V1BZb09EN1BRIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5kbHNwaC51dG9yb250by5jYVxcXC9ldmVudFxcXC9jbGltYXRlLWNoYW5nZS15b3V0aC1tZW50YWwtaGVhbHRoLWltcGFjdHMtYW5kLW9wcG9ydHVuaXRpZXMtZm9yLWFjdGlvblxcXC9cIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImExYTgzYTQ5YzI2NjBhNzU1NjE1MjQ1YTFhMzFmODIxMDhhYjIxMTFcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.dlsph.utoronto.ca?p=eyJzIjoieFhSeXhoOHNBZlFfMnIwcVVHaU50NWFTMXlBIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5kbHNwaC51dG9yb250by5jYVxcXC9ldmVudFxcXC9jb252ZXJzYXRpb25zLW9uLXJlc2VhcmNoLWRhdGEtbWFuYWdlbWVudC1pbi1oZWFsdGgtc2NpZW5jZXMtZGF0YS1kZXBvc2l0XFxcL1wiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiZWJhY2IxZTU2YzI4ODA5YjU3OGVhZjAxZjViMGUwNzIzOWVjZmViOFwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.brokerlink.ca?p=eyJzIjoiNkp4RWEtekJHbWpkdm1hTTZ6dF9NaGVHSHJFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5icm9rZXJsaW5rLmNhXFxcL2luc3VyYW5jZVxcXC9ncm91cHNcXFwvYXNzb2NpYXRpb24tb2YtbG9jYWwtcHVibGljLWhlYWx0aC1hZ2VuY2llc1wiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiZTIzN2U1NWQ0YjAwYWU5MDk2NmIyMjVkOTQxM2M1NzRiMTI0NmEyZlwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.brokerlink.ca?p=eyJzIjoiNkp4RWEtekJHbWpkdm1hTTZ6dF9NaGVHSHJFIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5icm9rZXJsaW5rLmNhXFxcL2luc3VyYW5jZVxcXC9ncm91cHNcXFwvYXNzb2NpYXRpb24tb2YtbG9jYWwtcHVibGljLWhlYWx0aC1hZ2VuY2llc1wiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiZTIzN2U1NWQ0YjAwYWU5MDk2NmIyMjVkOTQxM2M1NzRiMTI0NmEyZlwiXX0ifQ


 

alPHa’s 2024-2027 Strategic Plan is available here.   
 

   

alPHa’s mailing address 
 

Please note our mailing address is:  
PO Box 73510, RPO Wychwood 

Toronto, ON M6C 4A7 
 
For further information, please contact info@alphaweb.org.   

 

   

News Releases  
 

The most up to date news releases from the Government of Ontario can be accessed 
here. 

 

   

 

 

 

 

     

     

Page 123 of 124 

https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/www.alphaweb.org?p=eyJzIjoicHRmUEV3VU1LcUhIdnJVVFp6c25QaGdOdGVrIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3d3dy5hbHBoYXdlYi5vcmdcXFwvcGFnZVxcXC9TdHJhdFBsYW5cIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImEyNTg4ZTNkNDcxYmJjZjcxNzE4Y2U5YjU0ZDcwMzZiMjYxYzQ5NWFcIl19In0
mailto:info@alphaweb.org?subject=&body=
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/news.ontario.ca?p=eyJzIjoicUZSdjZQVDNZbmZBSnlSc0NTR2h1Wm9xSVJ3IiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL25ld3Mub250YXJpby5jYVxcXC9lblwiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiNjhlYzViMWMzMTIzNjNmOTQ5M2QyNGRmNTM5MTVhM2E0ZWViZWMwZVwiXX0ifQ
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/linkedin.com?p=eyJzIjoicUhYTHJ3b2xJQk9oVGswRnJsSV94VGpaLVVzIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL2xpbmtlZGluLmNvbVxcXC9jb21wYW55XFxcL2Fzc29jaWF0aW9uLW9mLWxvY2FsLXB1YmxpYy1oZWFsdGgtYWdlbmNpZXNcIixcImlkXCI6XCI2NGYxYzUwZWVlZDM0MTAxOWE4MzhmNmRjMzkzOWMxNVwiLFwidXJsX2lkc1wiOltcImNhZjM0OGMyNDgxZDlhMzcyNWQ5ZGU3MWVhODlhOWYyMzY3NGRlM2ZcIl19In0
https://click.mailchimp.com/track/click/30010842/twitter.com?p=eyJzIjoiUkI4N2JVSmdtWms2NnRLeFM2dGpjaGd0eU5VIiwidiI6MSwicCI6IntcInVcIjozMDAxMDg0MixcInZcIjoxLFwidXJsXCI6XCJodHRwczpcXFwvXFxcL3R3aXR0ZXIuY29tXFxcL2h0dHBzOlxcXC9cXFwvdHdpdHRlci5jb21cXFwvUEhBZ2VuY2llc1wiLFwiaWRcIjpcIjY0ZjFjNTBlZWVkMzQxMDE5YTgzOGY2ZGMzOTM5YzE1XCIsXCJ1cmxfaWRzXCI6W1wiZGE4MDVmZTFhZmFkNDhjMDRmZGNhMDBkMjZlZjQxZjUwNWZlOWZlNVwiXX0ifQ


Our mailing address is: 
PO Box 73510, RPO Wychwood 

Toronto, ON M6C 4A7 
Canada 

 
Want to change how you receive these emails? 
You can update your preferences or unsubscribe 

       

     

 

Page 124 of 124 


	Cover Page
	Table of Contents
	Call to Order
	Declaration of Conflict of Interest

	Adoption of Agenda
	January 29, 2025, Board of Health Meeting Agenda

	Adoption of Minutes
	November 27, 2024, Board of Health Meeting Minutes

	Delegation/Presentations
	Infectious Diseases - Syphilis and the SPRITE Study

	Business Arising
	Reports to Board
	Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Report
	MOH / CEO Report - January 2025

	Finance and Audit
	APH Unaudited Financial Statements ending November 30, 2024

	Governance 

	New Business
	Briefing Note - Algoma Ontario Health Team (AOHT) Partnership Agreement Renewal
	Algoma Ontario Health Team - Collaborative Decision Making Agreement

	Correspondence for Information
	Letter to Algoma Public Health from the Township of Dubreiulville with resolution supporting APH Board resolution 2024-98 regarding  Perspectives from Northern Ontario for the Public Health Funding Review.  The letter is dated November 22, 2024
	Letter to the Mayor of Sudbury from  Public Health Sudbury & Districts regarding advocacy for the Selection of Indigenous Municipal and Provincial Appointees for Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts,  dated December 5, 2024.
	Letter to the Minister of Health from Public Health Sudbury & Districts regarding advocacy for the Selection of Indigenous Municipal and Provincial Appointees for Board of Health for Public Health Sudbury & Districts,  dated December 5, 2024.
	Report to the Middlesex-London Board of Health regarding advocacy for the Monitoring Food Affordability and Implications for Public Policy and Action,  dated December 12, 2024.
	Letter to the Medical Officers of Health and CEOs regarding Strengthening Public Health from the office of the CMOH dated December 23, 2024.
	Letter to the Minister of Finance from the Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) regarding the 2024 Pre-Budget Submission: Public Health Programs and Services, dated January 20, 2025.
	alPHa Information Break - January 2025

	Correspondence for action
	Addendum
	In-Camera
	Open Meeting
	Resolutions Resulting From In-Camera
	Announcements
	Next Meeting Dates

	Adjournment



